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JOHN V. JOHNSON (Chairman): Ladies and gentlemen, I would like
to welcome you to the last of our public hearings on the document relating
to teacher preparation programs in New Jersey. We have a lengthy list of
persons who wish to participate in this hearing. We welcome you to participate
in the hearing, but mindful of the length of the list and the agenda time,

I must say at the outset that we are going to ask witnesses to limit themselves
in their presentation to five minutes, and then there will be questions

from members of the Commission in order to clarify the testimony given.

If you have written testimony to submit to this body when you come forward,

we would request that you submit it to Deena Sadat. She is our staff person,
and she will take those documents in order that they might be further studied
at the completion of this report.

I would like to say a word of appreciation and thanks to NJIT
for hosting this meeting. I would now like to call Gordon Law as our first
witness. He is from Rutgers University.

GORDON L A W: Good morning. My name is Gordon Law. I am the President
of the New Jersey Association of Colleges for Teacher Education. With me

this morning is Sister Frances Rafery, immediate past president of our oraniza-
tion. We will get right to the topic. We thank you for giving us this
opportunity and we applaud you for your efforts to improve teacher education

in New Jersey. _

Our response to the preliminary report is organized into three
sections. In the first section we identify those recommendations with which
we are in substantial agreement, and second we will call attention to the
elements of the report with which we have concerns or with which we disagree.
And, the third is a very brief section where we will recommend that the
Commission to Study Teacher Preparation Programs seek the assistance of
the New Jersey Association of Colleges.

MR. JOHNSON: Gordon, let's move right into the second and third
points. It is nice to hear flattery this morning, but we have all day to
move on. That will be more beneficial to us.

MR. LAW: We think we are getting there. The points with which
we are in substantial agreement are: One, the two-step approach to certifi-
cation; two, the importance of field experience; three, approved program
approach to teacher certification; and, four, the solid liberal arts foundation
that you espouse.

Now, we have eleven recommendations or items of concern, and
at this time I will ask Sister Frances to begin with those items.

S ISTER FRANCES RAFTERY: I will try to go as fast
as I can. It is incredible that we have five minutes to respond to something
that is our life.

The serious concerns that we have are: First, we feel that the
document reflects an encroachment of State government into the running of
colleges and universities. We feel that it could undermine the role and
responsibilities of those same institutions. 1In particular, the recommenda-
tions that concern the course requirements, the general ed program designs,
the credit ratio per student, the assignment of faculty load, all of these
are usually the traditional role of the government of the college or university.

We commend your call for quality, but we feel that those matters are outside



the jurisdiction of the Legislature in New Jersey. We feel that this impacts
not only on colleges and universities, but public schools as well.
The second area of serious concern to our Association is the
prescriptive tone of the document. Our membership notes with alarm the
itemization of the Liberal Arts requirements for teacher ed students. No
member of our Association, in totaling up the credits that were given to
the total degree package, could come between the 120-128 design that is
traditional for the Bachelor's degree. We looked for documentation for
the areas that were itemized and we found little or none in the document
that concerns us, because usually the general education for students, as
it is designated at colleges and universities, is designated as a result »
of research, discussion, arguments, or probing. And, after a design has
been agreed upon, it is reviewed periodically.
Such prescription as indicated in the document would often prevent ]
a student in teacher education from ever having an elective. So, when
we talk about Liberal Arts Education, we really view with alarm, as I noted,
the prescriptive nature of the document.
The third area of concern is the needs of non-traditional students.
The assumption in the document does not ring true with our experience with
students, especially as we deal with students that are transfers, that are
minorities, that are women, and that are late bloomers. Inflexible rules
in teacher education and not giving colleges discretionary power to deal
with those students in light of their strengths and their needs causes us
serious concern.
The fourth area is the single tract approach to teacher education.
The tone of the document to our membership is a standardization of teacher .
education in the State of New Jersey. There is no call for new approaches
to meet the critical needs that face us in this State. Research dictates
to those of us that are deans and chairman that there is no one best pattern N
for teacher education, and we feel that the State is well served by a variety
of approaches to the preparation of teachers. We recognize the advantages
in a variety of approaches, and agree with guidelines, together with NASDTEC,
NCATE, and our Middle States Accreditation, to insure quality at the institutions
throughout the State.
The differences in training programs are based on the students
that we attract to ur institutions, their abilities, their needs, the strengths
of our faculty, the fiscal resources, the physical resources, and the demands
of the profession.
We agree as a group that the problems that face public education
in New Jersey and that face us are a reflection of the problems that face
society, and teacher education must respond to those problems, but no change
in teacher education alone would correct the problems faced by public education.
Fifth, is the emphasis on the behavioral sciences. NJACTE was
amazed with the statement on page 33 of the docuement, "The psychological
sciences represent that body of common theoretical knowledge which is the
foundation of the educational profession." We agree that psychology provides
knowledge and insights very valuable to the preparation of teachers. However,
we also agree that it is only one of the important areas in the design of
the teacher education program.
Sixth, is fiscal responsibility. The lack of a budget is a serious
omission in the document. We are at a loss to measure the viability of



the document, either as teacher educators or as citizens of the State of
New Jersey, without a cost analysis. The cost for the State colleges, the
cost for independent colleges, the cost for State agencies, the cost for
public school districts, the cost for our students, must be addressed by
the Commission if this document is to have viability.

And the last point that I want to make is the isolation and field
experience. The membership, in our program, tried to design a systematic
and developmental approach to field experiences. We see field experience
not as an isolated component. In fact, the tone of the document treats
it as an isolated component.

Gordon will pick up the last four.

MR. LAW: Very quickly, we have layering of bureaucracy. I know
others are talking about that, so I will keep moving. Due cause and due
process -— we think there are some problems in there in the identification
of those matters. The termination of State approved programs bothers us,
and we think there are some problems with that, and then we have some gaps
and omissions. I want to mention one in particular, and that is the failure
to study existing teacher education programs. The title of your orgnization
is to study teacher preparation. We do not believe you have. We also think
there is a serious problem with the two-year colleges; the fact that the
two-year colleges have many courses with labels identical to our own, and
yet they are not monitored in any way. We believe the Commission should
give attention to that.

Let me ask Sister Frances to go back to our last statement and
we will end our presentation.

SISTER FRANCES RAFERY: I guess what we are trying to say in
this whirlwind response is that the membership, the deans and chairman of
NJACTE, who have been involved in teacher education - some for 15, 20, 25,
and 30 years - feel that we have some insights to share with the Commission.
As we surveyed our membership, we could find five of the thirty-two institutions
that prepare teachers that were visited. As we totaled up the amount of
time spent at institutions, it totaled less than a week. So, if the Commission's
charge is to study teacher education in the State of New Jersey, we are
offering our services again, as we did to the Governor when this Commission
started, as we did to Reverend Johnson when the Commission was initiated, to
participate in working towards improving quality education in the State
of New Jersey. ,

We recommend that the Commission defer its final report until
that is in fact done. We feel that we have a role and some insights to
share that would help improve teacher education in the State of New Jersey.

MR. JOHNSON: Thank you. Now let's go to questions from members
of the Commission

DR. MC DONALD: What was that point about due cause and due process?
You just sort of labeled it, and I am not quite sure what you were referring
to.

MR. LAW: Well, we have trouble seeing the-- Well, let's talk
about the process. We find a number of recommendations, but as we read
them, we don't really know where some of them come from. They

seem to come out of thin air. As far as the termination of programs, we



don't see adequate justification for that. That certainly is a due cause
and due process problem.

MS. STILLWELL: In number seven you spoke of the isolation of field
experience. Were you talking about where the experience was placed, the
amount of time, or what did you mean exactly by that?

SISTER FRANCIS RAFTERY: I think in the field experience component,
what institutions have tried to do, and I can speak in particular for ours,
is to try and offer the field experience component as an integrated part
of the program. That it is not isolated out in a separate course. At the
senior level we find at our particular institution that is effective. But
throughout those specifications and documentations about the field experi-
ence, tying it to semester hours treats it as a separate entity from the teacher
education program. We feel that it should be, as I noted in my remarks,
systematic and environmental, in connection with the course - as an integral
part of the course. So,if you were to tabulate it as it is indicated in
the document, you seem to use that flavor. Maybe that was not the intention
of the Commission, but that is surely the way it comes out of the document .

MS. STILLWELL: I am thinking of starting with the first year, and
having a part for each year was a carryover and a transcending thought. Do
you feel that came across?

SISTER FRANCIS RAFTERY: No. Our Association would agree with
that, that in fact if you visited the institutions in the State of New Jersey,
you would see, especially for the elementary majors, that it begins with the
freshman year, but each institution will handle that differently, some as
an integrated part of the course.

Let me just say that at our institution we found that it was not
beneficial to send freshmen out cold, but rather it was more beneficial for
the instructor to take them to a variety of settings to show them the kinds
of things they ought to look for.

MR. JOHNSON: Are there any other questions? Fred.

DR. MC DONALD: Do you see the document as forbidding that inte-
gration, or as prescribing a base of field experience on which you can build
or develop in any way?

SISTER FRANCIS RAFTERY: Fred, I would say to you that I sat
down with this document and tried to look at it non-emotionally, as if
a student came into our institution and we were trying to work out the
presecription. There is nothing freeing in the document. And, in the
field experience--

DR. MC DONALD: In the interest of time, would you just tell
me whether you see the requirements for allotment of field experience as
prohibiting you from integrating the field experience with other class-
work.

SISTER FRANCIS RAFTERY: Maybe what I am saying - and I will
say it straight out - is that I think field experience ought to be a integral
part of teacher education. No program in the State would be approved by
NASDTEC, in fact, if it were not, and for the Legislature to somehow approve
a sequence of isolated field experiences is to somehow not know the kinds

of things that are already going on in many institutions. So, to answer



your question, what I am saying to you is that we support the fact that
field experiences be systematic in development, but when you tell us where
they should be, how they should be, how many times they should be, we feel
that you are involved in administering the programs. We support the policy.

DR. MC DONALD: So, the issue for you is control, not the kind
of field experience, is that right?

SISTER FRANCIS RAFTERY: The nature of the experience ought to
be determined by professional bodies, by the faculty that has come together
to design those experiences, and by the needs of our students. There is
no place in the field experience document there-- That document could
have been written in 1950. It somehow indicates that field experiences
are valuable outside of the school setting. There is no call to new response
in the document, as our membership sees it.

MR. JOHNSON: Are there other questions or concerns? (no response)
Thank you very much.

Dean Nicholas Michelli from Montclair State College.

DEAN NICHOLAS MICHELTL I: This looks like another
tandem group here. This lady to my left is Dr. Catherine Becker, who is
scheduled next, and I wondered if it would be agreeable to the Commission

if we took OUr ten minutes together. We are both on the program separately.

MR. JOHNSON: Sure. Go ahead.

DEAN MICHELLI: I would like to begin by indicating that in large
meausre we support the principals underlying the recommendations of the
Commission. I think these are principals that we have often tried to strengthen
in our programs, and I think your strong statement of them will help us.

I don't want to shock you, but there is some element of politics that enters
into the curriculum development process on all college campuses. So, we
welcome this strong statement of principals.

We differ in that we feel that the standards in this draft appear
on the one hand to be either inflexible, excessively prescriptive, or
likely to lead to a monolithic program of teacher education. Or, on the
other hand, it is so unclear, to us at least as to really not permit careful
analysis or discussion. We also must recognize, sooner or later, that
an analysis of the fiscal implications must be undertaken.

I would like to give some specific examples. Let's draw from
the area relating to practical experience. No one can argue with the idea
that practice is of little value. We would suggest, and especially in
the case of teacher education, that practice without theory may be worse.

You call, for example, for three semester hours of field experience prior

to admission to teacher education, accompanied by very little in the way

of formal preparation. You refer to the possibility of supplementary lectures
or discussions. Remember that teacher education candidates have spent

twelve years being inculturated [sic] in the schools. My view is that
returning students to the schools without equipping them with some new tools
for analysis so that they might form a more informed view is not productive.

I also question, as did the former presenters, the assignment
of academic credit to such an experience independently. We would recommend
the standard that says there must be field work as a part of every professional

course, but not standing alone for independent academic credit. That confuses



the issue. We agree that the principle of that practice throughout the
experience is important, but we question the prescription of specific hours
and credits divorced from a new framework.

Similarly, we agree that practice in the upper division, prior
to student teaching, including experience in the capacity of a teacher
assistant, 1is important. A prescription of one hundred and eighty hours
in a school classroom is, from our prospective, disfunctional. Practice
in teaching can be acquired more effectively and efficiently in a more
controlled setting. We would favor placement in the school, supplemented
by the extensive use of video tape, so that carefully selected examples
of teaching can be analyzed, and further supplemented by microteaching,
so that a candidates' own efforts can be reviewed. It is not really the
amount of time or credits that count as much as the quality of experience,
and the self-aware reflection of that experience.

A standard requiring work as a teacher aide, along with systematic
practice and guided analysis, would go much further than merely specifying
one hundred and eighty hours. Moreover, this suggested revision would
be much more acceptable to the public schools that have to accommodate
our students.

I guess another area of concern that we have is the effort to
define the load of college supervisors. A conservative estimate would
project a financial commitment three times above present levels without
assurances, from our prospective, of improved quality.

Aside from course, the inflexibility of the proposal will severely
limit creativity and effectiveness. At Montclair State College, for example,
we prepare only secondary teachers and specialists, not general elementary
teachers. As part of our supervisory process, every student teacher is
observed by both a specialist in curriculum teaching and a specialist
in the major discipline. None of our candidates major in education. The
standard, as written, would appear to preclude the dual supervison that
we value so highly. Furthermore, the standard appears to limit the load
of the college supervisor to supervision. We believe it is critical that
the supervisor work with student teachers in credit-bearing seminars during
the student teaching experience, to share new insights, to deal with common
problems, to permit the establishment of rapport so necessary for effective
supervision.

We would suggest that a model program might be one in which at
least one college supervisor is assigned to meet with a group of student
teachers in seminar once every week, to visit their classes once every
third week, and to be on call beyond that when special needs or problems
arise.

Daily supervision would, of course, be maintained by the cooperating
teacher. This kind of a program, from our perspective, would be precluded
by the standard and yet be as effective and far less costly than the program
that meets the standard.

One further comment on field experience. This report seems to
limit the kind of experience that counts ~-- the school experience. We
value and require a community-based experience in which our students are

involved in the community in which they are placed. That is, they try




to understand the place of the school in that community, the relationship
between the community and the school, as well as the non-school agencies
that service school-aged children. That appears to be not valued by this
Commission.

Another area of our concern is your description of theoretical
studies. The areas specified are important but they are too narrow. For
example, there is no mention of sociologically-based analysis. There is
no mention of understanding the problems of minorities. There is no mention
of reading. Are we to assume that because they are not mentioned you do
not value these areas, or are we to interpret "behavioral studies" broadly
to include them?

A third area of our concern rests with the plan to consider all
teacher education programs new degree programs, to be presented for initial
approval by the Board of Higher Education.

At Montclair College we have a seventy-two year history of teacher
preparation. Some other colleges have an even longer history. We are
proud of that history, and new teacher preparation is one of the most important
efforts of the college Wwhich has an impact on society. To require new initial
approval seems to us an unnecessary rejection of that history, and seems
to presume non-compliance. I think this is, to some extent, where the
notion of due cause and due practice enters. The normal process of accreditation
prescribed by the Commission already would have the same effect,. whether
or not the concept of initial approval was incorporated. So, we find the
presumption of non-compliance to be objectionable and arbitrary.

To summarize, we believe that field experience should accompany
all theoretical courses, that a school-based experience should be required
in the upper division, and that student teaching that is approximately one
full semester is appropriate. However, the specification of hours, credits,
and faculty load limits creativity, effectiveness, and efficiency. We
believe that the vague, limiting description of behavioral studies precludes
many valuable experiences already in the regulations, aﬁd we believe that
the presumption of non-compliance, and the need for initial approval, serves
no purpose and is arbitrary. We ask you to consider these concerns very
seriously.

MR. JOHNSON: Dr. Becker. would you like to speak at this point?

D R. CATHERTINE B ECKER: I would like to address the
Commission today on one specific area of great concern to me, and expressed
to me by many of my students and colleagues -- that is the recommendation
found in the Commission's report on page 40, which limits the time period
that a person has upon graduation with a Bachelor's degree and an initial
certificate to demonstrate two years of successful teaching within five
years of graduation, and to obtain a Master's degree in order to qualify
for a permanent certificate.

While I laud the Commission for its principal on the need for
further coherent study beyond the Bachelor's degree, I fond the time requirements
to be seriously limiting and discriminatory. The case can be made for
all persons that such non-renewable conditions are extremely difficult
as one pursues a career in public school teaching. But, such constraints

affect female graduates seeking a career in teaching to a much greater



extent than her male counterpart. I know that it is not the Commission's
intention to set up sexist regulations, but I clearly see this as an outcome,
unless certain changes in the possibility of renewability of standing are
introduced into the Commission's report.

To illustrate my concern, take a female graduate holding a Bachelor's
degree and an initial certificate. She marries and decides to start a
family within five years of graduation and before she has acquired two
years of successful teaching. The present proposed regulations certainly
discriminate against her opportunities when compared to her male counterparts,
married and starting a family.

On a personal note, had I been subject to these very regulations »
at the time of my own graduation, I would have been in exactly the same
dilemma described in the example given. Such a restriction would have
gravely affected my career aspirations and development. I suggest that t
in order to remedy this situation, the Commission revise its recommendations
so that the initial five year period be renewable for another five year
period, and I suggest that this renewal be contingent upon the successful
completion of appropriate course work which would have both the theoretical
and field work component.

In summary, I praise the Commission for the principal of needed
additional study beyond the Bachelor's degree, but I request a change in
the time limits associated with the acquisition of a permanent certificate.

MR. JOHNSON: Thank you, Dr. Becker. We will now take questions
to either Dr. Becker or to the Dean.

DR. MC DONALD: Do you regard your testimony as consistent with
the preceeding people? ' s

DEAN MICHELLI: I think we raised some of the concerns they did,
perhaps more specifically. I think it is consistent, yes.

DR. MC DONALD: Tell me, did I hear you correctly? It sounded
to me like you were suggesting that those items were the faculty is left
considerable freedom to do things should include more stated requirements
or directions or guidelines. You mentioned a number of things that weren't
said, and I gathered that you were asking for clarification or indications?
That's why I asked you--

DEAN MICHELLI: Well, in some areas I think there is need for
clarification. We are not certain, for example, when you talk about
three-semester hours of field experience, exactly what that means and what
that entails. It is difficult for us to define that, and therefore to
respond to it. Behavioral studies may be interpreted very broadly and
very narrowly; it is unlear to us what that means.

DR. HOLLANDER: Wouldn't you be concerned that if this Commission
were to try and define that more precisely, we would be overly prescriptive?

DEAN MICHELLI: I think in some areas, sir, you are overly presecriptive.

DR. HOLLANDER: But, yet you are calling for more prescriptions
from us.

DEAN MICHELLI: No indeed. We are calling for more definition.

DR. HOLLANDER: Well, if we were to define what six months of
behavioral science would be, we would probably have to define that in terms
of content.

DEAN MICHELLI: But, you do define it in a sense. You list



certain things that are illustrative of that, and they are all psychology.
DR. HOLLANDER: As illustrative, yes.
DEAN MICHELLI: That is a very limited listing.
DR. HOLLANDER: If it were not illustrative, it would be very
prescriptive.
DEAN MICHELLI: That's true, but it doesn't extend into any of
the areas that are apparently in the regulations.
DR. HOLLANDER: I guess I am getting two messages. On the one
hand, there is a message that says, "give us more freedom to define our
own course work;" and, on the other hand, I am getting the message that
says, "tell us more specifically what it is that you want." I just want
to hear which one of those messages you are delivering.
DEAN MICHELLI: Okay, fine. We are not opposed to standards
that would lead to quality. We think standards that called for field experiences
as a part of every theoretical course would be a step in the right direction.
DR. HOLLANDER: Give us example of the kinds of things you think
it should say.
DEAN MICHELLI: I think, for example, the standards that are
presently in the regulations, that require there be a methods course, or
that require there be a reading requirement--
DR. HOLLANDER: Isn't that terribly prescriptive?
DEAN MICHELLI: It is not prescriptive, because there is room
for having it incorporated in the program instead of saying you must
have three credits in the first year and one hundred and eighty hours in
the second year, which is in the body of the report. The framework, I
think, appropriately is defined by standards, but the way it is implemented,
and the particular mark of an institution - our being, for example, primarily
secondary - has to be allowed to come through if we are going to have differences
in quality and approach.
DR. MC DONALD: That is the issue here, whether in fact we go
beyond - I think I am supplementing what you said--
DR. HOLLANDER: Go ahead.
DR. MC DONALD: I am bothered about the same point. If you go
beyond, as you have said, laying out a framework, then you are getting
very prescriptive and you are moving into taking over those things which
are clearly the faculty's competence to decide.
DEAN MICHELLI: Okay, but when you talk about numbers, as you
do in here, you do go beyond the framework. When you say that an individual
supervisor has ten students per semester, and that is his or her total
role, that precludes a number of things that we think are appropriate and
more efficient, and more effective. If you say that a student
must be visited sixteen times during the semester, we would argue that
some students need to be visited maybe five times, some students probably
need more than sixteen if they are going to be effective. That is the
kind of restriction I am talking about. It says sixteen. Sixteen visits
per semester. That is once a week for sixteen weeks. That is not appropriate
for every student.
DR. HOLLANDER: Do you think it is prescriptive for this report
to recommend that every student who seeks to qualify for a certificate

have roughly half their program in the arts and sciences?



DEAN MICHELLI: I think that is part of the description of the
baccalaureate that the Board of Higher Education is considering now.

DR. HOLLANDER: So, that is not too presecriptive. You don't
think that is too presecriptive?

DEAN MICHELLI: No, I don't, sir.

DR. HOLLANDER: Do you think it is too prescriptive to go beyond
that and say that six months of course work in behavioral sciences ought
to be part of the box of tools that goes into teaching?

DEAN MICHELLI: Well, that depends upon how you define behavioral
sciences.

DR. HOLLANDER: Well, as broadly as I just defined it. I mean, .
you and I know what the behavioral sciences are. They are fairly well
defined in the profession.

DEAN MICHELLI: Does that include all of the professional studies
that are related?

DR. HOLLANDER: They are whatever the faculty agrees are that
part of the social sciences and natural sciences that are behavioral.

DEAN MICHELLI: I think that is presecriptive, because it takes
one particular perception of what teaching is and how one becomes an effective
teacher.

DR. HOLLANDER: Do you think the requirements fcr internship,
as they are now stated, are too prescriptive?

DEAN MICHELLI: I think the notion of a full semester of student
teaching is apropriate. I think there are some people who would argue
with that. Is that the internship you are referring to?

DR. HOLLANDER: Yes. hd

DEAN MICHELLI: I personally think that is appropriate.

DR. HOLLANDER: Do you think the requirement for a Master's is
too perscriptive -- or the equivalent?

DEAN MICHELLI: Well, I favor the dual certification notion.

DR. HOLLANDER: I guess I am trying to identify what is too pre-
scriptive in the document.

DEAN MICHELLI: What is too presecriptive, again, is when you
deal with numbers.

DR. HOLLANDER: Do you mean your statement about staffing
ratio?

DEAN MICHELLI: Staffing ratio, one hundred and eighty hours,
three credits -- If you say that field experience should permeate the program--

DR. HOLLANDER: If it said the equivalent of six months of field
experience, would that take care of it?

DEAN MICHELLI: No, because that becomes a number again.

DR. HOLLANDER: You mean it just should say there should be some
field experience?

DEAN MICHELLI: There should be field experience at every point
where there is theory.

DR. HOLLANDER: Let me ask a fundamental question, if I may.
Suppose the State were to say to the teaching profession -~ the faculty
of their colleges - "We really don't know what makes for a good teacher.

Why not establish only a single requirement for licensure in teaching,
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and that is a baccalaureate degree and a program of study approved by a
regional crediting association," and not say anything about what the course
content or the program should be, or whether it should have reading or

it should not have reading -- leaving it to the faculty at each of the
institutions? I guess one place where the State could really lean entirely

upon faculty judgment is to say that any educated person that a school

feels is qualified to teach, ought to be hired with the minimum requirements
for a baccalaureate degree, or a Master's degree, whatever level of education
he or she has reached. Would that be a better approach in your judgment?
That is very similar to Montclair's approach, I think, to secondary school
teaching.

DEAN MICHELLI: I don't think it is.

DR. HOLLANDER: Why should the State go beyond that, I guess
that is my question?

DEAN MICHELLI: Catherine, do you want to answer that?

DR. BECKER: I would like to respond to that. I don't think
the illustration you have given, and the specificity with which you have
addressed Montclair State is at all accurate. I think that--

DR. HOLLANDER: Just answer the question.

DR. BECKER: You are setting up a tiger on two sides, either
total presecription or--

DR. HOLLANDER: Yes, I want to define the range.

DR. BECKER: Obviously, there has to be some prescription.

DR. HOLLANDER: Why? Could you tell me why?

DR. BECKER: All right, to protect the interest of society as
a whole. What we are also talking about here are the children who go to
the public schools in New Jersey, both the elementary and secondary level.
This is what we are ultimately talking about, and professionals in the
field should by and large be determining those kinds of things.

The problem that we are having now is that this was going to
the Legislature in a prescriptive nature. Some of the document is highly
presecriptive. Another is quite laudable; for instance, the two-step
process. I think that the issue with regard to clarification isn't so
much the need for further presecription, but rather the inconsistency that
exists in the document, where at one point you say behavioral studies and
at another point you are saying one hundred and eighty hours.

DR. HOLLANDER: Yes.

DR. BECKER: This is the full range over which you are granting
professionals discretion and autonomy, and then where you are legislating
with high specificity. This is the issue at point here -- the total inconsistency
within the document, and the fact that in this inconsistency you are threatening
the quality by being overly prescriptive with regard to the field components, and
being overly presecriptive with regard to the psychological base on the
behavioral sciences with no mention of sociology, with no mention of reading,
with no mention of minority studies--

DR. HOLLANDER: It is a behavioral science.

DR. BECKER: Yes, but the--

DEAN MICHELLI: The administrations are all psychology.

DR. BECKER: Yes.
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DEAN MICHELLI: And, it becomes prescriptive.

DR. HOLLANDER: So, what you are saying is, you think the State,
in order to protect the children, ought to specify what some of the course
content is, or specify the minimum requirements for licensure, but leave
it to the faculty to define--

DR. BECKER: No, I think it is the State's prerogative to determine
what the standards are. I am talking about the manner in which these standards are
written, so as to provide flexibility within the State.

DEAN MICHELLI: It is ultimately the State's determination as
to whether the standards are met.

DR. HOLLANDER: So, you have no objection to the standards that
are in the report. You objection gets to the sequence in which the information
is presented, and gets to the sequence in which the internship is required,
and gets to the question of how the programs are staffed. Are those the
things you are concerned about? I am trying to clarify this, really.

DR. BECKER: Yes. In my personal estimation, I have no problem
with any of the standards. They are principals that are laudable.

The problem is in the interpretation of them. At times the Commission

goes overboard with its specificity, and at other times it is very, very
broad and general, which is perfectly acceptable. The fact here is that

in the State you have so many institutions, public and private, that have

so many different ways of handling the problem, that this is going to create -
if it goes the way it is sitting right now - a monolithic approach, and

we all have different missions.

DR. HOLLANDER: All right. I would appreciate it if, before
you leave the room today, you would list the specific areas in this report
which you feel are too prescriptive. That would be very helpful.

MR. JOHNSON: I think that would be helpful too. I need not
remind you that we are trying to sift some of that out in this process
today, and we have been trying to do that for some time. We continually
hear that on one point we are too specific, and on one point we are too
broad.

I would also like to say that at some point the State and this
Commission will come together, and these will be recommendations to the
Legislature. The Legislature hasn't acted upon that yet. I would also
like to remind you that we think the majority of this Commission consists
of persons who have backgrounds in education, and who are professional educators themselves.
I am a public representative, and others are elected officials. That is
to say, those individuals are bringing to this work —which will be a recom-
mendation to the State Legislature — their expertise in the field that is
allied with yours.

Are there any other questions to these persons?

DR. MC DONALD: I keep asking this question. Behavioral science
concerns you. Do you see where, because of the examples that are listed,
you would be precluded from offering a course, such as the sociology of
child development?

DEAN MICHELLI: Conceivably.

DR. MC DONALD: I am asking you, do you see youself as precluded?
Would you, for example, when setting up your program under this, deliberately
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avoid putting in the sociology of child development because you think your
program would not be approved? You couldn't argue the case for it, in
other words.

DEAN MICHELLI: Not because we couldn't argue the .case, but because
the number of credits would preclude anything else.

DR. HOLLANDER: I don't understand that. I really don't.

DR. MC DONALD: Well, you have a category called behavioral science.

DEAN MICHELLI: Yes.

DR. MC DONALD: We have gone to great lengths to avoid listing
specific courses, right? We gave some examples.

DEAN MICHELLI: If you can tell me how it can be broadly enough
interpreted to include, for example-- Would you include the teaching of
reading within that context?

DR. MC DONALD: I don't think we should tell you things like
that.

DEAN MICHELLI: Oh.

DR. MC DONALD: That's my personal viewpoint.

DEAN MICHELLI: Well, that is why it is difficult for us to respond.

DR. MC DONALD: I don't think we should tell you to teach "x"
course, or to teach "y" course.

DEAN MICHELLI: No, I'm not asking you to tell us that. But,
if we chose to, would that be counted as part of the behavioral studies?
That's what we don't know, and that is why we would be precluded, in our
minds, from saying whether or not we would be able to offer this course.

DR. MC DONALD: But, when you say that, it strikes me that you
would be tempting people to get more prescriptive.

DEAN MICHELLI: No. In some places you should be more prescriptive,
that's the point. You are so vague, we can't discuss it.

DR. HOLLANDER: May I ask you a question? 1Is the teaching of
reading a behavioral science,as it is now taught at our institutions?

DEAN MICHELLI: 1Is it a behavioral science?

DR. HOLLANDER: I am asking you is it at Montclair?

DEAN MICHELLI: My perspective is that I wouldn't call the area
behavioral science, you see.

DR. HOLLANDER: You discussed the question. You said you felt
the teaching of reading was a behavioral science.

DEAN MICHELLI: It is heavily based in psychology, yes.

DR. HOLLANDER: Then the answer to your question would be, if
that was your judgment and you included it in the curriculum, it would
be part of that sequence.

MR. JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.

DEAN MICHELLI: Thank you.

MR. JOHNSON: Let us hear now from Harry Gumaer, from the New
Jersey Teacher Education Roundtable.
HARRY G UMAE R: The New Jersey Education Roundtable is an independent
organization composed of college staff and faculty in teacher education
programs, and of leadership in the elementary and secondary school, represent-
ing both the public and the private sectors in New Jersey, and concerned
with the preparation of teachers.

I have with me today, Dr. Mary Lou Bartley, Superintendent of
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Schools from Riverdale, and also in the audience is Dr. Walter Brower, Dean
of Ryder College, and Patrick Perciale, a Principal from the Edison schools.

Roundtable members know that in many quarters there is unhappiness
about teachers and teacher educators, not only in this state, but in the
nation at large. We recognize that new directions and new emphases are
needed. We hope that members of the teaching and teacher education profes-
sions can assist in determining these emphases and directions. We thank
this Commission for its openness and objectiveness in the past sessions
in which we have participated.

We will limit this report to just a few considerations. The
Commission report's apparent threat to college autonomy, I will leave to
some of the college officials who are here. We agree, as did Dr. Law and
Sister Frances in the first presentation, on many good points, which I
will not go through, that this Commission has made.

Here are the points I would like to emphasize. One, there is
a need to summarize the requirements. This has been mentioned before.
When I add up, on the basis of partial ignorance, all the requirements,
I get about one hundred and fifty-five credits, and you still haven't addressed
yourselves to courses in teaching reading, health education - which are
required by the State - local college requirements, whether they are courses
in religion, or whatever, and innovative courses in teacher ed, which haven't
even been addressed. So, therefore, I read it as about some one hundred
and eighty credits to graduate with a Bachelor's degree. I don't think
the Commission means that, but this needs to be clarified.

Now, this is related to what the Montclair people have said:
maybe in being less prescriptive, you could cut out the number of hours.
Either put it all in credit hours so we can tell what it costs, or leave
out the number of prescriptive hours and specify principals.

We are particularly concerned with the cost factor in the field
experiences. For example, you say somewhere on page 30, "ten candidates
per semester" is apparently a college professor's full load for the semester,
without any other courses. Well, that figures at a one-point-two faculty
load credit. A faculty load is twelve credits, fifteen in some colleges,
for each student teacher. At present, the colleges only give the equivalent
of one-half or one-third faculty load credits per student teacher. This
change means that the supervision is going to cost three times more under
your plan than it now costs. That's fine. It is about time we raised
some of the fees connected with student teaching from their 1948 inflation
standards, up to 1980. But, the question is, who is going to pay for it? -
It isn't specified. 1Is the student going to pay for it through increased
college tuitions? Will the Legislature pay for it, etc.?

Supervisory visitis will be required once a week. This will »
quadruple travel expenses for professors to get to the schools. and, to
raise the same question Montclair did, do all students really require visits
once a week?

We would suggest that a group of education deans and directors
of field experiences sit with the Commission staff to review these portions,
to see if you really mean what we think you meant in this instance.

The evaluation process for college programs has not been mentioned.
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I think that has to be looked at again. The criticism of the existing
NASDTEC Evaluation process 1is not completely documented, and that "no
conditional approvel" rule seems almost punitive. If a college which is
very, very good has lacked one-half of a number of standards and has plans
to correct that the following year - they know about it and they are trying
to correct it - they are going to be put out of business because they missed
this thing on the basis of one arbitrary thing, without any conditional
approval. This seems to me to be unfair to colleges, especially colleges
with good programs.

Finally, the administrative structure that is set up, taking
the evaluation process out of its present situation and putting it into
a new Commission, we concur with the prior statements by the School Boards
Association and the NJEA, that this new Advisory Board seems to be quite
unnecessary, because if you applied this principal, as stated in here,
that you mean to have the evaluation done by a different group than that
which is responsible for the standards, that would mean an awful lot. Would
that mean that within the Department of Higher Education, when a college is
inspected as a whole, the Department of Health should be the one to interview
and check the standards? Because, right now they are checked from within
the same group.

In the one moment that I have left, I would like to call upon
Dr. Bartley to make one more point that the Rountable is interested in.

D R. MARY LOU BARTLEY: As a public school superintendent
of schools, I work daily with the products of the teacher education program,
and I find that for the most part they are very well prepared in the content
area. Their problems come about in terms of time management, organizational
skills, and classroom management. This has to be part of the field experience,
and we must continue to work closely with the college, because teacher
preparation is the joint responsibility of public school teachers as well

as the colleges.

Elementary, secondary, and higher education people have to begin
working as a team, as we do for our Roundtable. I would only urge the
Commission to rethink its position at this point in terms of the kinds of
program approval that I read in this document. I would like the colleges
to maintain that autonomy.

I think that through working close together with public school
chief administrators, we can produce an even far grater product than we
have in the past, rather than to endorse what perhaps ends up being a cook-
book approach, which could yeld a very tasteless end product. Thank you.

MR. JOHNSON: Are there any questions from the panel? (no questions)
Thank you very much.

I would like to call on Sister Hickey now, Academic Dean, Felician
College.
SISTETR VERONTICE HICKEY: I want to acknowledge
your interest in teacher preparation, and I want to thank you for the opportunity
to respond to the draft of your Report. However, the faculty of teacher
education at Felician College and I ask that you review and study several
areas.

On page 3, paragraph 1, you say the Commission was created because
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of dissatisfaction with the quality of teachers graduated from our institutions.
Yet, the annual outcome of studies conducted by the teacher ed programs
in my institution do not concur with this.
On page 3, paragraph 2, you say in its earliest meetings the
Commission accepted that a more comprehensive education would be required
of prospective teachers. At present, the New Jersey regulations and standards
for certification, and the standards and procedures established by NASDTEC
require each teacher education program to provide such a comprehensive
education.
On page 3, paragraph 5, you speak of candidates’ general education
not being insured and the amount of practical experience in the schools .
was inadequate. However, experience in the schools has increased with
careful planning over the years in New Jersey's Teacher Education Program.
Teacher educators through organizations such as ICC, have studied, discussed, v
and developed more and better experience in their programs.
On page 4, paragraph 2, you say the only requirement for practical experience
prior to employment is student teaching. Most of our colleges could not
even recommend a graduate for certification if that were their only experience.
On page 4, paragraph 4, you speak of extensive and carefully
supervised experience. Once again I have to say this is already happening,
and a more thorough study on the part of this Commission will reveal that
to you.
On page 5, paragraph 3, you say we are not prescribing a rigid
program of professional preparation. We are encouraging variability, flexibility,
and particularly individualizing these programs. The preliminary report
prescribes specific percentages, course work, field experience, and so v
forth; yet, page 17 of the second draft of the Master Plan calls on us
as an academic community to foster diversity and to avoid unnecessary duplication.
On page 8, paragraph 1, you say the Commission is not expert
in building curricula; yet, we at the colleges do find we have such experts
on our campus who would be happy to provide and share in your research.
On page 10 you say that at present we have a remarkable homogeneity.
It is my belief that if we follow the prescriptions in this document, there
will be more homogeneity in our colleges.
On page 23 you say sufficient courses and programsin community
colleges and state colleges help to remedy basic skills deficiencies.
I would just like to point out that there are also such programs existing
in the independent sector.
On page 27, paragraph 2 you say the pre-admissions field experience
might be accompanied by a variety of supplementary activity. This has
been done, and is being done in our colleges for at least the last ten
years.
On page 28, paragraph 3, you talk about the jntegration of methodology
courses into the field experience component. Some of us have tried this
and we have found that it is not the best or the only way to teach methodology.
On page 29, paragraph 3, you talk about the selection of supervisory
personnel. Currently we do that through the superintendent of schools,
and we wonder if your idea would not be placing more of a burden on the
school districts.
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You speak, on page 30, about college supervisors and how many
times they should visit their student teachers. We see supervision and
supervisory load as a college responsibility, and we ask what documentation
exists to prove that such a number of visits would guarantee better teachers.

You speak, on page 31, of an equivalent of fifty semester hours
of general education. Were you to look at our programs, you would discover
that we are currently offering that much.

On page 33 you speak of the students majoring in an area which
would bear direct relationship to the area in which certification is sought.
Our students are seeking certification to be elementary school teachers.
Currently, they choose a twenty-four credit hour area of concentration
in an area in which they have strength or interest, and through which they
can earn additional certification.

n

On page 34, paragraph 6, you say, "...have satisfactorily completed
a pre-admission field experience in the sophomore year...." This suggests
that a transfer student and/or a part-time student has no place in a Teacher
Preparation Program. Yet, page 68 of the second draft of the Master Action
Plan calls on us to increase access of transfer students to our program.

On page 35 you make reference to the New Jersey Basic Skills
Placement Test; yet, the independent sector was given the option of using
or not using this Test. This document suggests that they must administer
it.

On page 36, paragraph 4, you speak about a comprehensive test
at the end of the senior year. My question is: What happens if the senior
fails this test? We have given such a test at our institution for the
last three years, but we administer it at the end of the junior year, allowing
ourselves and the student an opportunity to address identified deficiencies
through senior year seminars, courses, and so forth.

On page 43, paragraph 2, you speak of service to and contact
with the public schools. I would like to point out to you that we also
offer service to and have contact with the private and the parochial schools.

You say on page 58: "We think that several decades of evaluating
programs in this way should have helped the institutions to improve substantially
and to remedy their deficiencies." It has been our experience that the
approval processes now in operation have helped us to improve, as have
the ICC, the NJACTE, and the Roundtable.

In summary, we find that the document is full of contradictions.
For example, it speaks of variability in one section, and dictates specific
curriculum elements in another. We find the documentation to support a
number of the statements is missing; that the dictation of a specific curriculum
is an invasion of our autonomy; that the lack of opportunity for the part-
time and/or transfer student is a serious concern; that changes are proposed,
but there is no guaranteed source of funding.

We acknowledge the efforts you have made to date on the study
of Teacher Preparation, but we urge you to do more study of the topic and,
therefore, to revise the present Teacher Preparation Proposal. We believe
that we should in the words of draft 2 - and I quote: "Re-examine and
improve, where necessary, programs of teacher education."

MR. JOHNSON: Thank you, Sister. Are there any questions?
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DR. MC DONALD: One of the points that you are concerned about
prompted you to ask where is the documentation showing that sixteen visits
would make a dilference. Where is the documentation that any visits would
make a difference?

SISTER VERONICE HICKEY: I think that each of us, in an attempt
to individualize our program, has based our number of visits upon the
needs of the particular student, and someone in the earlier testimony said
that some student might need only three or four visits and another might
need more than sixteen.

DR. MC DONALD: That is a matter of individual judgment, isn't
it? If you are going to require documentation for setting a standard for
responsible supervision as a basis for recommending somebody, wouldn't
we be in the position of saying there is no documentation, therefore no
supervision is required at all?

SISTER VERONICE HICKEY: No, I believe that what we are saying
is that supervision is necessary. I am simply saying that a specified
number of visits is not an aid to us or to the improvement of teacher preparation.

ik, JOHNSON: Do you think there is a minimum number of visits?

SISTER VERONICE HICKEY: I think that could be studied. It depends
on a student. In an institution, such as mine, when students are out
in the field from the first semester of their freshman year through their
senior year, we find that some of them, in their student teaching experience,
are doing extremely well. While at present we make at least five visits,
we find that with some of them we could make less, and it would still
be an effective student teaching experience, especially with the cooperation
of a good cooperating teacher.

MS. STILWELL: How large is your teacher preparation program?

SISTER VERONICE HICKEY: We have about 80 students.

MS. STILWELL: Eighty?

SISTER VERONICE HICKEY: Yes.

MR. DYNAN: I would like to commend Sister on her presentation.
She is the only one that I have seen in all these public hearings who has
specifically outlined, page by page, her objections. I would like to know,
Sister, if you have copies for each of us, so that we can use this?

SISTER VERONICE HICKEY: I have one copy.

MR. DYNAN: Would it be possible to have copies made?

MR. JOHNSON: We will do that through staff. Just leave the
copy, Sister.

We will now hear from the Dean of Education at Kean College.
DEAN GEORGIANA APPIGNANTI: The Dean of Education
of Kean College's name is Georgiana Appignani, and I am pleased to introduce
"him" myself. (laughter)

First of all, I would like to say to the Commission that I believe
the recommendations we are trying to make here today are constructive,
and I hope that the Commission will take our comments more as constructive
criticism, rather than some attempt to challenge the results of the Report.

I would also like the Commission to know that I have been a public
school--

iit. JOHNSON: Before you speak, lst me say that that is our function
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here today; we are here to hear criticism, and we have nc problem with

it. That is the process of public hearings, and that is what we are doing
today. Where we feel the criticism is valid, we will recognize that, and
try to so interpret that in terms of this document. I hope that everyone
understands that, that is what this process is all about.

I am sorry that we have to be concerned about time, but that
is just the reality of the facts of life at the moment.

DEAN APPIGNANI: I would like to Commission to understand that
I have been a public school teacher in the City of New York. I have worked
with the State Eduction Department as a Research Associate in the old Performance
Evaluation Project, which was an attempt on the part of the State to get
competency-based teacher education program up and running. And, I
am presently Dean of Education at Kean College, but active in the American
Association of Colleges in Teacher Education, and I am Chairperson of
the Governmental Relations Commission of the National Association of Deans,
which includes land-grant colleges, state colleges and universities, the
American Vocational Association, AERA, and the Higher Education Council
for Special Education. So, I have been looking at legislation from a national
perspective as it relates to schools, colleges, and departments of education.
I would like the Commission to recognize my remarks in that context.

I would also like to respond, in a sense, to Chancellor Hollander's
concern about why the State is involved at all in setting standards for
teacher education. A recent article in the Journal of Education Policy,
by Hank Levin of Stanford, pointed out the State's responsibility in this
matter. The State has a responsibility to assure quality personnel for
its public, and if this Commission chooses to require two hundred hours,
this Commission and the Legislature has that right. We are, in fact, just
trying to streamline the process, and perhaps make it more viable.

I agree too that it was refreshing Sister Veronice's line-by-
line response to the Commission's Report, and I certainly will be happy
to provide the Commission with the same kind of analysis. But, my testimony
this morning will focus more on policy and planning issues, as they relate
to the Commission's work, rather than a line-by-line response. I assume
that if such legislation is proposed, that wording will be available, and
hearings concerning the legislation will be conducted as well.

My first recommendation focuses on the need for the Commission
to reconcile the intention of the proposed legislation to improve teacher
eeucation with the goals and purposes of T & E. Such legislation should
explicate the necessity of joint commitment by the State Education Department
and the Department of Higher Education to collaborate in developing and
supporting a system for the education of educators.

In recent years, New Jersey has anticipated progressive national
education movements, particularly in relation to the public law of 1975,
Chapter 212, and laws concerning the rights of handicapped children, and
those whose primary and dominant language is not English. In each case,
the enabling legislation has been visionary and provided state and local
bureaucracies with guidance concerning the kinds of administrative regulations

and resources such purposes would require.
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The domunent issued in July falls far short of such legislative
development. As presented, it is my view that the Report is little more
than a limited redesign of teacher credentialing, focusing on the need
for longer initial preparation time; more traditional study in liberal
arts; more practical experience in the public schools; and the need to shift
responsibility for pre-service teacher preparation program evaluation from
one office within the State Education Department to another.
There is no question that teacher credentialing in New Jersey
needs to be overhauled. So is teacher education in need of reform. The
entire nation, as is evident by popular discussion and the media, agrees
that teacher education needs reform. The October issue of Phi Delta Kappa .
points out that colleges of education "will in all probability never overhaul
their programs if each college is to do it alone", and that "forces broader
and more powerful than those of a single college can...break through...to ]
bring about a new day...."
We are hopeful that the work of the Newman Commission will be
impetus for such needed reforms. However, it is distressing to note that
the Commission summarized its recommendations with a list - once again,
as has been pointed out before - of course-by-course requirements and sketchy
administrative rule-making, rather than presenting the policy parameters
by which all teacher preparation programs would be developed and evaluated.
It is agreed that the thorough and efficient education of all children
in New Jersey should be conducted by qualified teachers who have been appropriately
prepared. It is important to note that T & E specified the responsibility
of the State to provide a system which would insure the thorough and efficient
education of all children. This legislation, and its subsequent regulations, v
don't define what such education is with course-by-course specifications.
Rather, T & E is designed as an accountability system which focuses
on the State's responsibility to insure that local districts identify their .
goals; propose measurements of those goals; develop appropriate budgets;
and gives the State responsibility to develop a reporting method, subject
to public review, as well as the responsibility to provide technical assistance
to those areas identified in eudcational needs.
I believe that similar policy parameters explicating the State's
responsibility to design a system of teacher preparation which provides
for accountability, diversity, appropriate resource support, developmental
assistance, evauation and a method of reporting subject to public review,
need to become a more central theme in the Commission's recommendations.
Absent from the Report, and important to correct immediately
and legislatively if we are to ameliorate the training of teachers, is
specific language concerning the collaboration of the Department of Higher
Education and the State Education Department, and their respective roles.
Such collaboration must focus on joint responsibility in the planning,
budgeting, operating, and reporting of integrated programs designed to
meet the pre-service and in-service needs of education personnel as indicated
in T & E legislation, Federal initiatives, and the generally acknowledged
need for continuing professional preparation. This includes the needs
for staff and program development in the institutions of higkter education.

There are existing examples of such legislation in other states,

20



like Florida and Ohio, designed to identify the collaborative role of higher
education and public schools.

There are approximately -- well, I guess 1'd better bring this
up right now. My concern about the lack of specificity of the relationship
between the State Education Department and the Department of Higher Education
is exacerbated by the lack of a separate section in the State Master Plan
for higher education concerning teacher education.

There are approximately 100,000 education personnel employed
in New Jersey, with an estimated 5,000 replacements needed annually. This
labor manpower requirement alone speaks to the urgency of such planning.
Further, initiatives at the Federal level, both in Title V and VI of ESEA
require comprehensive planning by the State for both pre-service and in-
service personnel needs. The State should demonstrate its capability for
interagency planning by adding appropriate sections for teacher education
reform to the Newman Commission Report and in the State Master Plan for
Higher Education.

Consistent with the need for planning is the necessity to anticipate
the effect of social, economic, and program changes on the potential pool
of persons who are currently in the process of becoming teachers and who can
be recruited to become teachers. The section in the report on the expected
effects of the proposed changes needs to include some statement on the
kind of personnel the proposed changes are intended to affect. Much has
been written in recent months, particularly by Timothy Weaver, on the brain
drain in teacher education.

My second recommendation concerns the need for a more accurate
analysis of the current teacher supply-demand picture in New Jersey, and
the need to anticipate the impact of the Commission's proposals. Appropriate
actions and programs should be developed.

Last year, the State employed close to 4,500 new teachers; only
4,300 were produced by all the public and private colleges in New Jersey.
It should be noted that this number represents a forty-two percent decline
since the record production year of 1974. It is important to note that
the State colleges and universities produced eighty-eight percent of all
pre-service teachers in 1974, and eighty-five percent in 1979. The State
colleges alone produce and have consistently produced approximately seventy-
five percent of the total pre-service population. Their capacity to deliver
the kind of quality programs envisioned, given the cuts in personnel and
resources experienced in the last six yers, must be assessed and an appropriate
commitment to allocate resources must be made. One state, Ohio, generally
not identified as abounding in resources for education, has committed ten
million dollars to improve its teacher preparation programs. This amount,
ten million dollars, represents the estimated cost of providing the proposed
extensive field experiences for 4,000 pre-service teachers, as proposed
by the Commission.

MR. JOHNSON: Dean, you are half way through this report and
you have already taken fifteen minutes of your time.

DEAN APPIGNANI: Sorry.

MR. JOHNSON: If you can, consolidate your recommendations to
us, in order that we may have some time for questions.

DEAN APPIGNANI: Okay.
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MR. JOHNSON: Thank you.

DEAN APPIGNANI: I guess my recommendation is that if such funding
is to be available, and if teacher education is to be improved, I believe
that the State can develop programs which will strengthen teacher education
in a way that would get a much better return for the dollar than just by
paying for longer field experiences; that would be one.

Two, I think we need to develop imaginative and encourage imaginative
relationships with the public schools, similar to the Teacher Center models
that are currently being operated by Syracuse University, where teachers
who assist either in providing instruction at in-service centers or supervise
student teachers are given credit banks where they can turn in their voucher
for tuition at the local college.

Also, the State of Florida budgets five dollars per pupil for
in-service training, three dollars of which must be spent at an institution
of higher ed. I think this kind of imaginative legislative development
will, in fact, improve teacher education, much more than a list of requirements
will.

I also think that the Commission should anticipate the kind of
students that will be attracted to a program of such a rigorous presecription.
We are not getting particularly motivated or bright students in teacher
education now. We need to do something about attracting better students.
Loosening the requirements is not going to make better students, but a
state supported system of merit scholars in education or some kind of centers
of excellence in teaching would do something to attract more quality students
into our profession. Okay?

MR. JOHNSON: Your written testimony will, by the way, be entered
in the transcript. Are there any questions?

SENATOR DUMONT: I have one.

MR. JOHNSON: Senator Dumont.

SENATOR DUMONT: Dean, you seem to indicate something that Mr.

Law had in his testimony. You raised the question as to whether there
should be two separate Departments of Education. Are you indicating that
you think one should be eliminated and merged with the other, or that
there ought to be better coordination between the two of them?

SENATOR FELDMAN: The same question has been asked since 1914.
(laughter)

SENATOR DUMONT: It hasn't been answered yet.

DEAN APPIGNANI: I think that the Legislature, if necessary -
although I don't know that it need to - could require that there be joint
planning and collaboration. I don't think that would mean the necessity
of a single agency.

SENATOR DUMONT: I just wanted to clarify your statement.

MR. JOHNSON: Are there other questions or concerns?

DR. MC DONALD: I interpreted - and tell me if I am correct -
the remarks in the early part of your statement to mean that the lack of
detail on how programs should be evaluated ought to be remedied by this
public commission prescribing more carefully what the standards for evaluation
should be.

DEAN APPIGNANI: I don't mean to give that impression at all,
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and further in my testimony I say that we have already been over-evaluated

to death, and that if the Commission has some specific ideas of where there
are problems in teacher education, since seventy-five percent of what is

going on is directly under the purview of the public, and of the State,

that corrections can be made without parallel agencies being created to

set up new evaluation standards. I mean, millions of dollars have been

spent on creating standards, not only by NCAT and NASDTEC, but by the National
Association of Teachers of English, Social Studies, Fine Arts -- you name

it. There are standards that could come out of your ears. This Commission
knows where the problems are.

This Commission can just go to the Chancellor and say, if such
and such a college is not doing what you want it to do, change it; but,
don't create a whole parallel agency. It just seems a tremendous waste
of resources as far as I am concerned.

MR. JOHNSON: Bill, do you have a question?

MR. DYNAN: Assuming that the qualaity of teacher candidates,
as you seem to indicate, is being lowered, how do you think this Commission
could address itself to convincing quality students that they should go
into the teaching field?

DEAN APPIGNANI: I think the situation is critical now in New
Jersey. It is critical in math and in science. You can ask Dean Michelli
about what is going on at Montclair. I think we used to produce the greater
number of secondary school teachers in Montclair. Kean has never been that
active in producing secondary teachers. Right now, instead of producing
one hundred, we are producing five and six.

MR. DYNAN: Excuse me. I think what I am trying to say is, is
the problem of the lack of quality of candidates for teacher education
because of the programs in college or is that because of situations within
districts?

DEAN APPIGNANI: No, I think that the lack--

MR. DYNAN: (interrupting) Or, is it a combination of both?

DEAN APPIGNANI: (continuing) The brighter students have gotten
the message that teacher education is not a good career, and that if you
have higher academic ability, you'd better get the best on your academic
investment and go into another field. Now, I repeat, the situation is
critical, and the State should design some kind of special EPDA program,
which says we will fund you, we will give scholarships for people in science
and math, in particular, if you agree to teach for five years.

MR. DYNAN: Again thought, I am not clear as to whether people--

DEAN APPIGNANI: (interruping) Having a good program doesn't
mean that you are going to attract good students. I'm sorry, that is an
erroneous assumption.

MR. DYNAN: But, does it go to the profession? The good students
are usually induced to go into a program because there is some financial
reward in the profession into which they are headed. That is the fault
of the profession.

DEAN APPIGNANI: Well, that is the fault of your collective bargaining
associations in your relationship with the boards. I would agree that

teaching is not an enviable profession, either from the economic return
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or the status that teachers hold in our society. But, the Commission can't
do anything about that.

MR. DYNAN: That's what I wondered.

MR. JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you, Dean.

We will now hear from Dr. Betty Lou Nixon, Executive Board, New
Jersey Association of Teacher Educators.

D R. BETTY LOU N I X O N: Chairman Johnson, Commissioner
Hollander, Assistant Commissioner Holmes, legislators, concerned citizens,
guests, I am Betty Lou Nixon, President-elect of the New Jersey Association
of Teacher Educators, one of the State units of our National Association,
the Association of Teacher Educators. Accompanying me today is Mr. George
Stang, past President of ATE.

We, as a group, are extremely gratified that you, educational
administrators, legislative leaders, and concerned citizens, are taking
the time and energy to direct your attention to our colleges and universities
of New Jersey that prepare future teacher educators.

The document you have prepared for our consideration reflects
academic thought and future direction for one of our most important resources,
teachers of the future. We agree with the following principals from your
document, namely:

1. Field experience is a necessary component of teacher preparation.

2, Academic standards must be a factor for admission and retention
in a given program.

3. Professional learning should continue beyond the undergraduate
four year program.

4. Teacher education programs should be reviewed periodically
by competent evaluators.

From the same document we have concerns and recommendations for
your consideration, namely:

I. Areas of Practical Experience.

1. We need a mandate from the State Department of Education
urging schools to provide increasing numbers of cooperating teachers to
implement field experiences.

If such a mandate is not forthcoming, it is highly questionable
if we will have adequate numbers of cooperating teachers to implement this
enriched field experience program.

2. We suggest that number six, under Practical Experience, be
modified. Presently the reading is: "The selection of supervisory teachers
will be made jointly by a teacher representative in the school, the building
administrator, and a college representative; however, final responsibility
rests with the college."”

We recommend that the paragraph read the same, but delete the
words: "a teacher representative in the school." Such a selection process
would hamper the administrative process of selecting cooperating teachers.
The teacher representative in the schoolshouldnot be part of the selection
process.

There is presently a statewide method of placement, namely:

1. Requests from the student teacher office of the college are

sent to the school superintendent and in turn to each principal.
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2. A large percentage of placement requests are not confirmed
by the district until the summer months.

3. The cooperating teacher may or may not be part of the district
by the time September arrives.

4. Too many parties in the selection process will create added
problems.

5. The placement process must be flexible.

ITI. Area of Academic Standards.

1. Grade point average should be a determining factor for admission
and retention in the teacher education program. However, the student who
scores high, from the cognitive point of view, may not become a successful

teacher.

The psycho-motor domain, field experience, is important; and
the effective domain - the student's ability to relate to children - is
equally important. Flexibility, sensitivity, patience, and a caring attitude
are necessary components to consider.

2. The recommendation for teacher education candidates to tke
a second non-education major has very serious implications. For example:
at one college, Industrial Education majors have an extremely heavy load
of sixty semester hours in their professional course content work. In
order to meet the requirements of the Commission's proposal, the program
would have to be cut one full year or thirty sememster hours of very critical
technological course content.

In the Elementary Education Program at the same college, the
students have a forty-one semester hour program requirement. To qualify
them for additional certification endorsements, these students presently
must select another mini-track program of eighteen semester hours in special
areas such as: the teaching of reading, instructional media, bilingual
education, mainstreaming education, or gifted and talented education.

The Commission's recommendation which mandates each student to
select a non-education major will act as an obstruction and prevent the
students from taking these additional courses. It also interferes with
other State requirements such as: two reading courses, multi-cultural
education courses, and others. Therefore, we do not recommend a broad
brush approach that mandates specific curriculum interventions.

It is not necessary for the State to require a non-education
major beyond the professional requirements for teacher certification, since
you are already requiring an increased number of credits in general education
at the lower division level.

III. Area of Postgraduate Programs.

NJATE agrees there should be an initial certificate. We also
believe that advanced study is necessary. However, we do not agree that
a Masters degree should come in the first year of teaching. The first
year of teaching should be devoted to becoming an effective teacher in

the classroom, leaning as much as possible from experience and from colleagues.
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We agree that matriculation in a Masters degree program is very
important and desirable. However, a mandated time frame requirement can
be a deterrent to the successful development of teacher skills.

IV. Area of Program Approval.

From page 72 of the original document: "An advisory Council
on Teacher Education shall be established to review and maintain standards
for accreditation and recommend approval of accreditation, and recommend
approval of accreditation reports to the Commissions of Education."

We ask the following questions:

1. What personnel will be involved in the approval process?

2. Who will select the personnel?

3. Who will appoint these personnel?

4. What will be the qualifications for the personnel?

5. What is the purpose of making accreditations ratings public?

6. If a program receives disapproval rating, it will no longer
be permitted to operate, so what does publication of data accomplish?

We do not agree that two categories, approval and disapproval,
are adequate for accreditation. There should be a third category, namely:
to improve, to change, to meet requested standards in order to qualify
for approval or disapproval status. There should be a defined period of
time to satisfy necessary change.

Finally, we recommend that you:

1. Clearly define the function of the Education Coordinating
Council.

2. Clearly define the Advisory Council on the Evaluation of
Teacher Education Programs.

3. Clearly define, "external degree."

4. Revise the document to include consideration of the administrative
problems of what happens to the community college transfer student with
regard to field experiences in the lower division.

5. Review the document in light of present low enrollment in
teacher education programs, and the growing shortage of teachers in the
areas of math, science, english, industrial education, special education,
business education, and areas of technology.

To increase course and time demands at a time of impending teacher
shortages can be counter-productive to the education of the children of
the State of New Jersey.

MR. STANG: I have the addendum.

MR. JOHNSON: I am going to take some questions from Dr. Nixon.
I know there are questions. I am sorry to cut you off, Mr. Stang, but
let's clarify some questions first with Dr. Nixon and then maybe--

SENATOR FELDMAN: President Nixon.

MR. JOHNSON: President Nixon.

DR. NIXON: Thank you. (laughter)

MR. JOHNSON: We will start with Dr. McDonald.

DR. MC DONALD: There are number of these I would like to kind
of go through.

DR. NIXON: Thank you.

DR. MC DONALD: Number two.

DR. NIXON: On what page, sir?
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DR. MC DONALD: The first page.

DR. NIXON: All right.

DR. MC DONALD: Nrmber two on the fist page, you suggest that
number six be modified.

DR. NIXON: Yes, sir.

DR. MC DONALD: I wanted to give you the reason that that teacher
representative was in there, and I would like to hear your reaction.

DR. NIXON: Thank you very much.

DR. MC DONALD: We were told that in the process of picking cooperat-
ing teachers policial influence is sometimes used to pick those cooperating
teachers, and that the political influence comes from the school administrator,
and that if the representative of the teachers was there, there would be
some protection against, to put it bluntly, the principal picking favorites
rather than the best cooperating teachers.

DR. NIXON: Having been in a--

DR. MC DONALD: There is no implication at all that all principals
do that. Repeating what we were told, the suggestion was that there was
a tripartite arrangement. It could be objective and the college is left
with the final say.

DR. NIXON: Okay. May I, first of all, respond by saying I appreciate
your input there. Having taught public school for something like 20 years
before I went to Rutgers College - and I have been there 10 years - I respect
principals. I respect teachers. I respect administrators. And, you know,

I have had student teachers for the greater part of that 30 year span,

and I do not feel that there is political involvement in the selection

of teachers, because I feel that education is the basis for every other
profession. Therefore I feel a responsibility, and I believe that administrators,
and teachers, and principals, feel that same responsibility of selecting

a very competent cooperecting teacher, because it is a partnership between

a cooperating teacher, a student teacher, and a supervisor from the ccllege.

I would hope that my profession, to which I have dedicated my life, would

not stoop to the political domain of selecting cooperating teachers, and

I really do not believe that they do.

MR. STANG: I would like to add a point to that as well. As
a Director of Student Teaching, the bureaucratic problem is that the paper-
work we have is enormous. For example, under the present system we begin
to receive requests for replacement in student teaching in November of
the year before the placement actually takes place. And, from November
through September, we are dealing with the schools to look for confirmations
of placements. Sorry to say that even though there is a statewide formal
agreement between the schools and the colleges, the placement should be
approved no later than April 15th. Many districts do not approve these
placements until the day school opens because teachers are not present
in the summer, and for many other reasons. Now, can you picture our requesting
placements from the City of Newark, with over 200 schools, where each school
might have a teacher representative, and each representative would have
to clear a list of placements? It would be such a bureaucratic impossibility
that we would never get teachers placed.

So, really, you are adding to the administrative problem and

delaying any possible placements we might obtain.
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DR. MC DONALD: Roman numeral IV, I think we thought we were
clear on what personnel will be involved in the approval process.

DR. NIXON: I am not sure we understood that because we came
up with that question. Would you like to clarify that at this point in
time, or should we re-read the document and answer our own question?

DR. MC DONALD: No, maybe I should re-read it. But, I thought
we were clear. I am just wondering. The process essentially leaves it
up to the agency that will be responsible, as the present agency is, to
work out a system for picking people. It just sets some general characteristics
that they ought to have.

DR. NIXON: Okay. Well, we did have specific questions, so maybe
in the revision of the document, that can be more clearly defined.

DR. MC DONALD: What is bothering you about the personnel? Do
you want certain types prescribed?

DR. NIXON: Not really, but having served on those evaluation
teams, I know something about the value of the team selection, and I would
hope it would be a broad-based team selection that would go in there and
fairly evaluate the college or university, and not do it with any political
domain in mind at all.

DR. HOLLANDER: I thought that didn't happen in education.

MR. JOHNSON: You exempted one group from doing that, and now
you are suggesting another group might.

DR. NIXON: I hope I didn't imply that, Chairman.

MR. JOHNSON: Ms. Stilwell.

MS. STILWELL: Thank you. I want to go back, please, to the
point under area number one, about the practical experience and removing
the teacher again.

DR. NIXON: All right. Thank you.

MS. STILWELL: I appreciate your frankness, Dr. Nixon. And,

Mr. Stang, your explanation shed some light on your reason for the problems
it may create in some situations when a teacher has to be on this team.
However, I think even though we want to, and would like to, eliminate the
possibility of politics in education, we have to be realistic and recognize
that there are still some places where it exists. We must protect those
places.

DR. NIXON: Is your chairman hearing that comment?

MS. STILWELL: So, I would like to see those one or two places
protected. Also, since the importance of the job that this student teacher
does, to me, is so closely related to that training teacher, as I call
it - we have various names--

DR. NIXON: That's okay.

MS. STILWELL: (continuing) --I would like to see a teacher
involved with that group, and one who really wants to be there, and is
dedicated to do the job, and not just picked by the administrator. And,
unfortunately, I have seen situations where a teacher has been picked and
told:"okay, this year it is your turn." This defeats the whole process,
but it has happened.

DR. NIXON: It certainly does.

MS. STILWELL: So, therefore, I would like to have at least the
teacher have the right to say no.
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MR. STANG: Catherine, we follow the policy whereby we recommend
that only teachers who volunteer for student teaching be accepted, and
in many schools a list is sent around for teachers to voluntarily sign
up.

MS. STILWELL: Yes, but I will go the whole hog and be honest.

We have some teachers who will do things for a buck too, even if it is

only $50, or whatever it is paying now. Or, they will do it because they
don't do a good job and they look at it in terms of a free period now and
then, and that drives me up the wall because it does more harm than good.

I think that the administrator must be there, and must be honest in selecting
a master teacher, and that master teacher must be willing and want to do

the job. I think they all must be involved.

MR. JOHNSON: Mr. Dynan.

MR. DYNAN: Speaking as a classroom teacher, and perhaps explaining
some of the backgraound to this , student teachers very often come to me
and tell me stories - and this is not just the district in which I work;
it is also other places - about where they are really not made welcome
by the staff, sometimes to the point where they are not even allowed in
the teachers'room. I think it is rather important to have the staff members
since the staff is going to welcome these people, not just the administration.

I don't think in this we are trying to take the prerogative of
the administration in selecting cooperating teachers. I do think what
we are trying to do is make young student teachers feel more welcome by
having somebody from the staff as a participant in their selection.

As I said, I don't think we are trying to take away the prerogative
of the administration, but I feel it is vital in the selection of student
teachers to use someone from the staff who has to work with these young people
and who will be a kind of liaison between them and the staff. I think
that person might serve a very vital function in the selection of a student
teacher.

DR. NIXON: You know, I appreciate your comment, but having worked
with really hundreds of student teachers, I have never seen a faculty room
in which they were not welcome. Maybe that goes back to the college and
the rapport that they had with the respective principal and with the
teachers in the building. So, maybe we are really not talking about the
public schools, but maybe we are talking about it from the higher academic
point of view. Because I have realized that they would be very welcome.

I am very welcome. I eat lunch in the schools that I visit, and I feel
very much a part of them. Even when I was a teacher in the public schools,
and I saw student teachers coming in -- because they are the replenishment
of the teachers presently in the building -~ I found them very accepted.

It dismays me. It makes me very very badly to think that that
would happen in a school, and I hope it is singular.

MR. JOHNSON: Dr. McDonald has a couple of questions.

MR. STANG: Excuse me, but I have two very important items to
support your concern for prescription. We heartily endorse many of the
prescriptions you have here, and as a Director of Student Teaching, I wanted
to make it very clear that at some colleges we are hampered in supervision

by union contractual agreements.
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Regarding the number of visits for supervisors, the practice
varies in the colleges as to how many visits are made by a supervisor to
a student teacher. At the State colleges, some of the colleges have union
agreements, for example, limiting the number of visits to three or four,
which is not nearly enough to do the job. When a supervisor goes out to
visit three times or four times over a sixteen week period, that supervisor
is not performing the task of training - I am talking about the supervisor
from the college - because when you visit three or four times in sixteen
weeks, all you do is to evaluate the progress the student is making, but
you are not performing a training function.

What I am talking about when I say performing a training function
is, when you observe a student teacher and you give a suggestion for improvement,
you have to return shortly thereafter to see whether that improvement is
being implemented or not. Under the current system, that is not done.

It can't be done when you visit only three or four times over a sixteen
weeks period.

So, we feel that it is very important that a visit a week is
be one. It is a very sound and rational recommendation to improve the
process of training of teachers.

The other item is--

MR. DYNAN: Can I speak to that point?

MR. JOHNSON: I'm sorry to cut you off, Mr. Stang. Yes, Mr.

Dynan, proceed.

MR. DYNAN: Just a short one, speaking to that one point, I would
like to answer that. 1In fact, you are the first person I have heard that
has really put it on the line. I think also the supervisor from the colleges
has an opportunity to speak with the cooperating teacher. Not having
had hundreds of student teachers, but having had fifties of them in my
career - many, many student teachers - I found, for example, that if the
cooperating teacher wants to speak to the supervisor, it has to be during
the gymn period or some other opportunity: when he is out of class, etc.

I think there should be an opportunity not only for supervision
by the college person with the student, but also with the cooperating teacher;
it should be kind of a trio working together. I think that is one of
the problems that we have to address too.

MR. STANG: Your other recommendation that--

MR. JOHNSON: I am going to ask Dr. McDonald to speak. Your
other concern I am going to have to ask you to put in writing to this Commission.
Dr. McDonald.

DR. MC DONALD: You are saying something now that is quite different
from what the deans have said.

MR. STANG: Right.

DR. MC DONALD: You are the people who work closest with the
student teachers. You have the direct experience, and you are saying that
you like the idea of the one a week, at least.

MR. STANG: Absolutely. And, the specification of a full semester
of student teaching is the other extremely important point there.

DR. MC DONALD: Do you know for a fact that the number of visits
is actually in any union contract at the present time?
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MR. STANG: It is at our college. There is local negotiation--

DR. MC DONALD: (interrupting) Which one item? Could you identify
it?

MR. STANG: Right. We have local negotiations, as well as State
negotiations. And, our local administration has an agreement to make
three or four visits to the student teacher.

DR. MC DONALD: And, no more?

MR. STANG: It doesn't say that. It just specifies three or
four. ©Now, at other colleges a supervisor is assigned a certain number
of student teachers, but the instruction is that you make as many visits
as are necessary to do the job correctly. But, when a union agreement
says that you make three visits, then that is it.

MC DONALD: Do you know how universal that is in the union
contracts?

MR. STANG: It exists in at least one of the eight State colleges,
and I suspect there are several more. But, the common ratio at all of
the State colleges is close to that.

DR. MC DONALD: I am not speaking of the numbers. If it is a
matter of a union contract, the effect of this is to remove that item from
bargaining. That is an important point for us to know.

MR. STANG: Right.

DR. MC DONALD: If it is just a few places that have been testing
it out and getting it into contracts, and deans and so on have been agreeing

to it, then it may not be that big a matter from the negotiating point

of view.

MR. JOHNSON: Let me pick up on that one gquestion, in terms of
your affirmation of weekly visits -- and surely you are concerned about
the best use of your time -- you are suggesting in that affirmation that

you doubt there will be a discovery of need for less, or that there is
enough agenda, if you will, to have those visits. 1Is that true? What
makes you believe that--?

MR. STANG: Absolutely. Let me specify that. We have, at our
college, a list of sixteen competencies to be checked out for each student
teacher. It is a common feeling among the supervisors that they can't
possibly do that in a visit.

All right. Now, they make three visits, and all they can do
is to check off this list of competencies in the time they are there in
three visits. Now, if they visit once a week, they have to perform a function
of training as well as evaluation. Right now, all we are getting is evaluation,
and the training process is completely up to the classroom teacher, who
is not trained, really. Shehas no training whatever to train student teachers.
She is there every day, but she is not a teacher-educator, per se, by definition.
The teacher-educator at the college is getting out there three times and
only has these times to write an evaluation.

MR. JOHNSON: Dr. McDonald, one more question and then I am going
to have to move on.

DR. MC DONALD: Okay. You are concerned about that category.

You want another category?
MR. STANG: The approval or disapproval. Right.
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DR. MC DONALD: Now, the way the Report is written at the present
time, they have five years in which to meet the basic standards.

DR. NIXON: So, what are they given, a disapproval evaluation
at that point in time?

DR. MC DONALD: If they don't meet the standards within five
years, yes. But, my question is, don't you think five years is enough?

DR. NIXON: I think that is extensive. I think that is too extensive.

DR. MC DONALD: Don't you think five years is enough time to--?

DR. NIXON: (interrupting) I think that is too much.

DR. MC DONALD: That is too much time?

DR. NIXON: That's right. That is why we are saying it should
be approved for disapproved. There should be a third category of maybe
not satisfactory at the time, but a defined period of time -- and certainly
not five years. That is a whole crop of teacher-educators to go through
an unapproved teacher education program. Too long. Would you want your
child - and I ask myself that question - to go through a program that was
not approved? I certainly would not because it would not give them reciprocity
with other states.

DR. HOLMES: Let me clarify that right now in terms of our current
process. The current process is that once a college program is reviewed,
if in fact an area is found not to be satisfactory or approvable, colleges
are given two years and then a team comes back. In many cases colleges
are very anxious to get those approvals, and within a few months, or within
the next school year, they are anxious to have you come back to approve
those programs.

DR. NIXON: Exactly, which is much better than to extend it over
a five year period of time. It is too extensive.

DR. MC DONALD: I still want to ask the same question. There
is an interim period here. Why couldn't the colleges meet the standards
the first time around within that period of time? You are talking really
about what happens once they get tooled up. That is the same thing here;
under the old system, you are operating under the old standards too.

DR. NIXON: Okay. If I may, again, personally return to it,
having done these evaluations. If a college does not have a course to
meet the necessary demands, then we recommend that that course become part
of a curricular. Sometimes that course has to be designed. It has to
go before the course of study, and it must be approved by the college or
university. 8o, you see there is a process time there that happens. So,
that has to be given before it can become part of the curricular.

DR. MC DONALD: Let go over this again, because I know you people
have been involved in evaluations. If the Chair will bear with me.

MR. JOHNSON: Okay. I just need to remind you that if we don't
limit our testimony and limit our questions, it is going to prohibit some
persons from participating today. I am concerned about that. Let's have
one final question. There may be an opportunity at lunchtime to discuss
this. We have already had almost a half hour presentation here and we
are trying to limit it to five minutes.

DR. MC DONALD: Okay, I can talk about it later.

MR. JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.

DR. NIXON: Okay. Let's talk more about it then.
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MR. JOHNSON: I would now like to call on Dr. Theodore Provo
from William Paterson College.

Thank you very much, Dr. Nixon.

DR. NIXON: Thank you, sir.

MR. JOHNSON: I talked to Dr. Provo this morning. There has
been a cancellation by Sister Rita Margaret, and Dr. Provo had called in
to be put on at this time. Dr.Provo.

D R. THEODORE P ROV O: Thank you. I want to introduce John
Huber, my Field Director at William Paterson College.

Instead of spending all of you time going through the "me too's"
in reference to support of many of the things my predecessors have discussed,
I'd like to talk about a couple of different issues.

For example, on page 26, under the Undergraduate Program - Practical
Experiences. I would like to create-- I hope you understand that when
your Commission is gone, the deans are going to be left to try to determine,
or interpret, what your Commission meant to say at the time it meant to
say it. So, I am trying to get through to define a few of your processes.

Let me give you an example: Let's say Mr. Watson is on my staff,
a full professor, and he normally has a twelve-hour academic load. He
has three economic courses. In William Paterson College it is a three
to one ratio, so he has nine student teachers for three hours. He has
a twelve-hour load -- nine teaching hours, and three hours for student
teaching. That last minute registration that he normally gets - he is
normally well subscribed - makes him under-subscribed, and now I have a
full time professor that has a nine-hour load. Under your conditions--
What I have done in the past, I have had the flexibility of being able
to say, "All right, instead of taking nine student teachers, we will assign
you eighteen student teachers. That will give you a six-hour block of
academic courses, and eighteen student teachers, for a twelve-hour load."
Under your conditions, under that statement, it says that I cannot assign
more than ten. So, now I would have a full-time faculty member with only
a nine hour academic load, and I receive the wrath of my President and
everybody else because of that.

You have to give a little flexibility in there and say: "Yes,
we recommend, or suggest, that there only be ten; but in emergencies, you
could exceed that particular amount." Do you see the kind of a problem
that I am tied to? It is a little bit different, but it is a problem that
I am going to have to try and interpret during the course of a year.

The second kind of a problem that reiterates that same type of
thing is on page 34 - Academic Standards Section 15. I would appreciate
it if your Committee could tell me what was the intent of the words:
"performance on examination." I think what you were trying to say is a
‘comprehensive examination,” but as you left it there, it is wide open. If
the intent is to leave it wide open, fine. If you want the deans to interpret
that, that's fine. But, if you don't interpret it for us and we have had
to interpret it, we would have a choice of saying, "performance on examination"
and that could be a comprehensive examination given by the college; it
could be a national teacher's examination giﬁen by the college; it could

be a written or oral examination given by the college. Fine. If you
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want us to interpret that, we will do it. But, Jjust let us know so that
we are not trying to interpret what you wanted us to do before we knew
what it was.

MR. MC DONALD: Excuse me, where are you on page 34? I either
have a different page number or--

MR. JOHNSON: Some of them are working from the first draft.

MR. PROVO: I think that is probably the one I am working from.

MR. MC DONALD: It is Section 152

MR. PROVO: Yes. I think your reference was that you wanted
each student in his senior year to take a comprehensive examination. But,
you don't specifically spell out that you want it done in the senior year;
you don't specifically spell out that you want the college, a national
exam, or whatever. If you don't want to spell it out, fine; we will interpret
it, and we will spell it out within each college. That's all right. Just
let us know that is where you are coming from.

Another issue that I would like to address is the transfer student.
We in Paterson College get hundreds of transfer students, many from colleges
that do not have pre-education programs. Do you want us to say - as you
have said in your preliminary announcement - that these transfer students
must take the same course as you are prescribing to our freshmen and sophmores,
and if so, what do you want us to take out of their program in lieu of
that? If you want us to say that we can accept them temporarily until
they make those requirements, fine.

You are saying that the freshmen must have a certain experience;
you are saying that the sophmores must have certain experience; but, when
they transfer and they are juniors, you make no statement that the junior
college transfer has to take those kinds of courses. If you are implying
that, fine. We will accept that and we will make them take those courses.
But, we will have to look at the program that they have already experienced
and substitute something in lieu of that.

MR. JOHNSON: That's assumed. Go on.

MR. PROVO: All right. I also want to comment on the statement
that was just made moments ago which relates to conditional approved or
unapproved, in reference to page 72, Program Evaluations. You made a reference
here about what is due process and what isn't due process. I have had,
just recently, a situation in which a department had two deaths and a retirement.
If an accrediting agency had come in at that particular time and looked
at that particular department they would have said it was ill prepared
to do the program and that it was very much understaffed. So, if I was
being accredited, I would have gotten a disapproval at that particular
time. You have to leave some kind of an appeal process, or some kind
of a conditional process.

MR. JOHNSON: Chancellor Hollander wishes to speak to that point.

DR. HOLLANDER: Let me speak to that. You know the way accrediting
associations work. An accrediting association comes in and looks at a
strong program. That program may have one, two, five, or eight deficiencies,
but it is fundamentally a strong program. They are going to approve it.

MR. PROVO: Okay.

DR. HOLLANDER: They are also going to recommend to the institution:
"you have some problems here; you ought to take care of them," and the
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institution will take care of them. On the other hand, if an accrediting
association comes in and finds a program that is fundamentally weak and

in chaos, they will disapprove it. And, whether you meet requirement "a"

or requirement "b", they will still disapprove it. I think that is essentially
what the document is saying.

MR. PROVO: Fine.

DR. HOLLANDER: The program is approved or it is disapproved.

Now, it may have weaknesses and it may have strengths, but there is a judgment
that needs to be made as to whether this program is an adequate program,
or it is an inadequate program.

MR. PROVO: I have no trouble dealing with that, because we at
Paterson have been approved by all. It has been given excellent. But,

I just wanted you to define that so I would know where you were coming
from.

Right now I would just like to explain to you that William Paterson
Colleges are in the process, within the college structure, of defining general
education requirement. Each college has done that, and is in the process
of now negotiating within the college to strengthen the general education
requirement. If you suddenly legislate fifty credit hours, without giving
us that flexibility within the fifty, you are taking away the academic
freedom, as perceived by my staff, of being able to bargain, or delineate
their structure with the other colleges within William Paterson College.

Each college puts out a program, and we are trying to iron it out within
ourself to improve our general education requirements. If you were to
legislate what we should have, you would take away -- they perceive that
you are taking away their academic freedom to make their own decisions
concerning that.

Those are some of the different issues that I thought I would
address. I want to thank you for hearing me out.

MR. JOHNSON: Thank you. Are there any other questions? Dr.
McDonald.

DR. MC DONALD: Your first point is a point that has come up
a number of times, and that is that you as the dean have to have flexibility
to move people around. Now, what we are concerned about is the quality
supervision given persons who are doing their student teaching.

MR. PROVO: Right.

DR. MC DONALD: And, I am sure you are too, but you have an administra-
tive problem. How can a faculty member supervise eighteen student teachers
and do an adequate job? Now, if you are going to say that he or she can
supervise eighteen student teachers, and do it frequently and do it regularly
and cover all the different kinds of experiences that the student is
having, I don't know how it can be done.

But, you have a problem. Isn't there some other way of solving a
problem without taking it out on the hides of the people who are learning
how to teach?

MR. PROVO: Very often we try to do that. We would not assign
eighteen unless there was an emergency situation. We normally try to assign
nine, or a three-to-one relationship. Only under dire emergency would
we assign more than that particular number.

But, as you stated, I can't. You don't give me that flexibility
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by saying: You do have some exceptions where you might be able to exceed
this particular number.

DR. HOLLANDER: Of course you do. If an accreditation comes
in and finds that as a general practice you are assigning eighteen persons
per faculty member, they are going to take exception. On the other hand,
if your general practice is nine and somebody identifies a crisis in which
you have to assign eighteen, nobody is ever going to raise a question like
that.

MR. PROVO: I just want you to understand that, and it is stated
so I can fall back on that when I have to make those kinds of decisions.

MR. JOHNSON: Dr. McDonald, do you have any other questions?

DR. MC DONALD: Are you objecting to half the program being general
education?

MR. PROVO: Yes. At present, we at Paterson College, in the
School of Education, have thirty hours. You are indicating that you would
like us to have fifty. We are moving towards fifty, and we would like
to recommend that in this area. But, presently we have thirty. If you
were to come in and say to us, "You must have fifty" that would--

DR. HOLLANDER: Thirty hours of general education is all that
a teacher education major requires?

MR. PROVO: That's correct.

DR. HOLLANDER: Wow.

MR. PROVO: There are some departments that go as high as forty-
five, but the basis for the college is thirty.

DR. MC DONALD: You tied into a kind of political negotiation
that goes on between faculty. Wouldn't your hand be strengthened if the
Commission says you have to have at least half? We have had criticism
of the one-third, one-third, one-third. There seems to be a valid point
there. But, don't we strengthen your hand by giving you some kind of a
statement and you get out of that political process? It is the candidate
himself who is negotiating with the math department about what they ought
to take.

MR. PROVO: Where the difficulty comes in is obviously defining
what a general education requirement is. That is where the campus political
battle takes place.

I am sure if your interpretation of what we are doing is thirty
hours, somebody else's could be forty, depending on what you define as
general education requirements, if you follow my logic.

For example, in some situations, say a health course, some colleges
say a health course is a general education requirement, and others say
it is not. Do you follow what I am trying to say?

So, by some standards we would easily exceed fifty. By other
standards, it would still be thirty. So, it is a question of interpretation
of general education that the college itself would have to deal with.

DR. HOLLANDER: How are these political decisions made? What
is the process?

MR. PROVO: Presently we are working through each college putting
together a package. It now goes to the College Senate, and is being discussed
college-wide. Then it comes back the Council of Deans, and then to the

President, and then on to to yourself and others.
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DR. HOLLANDER: I don't think it gets that far.

MR. JOHNSON: Thank you, Dr. Provo.

DR. PROVO: Thank you.

MR. JOHNSON: I will call at this time Dr. Lillian Putnam. Included
with Dr. Putnam will be Dr. Edward Fry. Dr. Putnam is the Director of
the Reading Clinic at Kean College, and Dr. Fry is the Director of Reading
at Rutgers Graduate School. We are going to combine these two witnesses.

D R. LILLIAN PUTNA M: We appreciate the opportunity
to appear together because we are both representing the New Jersey Reading
Teachers Association.

Many of the previous speakers have addressed the total document.
This morning, since we are representing the Association, we are going to
address our remarks, very briefly, to one particular aspect of this. We
applaud your purpose in trying to upgrade teacher preparation. However,
we believe there is a major potential danger in the proposed plan.

I think the Commission should be aware of the fact that several
years ago the Professional Standards Committee of the NJRA responded to
the great demand from the teachers in New Jersey. That demand was that
all teaching certificates in the State of New Jersey should have, within
their certification, two required courses in teaching reading.

Now, demand came from the teachers in the field themselves who
saw that need, and our Professional Standards Committee brought it to the
Board of Examiners, and it was finally approved and mandated, there were
to be two required courses in the teaching of reading.

Now, as we read your document, we realize that the proposed plan
makes no mention of this fact. People this morning have talked about general
plans and specific plans, and I am drawing your attention to a very small,
specific, but very important, item. Unless it is specifically mandated,
this will be lost.

Reading is a basic skill, and every teacher should be knowledgeable
and able to teach it.

DR. HOLLANDER: Could you tell me why? Why would it be lost
if it is not mandated by the State?

DR. PUTNAM: It would be lost because we didn't have it before
it was mandated, and it would not be certified; it would not be required.

Dr. Fry and I worked five years with the State Board of Examiners to get
that mandate, and it has been very successful.

DR. MC DONALD: This doesn't change the mandate.

DR. HOLMES: Dr. Putnam, if I may, I think that the requirements
as specified in this document in terms of the individual organization, group,
or board that will be responsible for certification in itself is the State Board
of Examiners. I don't believe that the document says in any way that any
requirements that have been in force or active as of now will be changed
in any way. I think the document specifically refers to the programs within
the colleges, and although we have specified that you must take intercultural
relations, as per an act of the Board, you must continue to take reading.
This document is in no way endangers that requirement, if I am correct,
in terms of the members of this Commission.

DR. FRY: That's news to me, and it is good news.

DR. HOLMES: Okay, I'm glad.
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DR. PUTNAM: If that is true, the problem is how to get that
into the required credits, or the minimum of credits that have been put
at the undergraduate level.

DR. HOLMES: Programs will still have to be approved to meet
certification requirements, and if certification requirements are such
that reading and other courses are necessary, I see no reason that one
is substituted for the other.

DR. FRY: Well, I, like a lot of other people, read the preliminary
report and saw no mention of methods courses, and no mention of the reading
requirement, and that is why we are here.

DR. HOLMES: The reading requirement is still on the books.

DR. FRY: And will be on the books with the new credentialing
procedure?

DR. HOLMES: Well, that is something that, once again, when the
Administrative Code is changed after what comes out of the Commission ultimately,
in terms of the final proposals and the adoption, will, at that point,
will be discussed. But, as of this Commission, we have no intent to remove
that.

DR. FRY: I see.

DR. MC DONALD: Do you favor the State Legislature making curriculum
for teacher education programs?

DR. FRY: Well, speaking personally, I think the State Board
is the right place to do it. I am satisfied with the governance of the
State Board of Education.

DR. HOLLANDER: Do you think they should mandate curriculum for
the colleges?

DR. FRY: I think they should have a say in teacher certification,
that's right. Taking this reading requirement into account, the State
Basic Skills Test and the ferment in the inner-cities was largely about
reading, and we couldn't get reading into the Teacher Certification Programs
any way with a shoehorn. Many of the people who testified for you today
were people who were down at the State Board saying, "we can't do it; there
is not enough room in the curriculum. There is no way we can do it." Yet,
the State Board went ahead and passed it and every college is doing it,
and seemingly with very little strain. So, the deans and the department
chairmen went down and testified against this, and fortunately the State
Board supported it. So, I support the State Board. (laughter)

DR. MC DONALD: That is not self interest.

SENATOR FELDMAN: As a legislator, I yield to the State Board. (laughter)
They are professionals. But, sometimes we do get into the act if we feel there is an
action by the State Board and there is something that should be done. The
non-professionals then get into the act. But, I personally share that
same feeling. I would like to leave education with the professionals.

DR. PUTNAM: Good. I believe you should also.

DR. HOLLANDER: Could I ask another question?

MR. JOHNSON: Yes.

DR. HOLLANDER: Do you believe the State Board should mandate
the study of New Jersey history as a requirement for teacher education?

DR. FRY: They could.
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DR. PUTNAM: It is in many other states.

DR. MC DONALD: Really, the point of that question is, where
do you draw the line?

DR. FRY: That is a matter of politics and value judgment.

DR. HOLLANDER: As long as it is not education.

DR. PUTNAM: I belive you should also know that there is no provision
for undergraduate, general method courses. Particularly the diagnosis and
remediation of learning disabilities is presumptuous if it preceeds methods
of teaching for teaching developmental courses.

An intern teacher should learn how to teach normal developmental
courses before coping with disabilities, and I would strongly still suggest
that somehow this be allowed to be mandated into the prescription.

DR. MC DONALD: We have been hearing that same thing about methods
courses. The intent of the document is to only specify those things that
the Commission happens to think needs to be specified.

As I understand it, the way it is written, the assumption is
if you want to put methods courses in, put them in. We keep hearing testimony
that we are too prescriptive. Then somebody will come up and say: "You
haven't done this and you haven't done that." What this document does
in its present form is it lays out those areas where the Commission believes
something should be done. It is not tampering with anything else.

DR. PUTNAM: Well, as we read it, the number of credits allotted
to undergraduate education is so minimal that it is going to be very difficult
and hard to get reading courses into general education courses.

DR. HOLLANDER: Do I hear you saying that what has happened to
teacher education at the undergraduate level is that there have been so
many mandates and so many requirements in the professional field that there
is just no room for liberal arts anymore?

DR. PUTNAM: No, I think what we are saying is that under the
proposal as you have it now, it would be very difficult to get courses
in the teaching of reading into the required number of courses that are
specified.

DR. HOLLANDER: What should be taken out, in your judgment, in
the prescriptive requirements in the Report to make room for reading?

DR. FRY: First of all, trying to educate a teacher in four years
is getting more and more ridiculous.

DR. HOLLANDER: Well, it says five here.

DR. FRY: I would think we should think in terms of it being
a mandatory five year package right off the bat, if you want just a
suggestion. California did it. They did it for secondary teachers twenty
years ago, and for elementary teachers about ten years ago, and it is working
very well.

DR. HOLLANDER: So, you would argue for a five-year baccalaureate?

DR. FRY: No, a five year teaching certificate. A baccalaureate
is something you don't grant, and we don't grant; the college grants the
baccalaureate. But, you have control over teaching certification.

DR. HOLLANDER: I see.

DR. FRY: I would say go to five years because there is just
too much demand on it.

DR. MC DONALD: Isn't that what we have done by requiring the
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Masters degree?

DR. FRY: Sort of.

MR. JOHNSON: Or the equivalent thereof.

DR. FRY: Well--

DR. PUTNAM: You see the problem, with all due respect to the
Commission, is that some of these people will go out and start to teach
with a temporary certificate. They may have had no courses in the teaching
of reading of all, and you are letting them loose in the public schools.

DR. MC DONALD: I really don't understand. I would like you
to help me with this. Right now it is mandated that they have to get it
before they can be certified at any level. That has not been changed.
Are you anticipating that as these changes are made somehow that mandate
is going to be undone?

DR. FRY: That's our fear.

DR. PUTNAM: What guarantee do we have that it will be in?

MR. JOHNSON: Dr. Holmes.

DR. HOLMES: I think a clarification is necessary because we
have been battling with this question most of the morning. There currently
exist, and you are familiar with this, regulations for certification which
outlines the numbers of courses -- and that is the other route, outside
of the approved program. That document in my opinion would no longer be.
What we are saying is that individuals who are taking courses to become
certified and adding up these courses and coming up with a number and saying
they are now certifiable -- that process will no longer exist. If I understand
correctly, your fear right now is in terms of the State Board Administrative
Code. That is where those six credits currently exist, in the code that
they should take these six credits, and in the regulations that they should
take these six credits.

If, in fact, that document will no longer exist, the other route
to certification - the minimum requirements - concerns you in that those
six credits which are now required are not mandated in the approved program
route outside of the minimum requirements that are requested of you in the
docuement. That is your fear right now.

I don't think that decision regarding the total elimination of
the minimum requirements--

DR. HOLLANDER: It becomes an equivalency problem.

DR. HOLMES: That's right; it becomes an equivalency problem,
and I don't believe that the Board has currently, firmly addressed that
yet, to my understanding, in terms of the total elimination of those requirements.
That's our problem.

DR. MC DONALD: How about a statement like this? I just want
to get your reaction. This is not a commitment, because I can't make a
commitment. It would say something like: "This document does not in any
way undermine the present requirements for certification."

DR. FRY: That would be very helpful.

DR. PUTNAM: That would be reassuring to the whole State.

MR. WATSON: But, clarification only by way of implication. There
is a pervading fear across the State that because of the extensive prescriptions
of this Commission that something has to go, so these people are expressing

legitimate fears, and they are just the top of the iceburg.
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DR. PUTNAM: That's right.
MR. WATSON: Something has to go. I don't know, Mr Chairman,
how any member of this Commission, or even the Commission itself, can assure
these people that reading is not going to go. So, I think we ought to
just say we will discuss that later on.
MR. JOHNSON: The Chancellor would like to make a point too.
DR. HOLLANDER: You have a good point there. I think we are
discussing an issue here that seems to have come up. If Paterson now has
a program of study which requires only twenty-five percent of the course
work in the arts and sciences, and this Commission recommends - and presumably
the Board adopts this, based on the Commission's recommendation - the requirement
for fifty percent in the arts and sciences, then Paterson is going to have
to reevaluate their curriculum, and eliminate whatever professional courses
it now gives in order to be able to provide that broad-based education
for the potential teachers. I guess the value judgment that this Commission
has made is that fifty credits in the arts and sciences is critically important
for anyone who is going to teach in schools, and the colleges need to design
a program that accommodates that fundamental requirement. I guess the
issue gets joined in that sense.
DR. FRY: Incidentally, very few teachers at Rutgers have a major
in education; most of them major in something else.
MS. STILWELL: We have two other folks here, Dr. Edward Fry and--
MR. JOHNSON: Dr. Fry is at the table there.
MS. STILWELL: Oh, you are here.
DR. PUTNAM: We are Putnam and Fry.
MS. STILWELL: What about the other one from Montclair? Is that
person here? Are you thinking along the same lines? I was just wondering
if all the reading people have the same concerns.
MR. JOHNSON: Dr. Putnam and Dr. Fry have expressed that concern.
DR. PUTNAM: We joined together already this morning.
MR. JOHNSON: Okay. We thank you for your testimony.
DR. PUTNAM: Thank you.
DR. FRY: Thank you.
MR. JOHNSON: I would like to call on Dr. Dorothy Welle, Coordinator
Undergraduate Reading Program at Kean College.
D R. DOROTHY WELLE: As you will notice from my statement,
I am appearing under a number of hats. I am the Vice President-elect of
the New Jersey Reading Association, the Coordinator of the Undergraduate
Reading Collateral Program of Kean College, a New Jersey permanently certified
teacher, a reading specialist, and a learning disability teacher consultant,
and as a concerned citizen for the future of education in New Jersey.
In my review of the Commission's report, I have been pleased
to note a return to some standards which existed when I graduated from
the Baccalaureate Program in 1963, namely the return to a greater emphasis
on general education, an expansion of the time spent in the classroom at
the upper levels, and a return to initial certification rather than permanent
certification at the conclusion of an undergraduate program.
However, I did have two areas of concern as I read the document.
It appeared to me as if there might be a significant imbalance between
the time allotted to practical experience and the time allotted for students
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to obtain background knowledge and understanding of the scope and sequence
of the content that will be involved in teaching.

Practical experience, as has been previously said by some others,
does not a teacher make. It is the application of theory into practice
that is important, and it seemed to me there was a scarcity of time allotted
for that.

In the statement I have given you, it appears, as I interpret
this, that there are 50 semester hours of general ed; 32 semester hours
in a non-education major; and then 32 semester hours is spelled out as
one full year of supervised practical experience. Now, in one place, on
page 34, it says: "This 32 semester hours shall be one-quarter of the
total of -- I am assuming 128 semester hours, total. That appears to be
divided in this way: Three semester hours pre-admission to teacher ed;
180 hours at the junior level, on page 27; and then, on page 34, I think
it is, you say, "...a full semester, full time, senior teaching experience."
Now, if we interpret that back into hours - six hours a day, five days
a week, for sixteen weeks - we would get 480 hours of full time practical
experience.

You then go on to designate 16 semester hours - I am using your
quote - "...one-eighth of the total semester hours for graduation..." for
study in the field of education in psychology, and you seem to spell out,
very specifically, the content that would be appropriate there.

DR. HOLLANDER: Could you give me the page reference on that?

MR. JOHNSON: It is on page 33.

DR. WELLE: Yes, page 33.

DR. MC DONALD: Would you also label when you are talking about
working and when you are talking about credit hours?

DR. WELLE: Yes.

DR. MC DONALD: I think we have asked for 180 credit hours.

DR. WELLE: No, you say 180 hours, and I am assuming that means
actual hours in the field. I think that is what you said, on page 27.

MR. JOHNSON: Okay. Let's see if we can go through the whole
testimony, and then we can question Dr. Welle.

DR. WELLE: The time spent in practical experience, it appears
to me, is twice that allotted to attaining knowledge and understanding
areas of instruction, and these appear to be rather fuzzily placed in the
document. For instance, on page 28, in connection with the senior student

teaching experience, you say: '...should design appropriate theoretical
and methodological work to accompany senior student teaching." One means
of this might be to integrate methods courses into the field experience
component. However, you then say, "...full semester, full time student
teaching," which appears to leave no way to do that.

The second area of concern speaks to the area of content knowledge,
but again it is specifically directed to the area of math and reading.
The Department of Education is presently engaging in program review in
many of the schools, and in their document which is guiding that review,
I am quoting from a chapter on Summary of Research, page 3: "A variety
of alterable staff characteristics has been identified by researchers as

important contributors to student learning. A teacher's knowledge of the
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content area he or she is responsible for teaching is one factor. The
rationale is that the teacher who knows reading or math content is better
able to teach it to students. Further evidence of the importance of teacher
knowledge of content area comes from a study comparing high and low performing
schools - Delaware Department of Public Instruction, 1977. A salient characteristic
of the teachers in high performing schools is their knowledge of the structure
and substance of the subject being taught."

A few years back, as was mentioned by Dr. Putnam and Dr. Fry,
it had been mandated by the Board of Examiners that a minimum of six semester
hours in the teaching of reading should be required. There.appears to
be no way in which this standard would continue to be implemented in the
Commission's Report. I would respectfully urge the Commission to review
its standards toward this goal, if we are specifying in any area, as appears
to be done under this sixteen semester hours in education of psychology.

DR. HOLLANDER: Where do you see that?

DR. WELLE: On page 33. Just let me finish, and then we will
go back to that. I would urge that you consider including six semester
hours in the basic skills area of reading development, and also give consideration
to the inclusion of semester hour requirements in the area of preparation
for the teaching of mathematics skills, especially at the elementary level
where teachers are doing a comprehensive teaching job.

All right, now let's look at that. You wanted to look at page--

MR. JOHNSON: Thank you for your testimony. Now, let's have
some questions. Dr. Hollander.

DR. HOLLANDER: Yes. You keep referring to this paragraph on
page 33 as educational psychology.

DR. WELLE: Yes.

DR. HOLLANDER: First of all, it says, "Field of behavioral sciences",
which I have learned includes a wide variety of behavioral sciences, or
which psychology, not experimental but behavioral, might be one. So, part
of the field of psychology is applied here. It says, "Courses taken in
fulfulment of this requirement should provide studies in the area of child
and adolescent development, principles of teaching and learning" - which
may or may not be psychology; it may be sociology as well - "group processes
and behavior management" - which could be any number of disciplines outside
of psychology - "abnormal psychology" - which is clear ~ "diagnosis or
learning disabilities, construction interpretation of tests, and personality
theory." I don't know why you would draw from that that that is educational
psychology.

DR. WELLE: Yes, and I think you have a point there, that perhaps
my designation of educational psychology was too narrow.

DR. HOLLANDER: This goes through the whole behavioral science
field.

DR. WELLE: Yes, I agree. However, you do, under those sixteen
semester hours, spell out, very specifically, the types of courses which
you will consider, none of which--

DR. MC DONALD: No, no, that's not true.

DR. WELLE: It seems to.

DR. MC DONALD: It just lists some examples.
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DR. WELLE: ‘"courses taken in fulfillment of this requirement

should" - should - "provide studies...."
DR. MC DONALD: Big difference -- "...should provide studies...."
DR. WELLE: "...in the areas of...."

DR. MC DONALD: I think we should pursue this at the practical
level because it was pointed out to me that the ed psych courses include
some of the topics that would be in there. And, a staff member pointed
out that what we have done is allot 15 credits to that body of knowledge.

We are talking about a body of knowledge, a rich background in the behavioral
sciences. It is not-- It seems to me it doesn't say you have to have

a course in adolescent psychology. Certainly somebody teaching in high

school should have a course -- course material, course content, or something -
in adolescent psychology, but that doesn't say you have to have 3 hours

of adolescent psychology.

DR. WELLE: However, in that area there is no mention made of
specificity of content for methodology, it doesn't seem to me. That does
seem to be addressed on page 28 - if you look at page 28 - to which I referred
before , in connection with a senior student teaching experience, a full
time, full semester teaching, as spelled out on page 34. It says here
that the college faculty and supervising teachers should design appropriate
theoretical and methodological work to accompany this practice. But, it
also seems to say that the student should be engaged in full time, full
semester teaching, and I am not quite sure where you see our being able
to teach methodology courses under the statements that you make here.

Perhaps you intended in some way--

DR. MC DONALD: No. You have 12 units of field work in the junior
year. What are you going to do with those 12 units?

DR. WELLE: I am not quite sure where you find that in the document.

DR. MC DONALD: Leo, can you help me on that?

MR. KLAGHOLZ: It is specified in terms of context hours. Credit
hours were used consistently.

DR. WELLE: I think that is one of the problems that I was having
as I went through it. 1In one place you speak of semester hours, and in
other places you speak of number of hours, and it makes for difficulty
in determining exactly what the Commission means.

MR. KLAGHOLZ: It is a fraction of a total.

DR. WELLE: Yes, and I think that makes it very difficult for
us to see how we are going to design a program which would get to some
of the points that I have raised.

MR. JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you, Doctor Welle.

We will now hear from Mr. Evan Goldman, President of the Bergenfield

Education Association.
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EV AN GO LDMAN: My name is Evan Goldman. I am President of the Bergenfield
Education Association. I am a member of the National Education Association's Board
of Directors. I am Chairperson of the Science Department at Bergenfield High School
and, most important, I am a classroom teacher.

I have read your preliminary draft and I realize that many hours of
study and a great deal of concern went into the preparation of your preliminary report.
I would like to thank you for your concern and your time.

One of my concerns, however, is that non-practitioners are determining
what the requirements are for teacher certification and preparation. I feel that
thp majority porgion of this body is only generalizing from what they idealize as
being the best way to produce educators who will be able to cope with the many problems
thag they will have to face when they enter the classroom as first-year teachers.

Non-practitioners can only guess. Past practitioners can only try
to remember. But, keep in mind that!practitioners face these problems on a day to
day basis.

When is the last time you sat with a student who confided in you a
personal problem, a death wish, that the world was against them, that no one wanted
them, asking you for help? Are you close to and aware of the current problems that
young people are facing, or are you theorizing as to what they may be? In your recommendation
#8, under Practical Experience, I cannot fathom how you can use ten years. That is
more than half of the student's life.

Trenton based committees, boards and supervisors are CAPing the schools,
they are PIPing the teachers; producing non-funded mandates for the schools and contributing
to the general decline of the majority of school districts in the State of New Jersey.

People, we are being CAPed; we are being PIPed; we are being RIFed;
but we are not encouraged.

I feel strongly about this word, "encouraged." I'm sure you want your
monumental task supported by all educators--or do you? You've made your research
based on the charge, page 1, "This Commission was created because of dissatisfaction
with the quality of teachers graduated from the institutions of higher education in
this state." Who was dissatisfied? Was there teacher input?

The introduction on page V states, "A necessary pre-condition for quality
education in our public schools is quality teaching in our college preparation programs."
Is this your statement of dissatisfaction?

The Commission is stating that the well prepared teacher is the teacher
with a Master's degree and with additional course work. Advanced degrees are not
going to make the difference in teacher preparation. It may fill the colleges, but
it is not going to produce quality teachers.

Why not ask the teachers what they feel is needed in the preparation
of future classroom teachers?

I feel that they need more hands on experience; more involvement in
the day to day problems that the classroom teacher encounters. Philosophy of Education,
History of Education, courses of this type are not of any use to the classroom teacher.
They need humanistic education combined with hands on experiences.

I have seen many first-year teachers come . into the school without any
preparation in handling the day to day problems. A computer can presenc the multipli-
cation tables, important dates in history or vocabulary--no feeling--no understanding--
just a body of knowledge without any awareness of the individual needs of the young

people.
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A Master's degree or PHD does not guarantee that the teacher has those
qualities needed to understand the needs of the student. Those degrees are just meaningless
pieces uf paper when it comes to helping a young person cope with everyday problems.

On page 33 of the report, Standard X, Theoretical Studies, you state that 1/8 of the
studies should be in this area. That is approximately five courses, one of which

may be Group Processes, a humanistic type of education. On page 21 and 22, you state,
"Our position...and understanding for the development of a humane person." Your program
leaves very little room for the future educator to become that humane person. You

are fairly specific in your recommendations in most areas, but here, on page 22, you
leave the particulars up to each faculty.

During my teaching experience, 1t has been my privilege to teach at
the college level at Fairleigh Dickinson University, where I have been an adjunct
faculty member for the past sixteen years. I taught a course at one time, Science
for the Elementary School Teacher. This course, at one time, was a required course
for the elementary education major. Several years ago, this course became an elective.
Removing the requirement takes a very important course away from the future teacher.
Elementary teachers are required to teach all subjects to their classes. Their preparation
in each subject is minimal, at best, and content courses are not stressed.

Your General Education Standard VIII, of 50 credits, page 31/32, has
to be more closely combined with your Major Discipline Standard IX. There should
be a different emphasis for elementary preparation. You do make some reference to
that on page 33, but you do not carry it to a strong conclusion. Elementary school
teachers need more general education requirements, not a major discipline. So much
is expected of the elementary classroom teacher--areas of mathematics, science, social
studies, reading and you can go on and on. They need more strong preparation in those
areas to help them in thecir presentation of all areas to their students.

I feel that you can adjust your Theoretical requirements to be co-
requisite with field experience so that the group apprcach can be used in discussing
problems encountered and suggested ways of handling these problems. More time is
needed in field experience. However, I don't feel that 1/4 of their preparation should
be used for field experience. Combine Theoretical Studies, X, with Field Experience,
XI, especially Group Processes and Behavior Management. The other academic theoretical
studies can be left for graduate studies if the teacher chooses to pursue further
study.

We are the most accountable profession in the world, and we seem to
have the leasc responsibility in determining our needs and our future.

Why must teachers and the rest of the world always be on a collision
course? Why can't we sit together and do a needs assessment and jo.ntly determine
the needs? I see some latent hostility in the report. 1In reading the section dealing
with the evaluation of programs, there is a comparison and discussion of NASTEC versus
NCATE. The underlying choice, it seems to me, for choosing NASTEC over NCATE is because
the Nationali Education Association is involved with NCATE. You make two references
to that on page 61 and page 65. There must be an objective evaluation that should
not be colored by who is supporting the program. It appears from some of those statements
that if NJEA-NEA would offer you gold, you would turn it down.

Let me close by stating: Yes, I am a teacher advocate. But, please
keep in mind that I am dedicated to my profession. I don't believe that degrees ure
going to make a person more qualified to be a teacher. I believe wha. has been demonstrated

to me by an administrator that I respect very highly, my superintendent. Common sense
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is a strong key to the future of our profession. Caring for the young people we are
charged to teach is a strong key to the future of our profession. A piece of paper
is not going to give you this. Encouragement, support, respect and assistance go

a long way in helping to produce a teacher.

MR. JOHNSON: Questions or comments? Mr. Dynan?

MR. DYNAN: This is just a question of clarification. Mr. Goldman,
you said that we have non-practitioners on the Newman Commission.

MR. GOLDMAN: I said the majority.

MR. DYNAN: Yet, may I remind you that the practitioners on this Commission
are Mr. Murray, Mr. Watson, Mrs. Holmes, Mr. Dynan, Mrs. Stillwell and Commissioner
Hollander. You also said, why don't we ask teachers. The sub-committee on this Commission
went out and did ask teachers. We visited colleges throughout the state; we visited
high schools throughout the state; we visited elementary schools throughout the state.
We spoke to teachers; we spoke to administrators; we spoke to student teachers and
we spoke to the college students and this report represents the conclusions that we
drew from speaking to those people. So, I think, in the initial statement that you
made, I think maybe your facts are a little foggy.

MR. GOLDMAN: No, I don't believe my facts are a little foggy. I believe
differentiating between a present practitioner and a past practitioner is a valid
statement. I feel that you may have gone all over the state to get your testimony,
Fine. I still feel that you should have sat down at some time with the major
representatives of the teachers of New Jersey, got the input from that Association,
and spent a little more time in getting input from teachers.

MR. JOHNSON: Let me speak to that, Mr. Goldman. I have done that
personally myself. 1I've had several luncheons; I've sat at licensure groups; I've
spoke at NJEA conventions. I have continually affirmed and I think other members
of the Commission have affirmed an openess to hearing persons out of their concerns.
There, perhaps, have been times that we haven't sought persons out. That is a reality
of human life. I think, just in terms of the demands for schedules and time, there
hasn't always been time for the members of the Commission, but I don't think there
has been anyone who has addressed the Commission or attempted to address the Commission
who has had a deaf ear turned to them by members of this Commission. I think the
Commission has --and I commend the Commission for functioning in that capacity.

I must say, personally, for myself again, it took me a while to get aboard in terms

of understanding and being appreciative of agenda and it is still taking me that time
because I am one of the few persons who is not a practitioner, although I would say
that I am one of the persons of any member of this Commission or anyone in this room
who continually hears people in terms of their problems and deals with those problems.
So, I don't see myself as a person who doesn't have the skills and the abilities not
to be concerned and sensitive to problems. I don't think that the teacher profession
has & corner on the market of being the most valuable vocation in the world. I think
all vocations are important and whoever we are and whatever vocation we walk in life,
we need to remember that in terms of our concerns and sensitivities to society as

a whole. I'm sorry that teachers, and I am appreciative that teachers are feeling
maligined in some ways as an institution in our society, in terms of some of the woes
of society. But, I don't think, again, that is even unique to teachers. My suspicion
is that that is happening in many areas, for many vocations, persons that are being
critical. If the report--and I'm not sure that I would totally affirm that the original
thesis of this, dissatisfaction with the teacher profession, but I would like to think
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this report proports to say that teachers, like any other vocation, could better themselves
and out of that kind of affirmation and the state's role in understanding clearly,
as defined by the Constitution, it is the state's job to educate the children of our
state. I think, with that kind of motive, the report has tried to say, how can we
becter the profession? Teachers are telling me continuously that they themselves
are taking it upon themselves to get those worthless degrees, that some teachers are
continuing to suggest: How dare this Commission recommend a worthless degree. How you
would feel if--and I keep wondering about this if you are all in this thing together--
how would you feel, as a teacher, if we broadly said that all degrees from high school
were worthless or that degrees from college were worthless? I can't see that any
degree is worthless, 1n a sense. There is always some question about its relevancy,
but at une point you talk about the need to help students understand all the problems
that they face in life and I still firmly believe that part of that comes through
the process of learning. A teacher too has to continuously learn and I don't see
that cthe Commission is being irresponsible in suggesting some minimum guidelines,
raising our standards, to better the teaching profession, to suggest some minimum
guieslines for standards.

MR. GULDMAN: Jack, I agree with you and I think that was well-stated.
I'm not being facetious about that. I think your statement was well put. I think
that after reading the Commission's report for the third time, I began to feel much
better about the report. As a classroom teacher, I am very concerned with what is
going on presently and it goes to the beginnings of the Commission. You know we can
be blamed for everything. I'm trying to figure out when we're going to be blamed
for the Chicago f{ire and the San Francisco earthquake.

MR. JOHNSON: It was a cow that knocked that over.

MR. GOLDMAN: Well, they will say that we taught the cow how to kick.
What I am trying to get across to you is, you asked me if i think the papers are worthless.
In order to get increased pittances froin the board of education, we have to get these
documents. That's called salary. I feel very strongly about putting together a body
of knowledge. There are items I would like to pursue for use in my classroom. I have
done a self-evaluation over the years and I have come away with a very warm feeling
for a humanistic education. My wife is in that area. I have worked with many people,
Jerry Edwards from the Adelphi Program, some people on the Monclair campus and I have
found that the humanistic approach, understanding what people have to say, is best.
I think there has to be a sensitivity, maybe, in commissions of this sort. We have
an adversary relationship and I try not to have an adversary relationship, though most
people don't think that. There is instilled, inborn in me an adversary relationship
and if we were more sensitized to each other's needs, I think we could work better
together. You have a monumental task, as I said, and we have a monumental task, and
we're going to work to protect ourselves. That's the name of the game and if anyone
is not going to protect himself in this profession, they don't deserve to be in this
profession. I think self-evaluation is important. I know that many of my colleagues
do a needs assessment, self-evaluation. It doesn't have to be dictated from a commission.

MR. DYNAN: Are you refering to teachers in general or are you refering
to an association or yourself?

MR. GOLDMAN: I'm talking about teachers in general. I'm talking as
a teacher.

MR. DYNAN: Are you speaking for all teachers?

MR. GOLDMAN: No, I can't speak for all teachers.
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MR. JOHNSON: We are aware of that. Dr. Hollander?

DR. HOLLANDER: This paper, I think, was very carefully framed to provide,
at the graduate level, for a wide variety of options and a wide variety of approaches
to the completion of that equivalency. It does not require a Master's degree. It
talks of equivalency. It does define six standards of competency that every program
should cover, but it doesn't preclude. 1In fact, that list is really very short. It
really facilitates a teacher like yourself or a teacher candidate, if you will, right
now to define a program at the post-baccalaureate level that included humanistic studies--
you can do it through independant studies or attendance through another institution--
which would meet the requirements specified in this report. That's not being understood
and maybe the report is not clear on that.

MR. JOHNSON: Mr. Goldman's statement, again, affirms what we heard at
the second hearing and at the first hearing and I think we're going to expand. I know--
at least it will be my recommendation to expand on that statement of what that external
degree should be.

MR. GOLDMAN: What I am trying to say, very basically, is that student
teaching experience would be co-requisited with the humanistic, group dynamics, programs
of that sort so that the people are assisted. I heard one of the earlier testifiers
make a statement something to the effect that the classroom teacher was not able to
fully direct or fully assist the student teacher in his or her preparation as a teacher,
which I totally disagree with because we are the people in the field. We're looking
for backup systems to help us and the person that's going to go into education is
going to work with us in the classroom and we're going to give them the best of what-
ever we have faced. We've learned from our experiences and we're going to help those
people learn from those experiences. It is a very important concept. But, to have
someone set themselves at the college level or graduate level and say that we are
the ones that do it and the teacher should be eliminated from that, I disagree.

I mean, we're not just clones. We're someone who is going to do a very important
servict for education and don't discount us because we're not going to let you.

DR. MCDONALD: Our position was not the one that was stated here.

MR. GOLDMAN: I know that. I think that we have a lot to offer the
Commission and I think that the Commission has recognized that there is a lot of similar
concerns and similar concepts proposed, but don't discount us because we're going
to be there every time you have a hearing and we're going to be there to offer. I
hope that's accepted in that context.

MR. JOHNSON: Mr. McDonald has a statement.

DR. MCDONALD: There are two things that I think should be said for
the record. One is about the teacher representation on the Commission. There is
teacher representation. As somebody who helped with the preparation of this draft,

I know that we listened very carefully to what they said and tried to fit that into
the document wherever it could be. I think it has to be recognized that that was
a formal recognition of the teacher in the work of the Commission.

The other thing that I think I can help clarify and also put in the
record is that that material on page 65 to which you refered about the NCATE choice.

The history of that is this. There are two processes for accrediting, as you know,
NASDTEC and NCATE. We gave the pros and the cons of both. There is a political issue
is raised about NCATE, at the present time, that it is an NEA organization, in part,
and it is funded by NEA and influenced by it. NEA people are on all of its boards

and so on. The teachers in the colleges in the State, at the present time, are
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represented by the AFT. So, to choose NCATE automatically, would seem to put the
teachers in the colleges in a difficult position. That's one of the reasons why,
in effect, the line of reasoning there simply leads to choose neither one at the present
time and set up a totally independent process organized by the Chancellor and the
Commissioner of Education. That's the logic behind that. It was not an attempt to
knock NEA. It was more an attempt to be careful about all of the implications of
that kind of a choice.

MR. GOLDMAN:. I appreciate that comment.

MR. JOHNSON: Thank you, Mr. Goldman. Any other questions or comments
for Mr. Goldman? (No response) Mr. Goldman, we do thank you for your participation.

We will adjourn for lunch at this time. We will return at 2:30.

(at which time a luncheon recess was taken)

MR. JOHNSON: Could we get started again? My perception is that we
are going to try--it looks like we've got a couple cancellations here. We hope to
not only here all of those who are scheduled to speak today, but several who asked
to be on the waiting list. We hope to be able to recognize those individuals later
this afternoon. I remind you that we would hope that you could limit your remarks
to five minutes and then we will expand on that five minutes in terms of questions
of clarity and discussion between Commission members and the persons making the testimony.
So, that being said, we would like to welcome Dr. Howard Maxwell, President of the

Association of Independent Colleges and Universities. Dr. Maxwell?

HOWARD B. MAXWEULUL: I have two papers here, one which will not be read, but
which is more specific as to our suggestions for this report.

I am Howard Maxwell, President of the Association of Independent Colleges
and Universities in New Jersey and I am accompanied here by Sister Ann John, who is
the Vice-President of the Association and who was President of Caldwell College for
ten years. This Association represents the 16 fully accredited, general education,
independent institutions in our State. Our member institutions sponsor 15 of the
33 teacher education programs in the state. I speak to you today on their behalf
and I thank you for the opportunity to do so.

In opening this testimony on the Commissions's Preliminary Report,
let me say that we share with you a deep concern for the future education of the youth
of New Jersey. We appreciate the task with which you have struggled since 1978 and
we commend you for the report which you have produced. That we do not agree with
everything in the report does not preclude out understanding of an appreciation for
what you hope to accomplish through your recommendations.

We must, however, take exception to the introductory sentence of the
report itself, which makes a sweeping condemnation of the quality of all tedachers
from the institutions of this state. We are aware of programs in our institutions
that prepare teachers who are very much in demand because of the performance in school
districts by the graduates from these programs. Therefore, since we cannot agree
with the fundamental basis on which the study was built, we must further question
and object to some of the recommendations.

Even if there might be dissatisfaction with the present training programs

for prospective teachers, we are alarmed by many of the methods proposed for solution.
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We question the extent of the role that State government would play
in the establishment of standards and continued assurance of program quality. This
nation has traditionally relied upon individual ingenuity and local initiative to
resolve much of society's problems. A growing state bureaucracy cannot assure an
effective, equitable teacher education program. In European countries, where there
has existed for a long time centralized ministries of education which could dictate
the curriculum and even the time of day that each course was taught, there is a movement
toward decentralization of education and they are emulating the American way of controlling
education--at the local level.

We should learn a lesson from our European friends and avoid the mistake
of centralizing educational policy in the State House. We first suggest that if the
Legislature wishes to play a role in setting criteria for teacher education, that
those standards be minimal. It could legislate broadly by requiring liberal arts
and a concentration in one area of the liberal arts; call for student teaching and
a field experience. But, our society has long recognized that the faculty should
set graduation requirements and the standards for individual programs.

Professor Burton Clark of Yale University wrote about the growing
centralization of education regulation in the November, 1978 issue of Change Magazine.
He noted that a central bureaucracy cannot effectively coordinate higher education.

To be responsive to societal needs in the next two decades, we must provide for many,
rather than one, reactions to new problems. We must have quicker responses to such
problems. We must have a system that allows for myriad adaptations to special contexts
and local conditions. This preliminary report would prevent such flexible responses

to societal needs.

Further, we view this preliminary report as being too specific in
setting curricular requirements and believe it would be advisable to recommend a move
toward even more control of program designing to be placed in the hands of the faculty.
As student bodies become more diverse in their composition, older students and students
with varying ethnic and economic backgrounds, we think faculty members will better
serve society by designing student programs that take into account the students experience
and previous training. Thus, to meet the needs of society and the individual student,
it will be important to encourage study programs that are tailored to the individual.

As an association of colleges and universities that has teacher education
programs of recognized quality, we are unaware that there are a few programs in the
state that may be of questionable gquality. Nevertheless, human nature being what
it is, it is easy to find dissatisfaction among teachers and with the educational
courses. We suggest that the way to improve teacher education is to concentrate on
raising the standards of those programs that may have been judged below par rather
than establishing a new criteria that is of questionable worth.

The great virtue of an independent group of colleges and universities
is that we are independent of state control and we believe that the government colleges
and universities should also be subject to minimal dictation from the state on academic
matters. The role of a state department of higher education and of a department of
education should be that of coordinating bodies in matters of planning and setting
of minimal standards of academic quality; other matters of governance and the setting
of standards should be left to the colleges and their governing boards. Such a relationship
between the academy and the state has been forged since colonial times and it has
the virtue of keeping politics out of education, and providing the academy with the
freedom to teach, for students to learn, and for basic research into the unknown.
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This report has created apprehension on our campuses and appears to
be part of a largpr movement to have the state mandate acdemic program review and
to set the rules by which that review should be done. We note that it would be easy
for the state to end any teacher education program if the recommendations of this
report are followed. We object to this arrangement because we find the recommendations
in this report interfere with the perogatives of the academy and go far beyond the
setting of minimal standards for licensing.

In summary, we say, once again that as teachers we seek the best education
for our state's citizens. Teacher education has not feen held in high esteem by American
society. It has been unfairly blamed for many of the educational shortcomings of
our citizens. If we wish to improve the gquality of teachers, it can best be done
by improving the incentives for the teacher to instruct well and for the student to
gladly learn. Our society must learn that the answer to every problem is not the
creation of ever more regulations but the creation of a climate in our society that
values learning. If there are any guestions--

MR. JOHNSON: Any comments or questions?

DR. MCDONALD: Do you want us to question you on your general statement?

MR. MAXWELL: If you have any guestions, we would be glad to answer
anything.

DR. MCDONALD: On Standard 2, I really don't understand what you are
objecting to. It is a requirement for 180 hours of practical experience, which represents
four courses in the time alloted. 180 hours just specifies the amount of time that
the person must be in the field. What the Commission has done is, rather than saying,
one contact hour per one credit, which is the historical or traditional way of doing
it, and instead of saying six semester hours, we specify a lot of field experience.

You could give that one course two credits or ten credits or whatever you think is
best.

MR. MAXWELL: Let me give, first of all, my background. I have been
a teacher in the public schools. I have supervised students from both Harvard University
and Boston University and I have also supervised a faculty member at a college who
used to teach in high school, and I am convinced, from my own experience and also
from the philosophy that I stated in my remark, that not every student all of the
practicum that you suggest here. Students come from varying backgrounds and, as we
have older students coming into our schools, there are many that may require almost
a mininal of experience before their student teaching. Others may need quite a bit.

In other words, we have suggested that the amount of practical experience a student
may need in the schools should depend upon the student's background and you should
leave these judgements to the faculty to determine how much experience a studentbmay
need to make that person a good teacher. I don't think that we need to mandate this
by any state regulations. I have said that we need to try to tailor these programs
to the individual student. Sister Anne John?

SISTER ANNE JOHN: That 180 credits represents or that 180 hours represents
the time it would take for four courses. Now, there are very few students on the
campuses today who would agree, and I have to say agree, to going 180 hours for less
than the 12 credits which that represents. There is just no way that you would get
students to take 180 hours anyplace for one credit.

DR. MCDONALD: Well, education has never really worked out a good
laboratory to credit kind of ratio.

SISTER ANNE JOHN: I'm sorry. I can't agree with that statement.
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DR. MCDONALD: Well, you also have the example of medical school,
3,000 hours in medical education.

SISTER ANNE JOHN: It depends on what you are doing with that period
of time. Now, you are taking two periods or two course periods out of every semester,
out of both semesters in the junior year, you are taking two periods out of the first
semester and two periods out of the second semester. That leaves them, if they are
taking five courses, just three more periods to get in whatever it is they have to
get in. There is just not enough time to do this.

DR. MCDONALD: I don't want to argue about this, but it seems to me
that there are two issues here. You are taking two courses out. We're suggesting
180 hours.

SISTER ANNE JOHN: Well, where are you going to get that 180 hours?
That's what I am asking.

DR. MCDONALD: I'm doing this because we've had this question come
up so many times. As long you use the one hour- one credit rule, there is no way
you can do it.

SISTER ANNE JOHN: Granted. But, most courses are 45 hours in a
semester. That means that you want 90 hours in the first semester and 90 hours in
the second semester. That is two courses in the first semester and two courses in
the second semester, in time, if in nothing else.

DR. MCDONALD: Well, what are you using as a conversion ratio?

SISTER ANNE JOHN: Fifty minutes to an hour--the hour of the course--
45 hours which is required for three credits.

DR. MCDONALD: And, you don't think you can treat that as a laboratory
course?

SISTER ANNE JOHN: You may treat it as a laboratory course, but you're
still going to have to give it credit and you're going to have to eliminate something
else while students are out in the classrooms doing that for those 90 hours in that
first semester or 90 hours in the second semester. They are just not going to go
out there and do that without any credit being attached to it, but they're not going
to do it for one credit either.

DR. MCDONALD: The suggestion was that you integrate methods courses
with that field experience. In that way you could get a six unit--suppose I was majoring
in mathematics and I can get all my methods and a lot of practical experience at the
same time. The principle is binding the two together.

SISTER ANNE JOHN: And, what you are now asking is that there be a
faculty member teaching methods to a single student in a school.

DR. MCDONALD: No, no.

SISTER ANNE JOHN: Well, I don't know how else you're going to do
it, sir, because they are going to be in the classroom. You want them in the classrooms
and you want them taught the methods and you want it taught by the college faculty.
Now, it can't all be done at the same time that way. I have worked with programs
like this where students have gone out into the schools doing this, but they have
had to come back to late afternoon classes--and they have been willing to do it and
they have come in on Saturday to have their classes and they have done it.

DR. MCDONALD: Some people have their classes right out in one of
the schools. They put four and five people in the same school.

SISTER ANNE JOHN: That is assuming that four or five people would

be accepted in the schools. I wonder if you are even aware of how difficult it is to
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place teachers in some of the schools these days.

DR. MCDONALD: Well, if it is that difficult, we do have a more fundamental
problem.

MR. MAXWELL: We do. That's what we've been saying.

MR. DYNAN: Would you say that the fundamental problem is in dealing
with districts?

SISTER ANNE JOHN: I won't say that it is the fundamental problem,
but it is certainly one of the problems.

MR. JOHNSON: Dr. Hollander has a question.

DR. HOLLANDER: Dr. Maxwell, you make a point, and it is a good one,
that the State ought to establish a licensure requirement, require teachers to be
licenses, specify broadly what one needs to study to be licensed, but let the faculties
determine the course content that the student should pursue. We've heard from a number
of teachers who have come before the Commission and said, "You are compelling our
young people to take courses of study, which are not preparing them adequately for
classroom experience and you are requiring them to take those courses because the
State is using its police power to require that they have licenses. I guess the Com-
mission is kind of caught between and betwixt. On the one hand, you're arguing, let
the faculty determine course content and on the other hand, we have teachers that
say that a lot of those courses aren't really good preparation, but they have to take
them because the State says they have to take them because it was mandated for a license.
How do you square those two points? That's the problem that the Commission has had

to wrestle with.
MR. MAXWELL: Well, I think in some colleges, there has been poor

teaching of education courses. Now, I mentioned to you over the phone that I've

taken education courses at both the graduate and undergraduate level and there is

a world of difference, depending upon the quality of the teachers and their own understanding
of the courses that they do teach. I think that that may have a lot to do with it.

Yes, I think there are a lot of teachers who are getting boring courses, but as under-
graduates, they have to take them, not necessarily because the State says so, but

because the faculty says so.

DR. HOLLANDER: How does a board, though, that mandates that someone
who wants to go into teaching has to take those courses, provide protection for the
student to make sure that those courses are meaningful in terms of their career?
Because, after all, the reason that a student is taking those courses is because
somebody is saying that that is what he has to do for a license. Do you do away
with the licensure requirement or do you give the board of examiners, which in this
case would be responsible, some authority which you would then say interferes with
the perogative of the faculty? How do you reconcile those two conflicts?

MR. MAXWELL: That's a very difficult question to answer because I
think we can say there are many other departments in a college that have the same
problem. How do you handle the problem of teachers who are poor teachers and have
tenure and are going to be around for 20 years? How do you handle that? I think
that is a more basic question.

DR. HOLLANDER: well, I guess we're searching for the answer to the
question.

SISTER ANNE JOHN: I think that part of the answer to that is tHe
area study. For instance, one of the things that you recommend is the five areas

of the behavioral sciences. That is perfectly legitimate, but th= faculty now handles
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how their going to handle that. It is the same with the methods courses. If the
student is going to go out and teach a certain thing, yes, he would have to know
how to do it. Let the faculty handle it.

DR. HOLLANDER: Is there anything in this report that limits that?

SISTER ANNE JOHN: It is limited in amount of time, I think, that
is expected of the student to be in the classroom before the student knows what he
or she is doing.

DR. HOLLANDER: You don't seem to be objecting to a minimum standard
for liberal arts and science study, nor for minimum standards for work and behavioral
science, nor for ninimum standards for student teaching, nor for a difference between a
provisional and permanent professional license. Further, you don't seem to object
to graduate studies or its equivalent. What you seem to be objecting to is the specificity
of hours or what? I guess I'm trying to pin you down a little bit.

SISTER ANNE JOHN: Hours and the amount of time that a student is
going to spend away from the campus where that student is supposed to be learning
what it is that they are supposed to be doing. The other thing is that according
to the report as I read it, the people in the high schools and the grade schools
will be also working up the course that this student is supposed to be working at
and no faculty in a college is going to agree to that kind of thing. The prerogative
is with the college faculty. The college is giving the degree, not public school
#1. The other thing is, we are drumming those students into the classroom without
the preparation that they need, but they are going to be evaluated on the preparation
that they don't have.

DR. MCDONALD: I have the same trouble that the Chancellor does with
what you are objecting to. It sounds to me like you feel like you have no power,
that you sort of send them out there and then they come back to the campus. You
can't move out there with them to have course work; you can't integrate the course
work with the experience; for example, if they're working on curriculum in some subject
area, why they can't be doing something else in the classroom.

SISTER ANNE JOHN: I'm not saying that. For instance, if you had
30 students going out as seniors, then you would need at least three faculty members
doing nothing else but supervising out in the field. Now, besides that supervising
out in the field, you are also going to have other teachers out in the field trying
to teach them the theory and the methods that they are supposed to be getting because
they are only--they have to be visited once a day or once a week, which means that
that person visiting ten people has to visit somebody in the morning and somebody
in the afternoon every week. According to the report, one of the standards, the
supervising teacher in the school only has to visit that person in the classroom
once daily. Now, this is a daily visit. You could just stick your head in and that
would be a daily visit. Who is going to know what that person is doing, practicing
on these kids. I don't see where that is going to enhance the knowledge or the know-
how of that kind of a teacher.

DR. MCDONALD: You are objecting to what that cooperating teacher
is doing out there? It seems to me that you could work out a good balance between
the person in the school and the person on the college faculty.

SISTER ANNE JOHN: The way I read the regulations, there is no cooperating
teacher in the classroom with the teacher who is practice teaching in his or her

senior year. That cooperating teacher only has to visit that classroom daily.
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DR. MCDONALD: Well, I think that's too literal of an interpretation.
SISTER ANNE JOHN: Well, that's the way it reads.
MR. JOHNSON: Okay, let's go on. Thank you. We are appreciative

of your presentation, Lr. Maxwell. I would like to call upon Barbara Harris, President

of the Newark Teachers Association at this time.

BARBARA HARRTIS: Good afternoon and welcome to Newark. I happen to
live in Newark and I like the fact that you are here because I don't have to go all
over the state to tell you what I think.

My name is Barbara Harris and at the moment I am the President of
the Newark Teachers Association, have been a classroom teacher of first, second and
fifth graders. My undergraduate work was done at Cheney State College in Pennsylvania
and my 62 hours above my BS were done at various institutions in New Jersey and Cali-
fornia.

What a surprise to find that many of the requirements for candidates
for teacher preparation, as suggested in the preliminary report, were requirements
that I had to fulfill for my graduation from undergraduate school. I believe colleges
and universities must have curriculums to guarantee a candidates exposure to the
real world of teaching, one that allows for academic growth, creativity, humanism
and a good handle on what to expect from youths of all ages. Some of what I am talking
about only comes with actual experience in the classroom. Some comes with a varied
curriculum and requirement.

As a new teacher in Philadelphia in the early 60's, time was alloted
by the Board of Education for visitations to three schools in the City and planned
visitations within my assigned building. What a help this was. Even though your
document spends considerable time to improve the practical experience of teachers
in preparation, it doesn't convince me that a candidate's undergraduate experience
will achieve the variety needed. Your statement, "A standard does not create a competent
teacher, it can improve a program,” goes a long way. A person doing student teaching
in Smoke Rise can share time in schools in Wayne, New Jersey and then Belleville,
but until they go to Paterson, Trenton or Newark, they could be ill-prepared for
urban teaching. Keep in mind that the same candidate may be highly effective and
academically competent in two areas and fail early in an urban setting.

A different, realistic approach mgst be offered candidates for teacher
preparation and in this area in particular, efforts must be made not only to make
a candidate academically proficient, but able to handle the stress that goes along
with it as well.

At a recent meeting in Princeton that had as its topic, "Teacher Preparation,”
a question from a teacher in the audience was, "What about 15 years after a person
becomes a teacher? No provisions are made for continued improvement." Within her
question are implications of the common diseases of teacher burnout and stress. Handling
state mandates, federal mandates and local mandates, along with administration mandates
and the paperwork that accompanies each, prevents even the effective teacher from
performing at the highest level desired.

Some serious consideration should be given to teacher candidates that
provide skills for coping with these very real diseases. In education, more so than
in most professions, there is a rapid turnover of theories, techniques and prograns.

The suggestion that candidates have mandated professional preparation is unreal.
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Your model of desirable preparation programs states, it, meaning the program, would
be capped by a year of internship leading to a Master's degree. By your own admisssion,
this could not be worked out at this time. Yet, somehow, the picture seems to be
anywhere from a five to nine year program for certification and full teaching licensure
for teaching. Would you also suggest that the boards of education be willing to
pay teachers salaries commensurate with such rigorous requirements? When I began
teaching in Philadelphia in 1960, I did not receive my signed contract until three years
after my first teaching year. There was no mandate for certain programs, no inducements
other than wanting to be a good teacher that sent me scurrying for effective in-
service and further training in what I consider to be my weak areas. So, I'm not
opposed to the extended time, just the mandated specificity of programs, be it a
Master's degree or some other external degree program.

Think about it. In recent years, the idea of new math, changing reading
trends and other legislative mandates like comp ed, T&E, etcetera created a need
for continued education by teachers. Salary guides offer monetary increases for
degree equivalency, again, motivating teachers to become more proficient. The Super-
intendent of Newark schools, in an independent study, found that school principals
did not see a basic difference in substitute teachers who had 60 credit hours and
those that had 90 credit hours.

In my opinion, it takes more than mandated hours to assure effective
teachers. You, as a Commission, have worked long and hard on this document. It
is an area thet needed revising to meet the needs of teacher candidates. iany folks
enter the professional teacher arena only to find that it does not meet their needs.
Finding this out should be the concern of the aspiring candidates, the academicians
of colleges and universities, but how do you, as a Commission, see as your responsibility
the licensure or permanent certification of teachers? It was also unclear to me,
as I read the document, just what a non-education discipline is. Thank you for giving
me the opportunity offer expressions on this vital area of teacher preparation.

MR. JOHNSON: Thank you, Mrs. Harris. Questions or comments? (no
response) Thank you very much. Mr. Henry Drewry, Director of the Teacher Preparation

Programs for Princeton University?

HENRY DREWRY: Thank you very much for the opportunity to speak to you
gentlemen and ladies. I am Henry Drewry, a secondary school teacher of 14 years
before becoming a member of the history faculty and the Director of the Teacher Preparation
Program at Princeton University.

Speaking on behalf of our program, I appreciate the concern of the
Legislature and of this Commission for the quality of teacher education in our state.
Many of the points to which you have addressed yourselves need the continuing attention
of all of us involved in the preparation of teachers. Unfortunately,our reading
of the preliminary report raises important gquestions for our undergraduate program
and for the institution within whose curriculum our program operates.

The most important of these questions relates to the following points:
One, the report is so encompassing and undifferentiating in impact that strengths
of the state may be undermined while perceived weaknesses are being addressed. There
are excellent teacher preparation programs in this state. We think that ours is
one of these. Undoubtedly, there is a range of quality in teacher education as in
other academic areas. Unquestionably, there are serious educational problems that

teacher training programs need to overcome. But, the causes of these appear to us as
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a complex combination of many factors, including changing lifestyles, insufficient
community committment, inadequate funding, etcetera. It would be extremely unfortunate
if, as a result of trying to get at a number of deep-seated, deep-rooted problems
through relatively simplistic measures, the state should hamper some very good programs
and call into question the long standing assumptions about the proper relationship
between the institutions and the state.

Two, in the degree to which the document sets curriculum and determines
specific requirements, it intrudes into the area of curriculum making and academic
governance, which properly belong to the individual academic institution. We do
not question the setting of standards for teacher certification by state government
or the evaluation of institutional programs to determine whether the standards are
met. But, the level of specificity in the preliminary report appears clearly to
overstep the dividing line between standard setting and curriculum making between
direction and governance.

Three, the report fails to reflect an appreciation of the extent
to which differences among teacher education programs, while all conforming to overall
standards, are and should be based on each college's or university's unique combination
of student interest, abilities and needs, faculty's strengths and interests, and
institutional organization, standards and resources. We see the possibilities for
such differences as a strength of teacher preparation in the state. The research
done on teaching does not provide sufficient elements to allow us to conclude that
there is one best structure for preparing elementary or secondary teachers. 1In
the absence of such evidence, the educational community would be well served by
the thoughtful construction of a variety of approaches for preparing to teach.

Four, as I mentioned, the report appears to assign to teacher preparation
programs the responsibility for problems in education, which have causes in many
aspects of society. To the degree that this is correct, it suggests that the recommendations
in the report are unlikely to provide meaningful solutions and to the degree that
the assignment of responsibility turns attention away from the complexity of the
problems, the report may do more harm than good. It appears to us that the approach
presented in the report will have the effect of creating new problems, not the least
of which is the possible discontinuation of some first-rate programs, which are
non-traditional in their structure or approach. Let me be very personal and specific
on this last point. My institution admits persons who our schools in our state
tell us are the most successful of their students. 168 New Jersey residents are
now enrolled in our freshman class. Only New York State with a much larger state
population has more students in that class. The majority of these students come
from public schools. They come to pursue a liberal education in the arts and sciences.
Many of them have promise as gifted teachers, who would like to return to their
schools to teach, without closing off opportunities. Our program allows them to
prepare a career of teaching. If the recommendations on the preliminary rerport
were implemented, the possibility that we could not continue to exist would be seriously
raised.

Five, while recognizing the need of some branch of state government
to set and maintain standards in ceacher education and while appreciating the concern
of the Legislature for high quality education in the state, we respectfully suggest
that the nature and specificity of the recommendations in the preliminary report
are inappropriate areas for legislative action. The tradition of local governance

and curriculum planning for academic institutions and the history of oversight of
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teacher education by the Department of Education and the Department of Higher Education
should not be changed without compelling reasons that offer significant educational
benefits. Such does not appear to be the case in this instance and, if anything,

an important degree of flexibility would be lost. As a result, we conclude that

it would be unwise for the Legislature to pursue this approach as reflected in the
preliminary report. Thank you and I would be pleased to respond to any questions.

MR. JOHNSON: Thank you, Mr. Drewry. Questions or comments? Dr.
Hollander?

DR. HOLLANDER: I don't understand what your specific criticisms of
the report are. Give me five examples of where you think the report should be modified.

MR. DREWRY: Well, I think we're saying, in the first instance, that
we take issue with several premises on which the report seems to be based.

DR. HOLLANDER: Well, I understand that. I'm talking about which
recommendations in this report jeopardize the program.

MR. DREWRY. The requirements, as they are spelled very specifically,
which increase the amount of time and they make some very specific statements about
things that ought to be done: the practice teaching, which we agree is an important
aspect, but the decision that every program must have the same amount of practice
teaching. You don't do that. Anybody can go up, but by raising it to the point
that you do, you almost wipe out the possibility that there can be anything other
than what you set as a minimum. By doing that, you really do remove the flexibility
from some programs which have strengths in some other areas which they want to work
in with this strength and that's a very real problem for programs like my own.

DR. HOLLANDER: That's essentially the principal's problem, isn't
it?

MR. DREWRY: That is one of them. There is, of course, a feeling
that curriculum setting, which this report seems to do--

DR. HOLLANDER: Where does it set a curriculum?

MR. DREWRY: Well, it spells out fairly precisely--

DR. HOLLANDER: It says that you are to have half a program in arts
and science, roughly, or fifty credits in arts and science. Do you think that is
curriculum planning?

MR. DREWRY: It seems so to us.

DR. HOLLANDER: Do you mean that the state should not indicate the
minimum arts and science requirement for a license in teaching?

MR. DREWRY: I think the state should set minimum requirements, yes.
But, we think they ought to be more in the form of standards to be met. At my
institution, we think rather well of the way the procedure is operated in the state
up to this point.

DR. HOLLANDER: That wasn't the question, though. The gquestioun was
whether the state has a right, before it gives someone a license, to say what the
minimum number of credits are.

MR. DREWRY: No question with the right to do so.

DR. HOLLANDER: Should it do so? Should it, for example, permit the
Paterson program which we were told has only 25% of the course work in arts and
science? Should it permit such a person who is so narrowly trained to be licensed?

MR. DREWRY: I can't comment on that program. I think the state has
every right and obligation to do that. It is the level at which you do that. It
is not the principle of the state's involvement that is at issue here. The state
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has been involved all along. It is that the rules are being changed rather appreciably,
that there seems, to us, to be much more precision in spelling out what must be
done to the point that it oversteps that boundary of allowing states to--

DR. HOLLANDER: The present rules are pretty precise. You have to
have so many hours of teaching and so many hours of media and so many hours in the
secondary field in which you are teaching. Now, all this report says is that you
should have 50 hours in the arts and sciences, roughly, one third, one third, one
third, between your math, social sciences and sciences, up to an eighth uf the program.
Your behavioral science is very broadly defined and you have the practice teaching
requirement. Now, that is kind of minimal, isn't it?

MR. DREWRY: Well, there are some diiferences.

DR. HOLLANDER: Where is it not minimal? I guess I'm really trying
to find out where it is that prescriptive that it crosses an improper boundary between
the state and the colleges?

MR. DREWRY: The problem is that you want to ask one group of questions
and I think those questions have some problems with them.

DR. HOLLANDER: Do you mean that the state shouldn't ask those questions?

MR. DREWRY: No. I think when the Legislature begins to do that--

DR. HOLLANDER: Well, this isn't the Legislature. '

MR. DREWRY: It is a Legislative Commission.

DR. HOLLANDER: It is a commission appointed by the Governor and the
legislative leaders.

MR. DREWRY: The state, in setting such arrangements in the past,
has spelled them out in terms of course content and then in terms of standards.

If the standards are met--and apparantly they can be met in a variety of ways--
then the flexibility of institutions to approach teacher training in a different
fashion, it seems to be there. What the preliminary report seems, to us, to do

is limit that flexibility, to be more precise than has been the pattern in the past.

MR. JOHNSON: Other questions? Mr. Dynan?

MR. DYNAN: In terms of student teaching, you said that you didn't
feel that the state has the right to mandate, that different programs should have
different requirements. Would you suggest a minimum, that the state should set
a minimum number of weeks or hours or whatever pursued in teaching or would you
leave that to the discretion of all the colleges?

MR. DREWRY: I don't have any objection to the minimum that is currently
set. That minimum has really been one that one could shoot at as a minimum. Our
students do more than that. We think that minimum would be sufficient, but it allows
us to do something more. If one doubles that minimum or almost doubles that minimum,
which is exactly what is being done héere, that ceases to be a meaning ful minimum
any more. It becomes almost a maximum. So, I don't object to the setting of a
new minimum. It is how realistic one is about that as a minimum.

MR. DYNAN: What would be your specific idea of a minimum amount of
time in student teaching?

MR. DREWRY. It seems to me, something in the order oi six weeks would
be a minimum. I would hope that most places have more than six weeks. We say in
our institution that it must be a minimum of eight weeks.

MR. DYNAN: What objection would there be--this is just a question
of interest as to our requirements—--what objection would there be to a semester

of student teaching?
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MR. DREWRY: Well, our objection is that it becomes very difficult
within our institution. This is why we wouldn't implement it, given the chance
to do so right now. Our objection is that in our institution it would be very difficult
for our students to do whatever they are required to do in their regular major work
and in teacher training, if that were required.
MR. DYNAN: So, the major problem seems to be a lack of the academics
while they are doing the student teaching. You don't have a problem with districts
or placements or supervision. It would be with the students not receiving enough
of the academic training while they're in student teaching. That is the major problem?
MR. DREWRY: To putiit another way, one of the problems would be that
the academic work, which they must do, comes into conflict with the demands of practice
teaching, if the demand were doubled.
MR. JOHNSON: Okay. Any other questions? (no response) Thank you
very much, Mr. Drewry. I call now on Phyllis Gudoski, President of the Roselle
Education Association.

PHYLLTIS G UDO S K I: Good afternoon. My name is Phyllis Gudoski and
I am President of the Roselle Education Association and a classroom teacher in Roselle.

I would like to thank you for the opportunity to speak to you today
about the preliminary draft prepared by this Commission. My focus will be on professional
development as it relates to my experience as a classroom teacher and my involvement
in Roselle's professional development program.

Let me begin by commending the members of this Commission for their
efforts in preparing this preliminary report. I would like to specifically cite
your recommendation regarding the practical experience of undergraduate students
as being a most constructive approach to preparing future teachers for the classroom.
During my 15 years of teaching, I have served as a supervisory teacher tuv at least
8 undergraduate students and it has always been my belief that these students have
received too few opportunities to practical experience prior to student teaching.

I would also agree with your student teaching supervision criteria.

I feel that it is very important for the college supervisor to spend more time with
the students in the field.

You have accurately stated the need for more practical classroom experience
on the part of the student teacher. You have also recognized the benefits that the
student teacher will gain through closer contact with the college supervisor. Once
the student has completed the undergraduate program and has entered the teaching
profession, I do agree with the Commission that professional development should
continue. However, I do not believe that a required Master's degree or its equivalent
is the best means for continued professional growth for all teachers.

The classroom teacher needs practical opportunities for professional
growth, just as the undergraduate needs more practical classroom experience. These
practical opportunities are best addressed through locally developed programs and
in-service education. Let me tell you about an in-service educational approach
to professional development that has worked and continues to work in Roselle. After
a series of unsuccessful programs, the administration and the teaching staff of
Roselle recognized the need for a new direction for professional development. Together,
we set out to both organize both short and long range programs that would not only
enhance teacher performance, but gain the support of the community. All district

professionals are continually given the opportunity to reflect their needs in needs
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assessments. Ladies and gentlemen, I say to you that I feel that this is one of
the best ways to find out the needs of new teachers and teachers who have been in
the prolession for years. These provide the professional development planners with
the exact areas of need to be addressed. A committee of administrators and teachers
then researched specific programs to deal with the district's needs. Teachers receive
developmental instruction through workshops offered both locally and through outside
agencies. The format of these workshops varies from extended sessions to full-
day sessions to 14 hour sessions extended over a ten week period. The schedule
of these workshops is always set up cooperatively by the teaching staff and administration.
Teacher response to this new approach to professional development
has been overshelmingly positive. Staff members are motivated by the fact that
they have a voice in their own professional development, not that it has been mandated
by the state. Their involvement has brought about some remarkable changes in the
district. One positive result of this professional program has been increased student
performance and growth. Isn't this the ultimate goal of professional development
programs? I contend that impersonal programs mandated state-wide do not necessarily
meet this goal so effectively. Mandated programs consisting of Master's degrees
or their equivalents do not create master teachers. The master teacher is one who
has had the opportunity to pursue an individualized course of professional development.
I, together with the teachers and administrators in Roselle, enthusiastically
supporc the freedom that has allowed our district to provide this individualized
approach to professional development. I am in no way saying that a Master's degree
or its equivalent is not important. I am saying, let me have the freedom to do
it and get when I feel that it is best to meet my needs. The challenges of the
classroom are vast. Teacher burnout is real. Mandates and pressures of the classroom
must be dealt with daily. Give us the freedom to choose our own course. Thank
you.
MR. JOHNSON: Thank you. Any questions? Mr. McDonald?
DR. MCDONALD: I would like to read you something from the report
and ask you what it means to you. It is on the equivalency, the external program.
"This program is essentially an evaluation process which will focus on the mastery
of the concepts reflected in the common body of knowledge. The knowledge, however,
will have been acquired through non-traditional means such as individual study,
professional conferences, workshops, experience and individual college courses."
What does that mean to you?
MS. GUDOSKI: Well, you are saying what, in fact, I have said. However,
you are mandating it in a specific period of time.
DR. MCDONALD: So, it is mandating it in a specific period of time
that you object to?
MS. GUDOSKI: Yes, because, I think, once given the opportunity for
a district and a teaching staff to set up their needs, their specific needs, and
how they will go about it, you will best achieve the results you are looking for.
You are looking for the well-prepared teacher, the teacher who can meet the needs
of the students daily in the classroom. We do have numerous teachers--I would say
the majority--that do meet these needs, as can be seen by the many approved districts
we've had throughout the state. However, I do think our freedom of choice of when
to do this and when to meet these needs is a valuable asset.
DR. MCDONALD: I heard something else in what you just said and bothers

me because it might be something I heard at Glassboro from a representative of your
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association down there. It sounded to me like you said your needs were determined
by what the administration would prompt you to need.

MS. GUDOSKI: No, no. Our needs were assessed through needs assessment
of the teaching staff. The actual practitioners, the teachers, were the ones who
developed the needs and then, with the administration, the programs were worked
out. The administration had a definite voice in it also, but the needs came from
the teachers and they went through very varied areas, through basic skills, classroom
discipline, time management, etcetera. The needs are various.

DR. MCDONALD: But, how would you answer the criticism that in a system
like that the teachers in Roselle might be more interested in doing this whereas
the teachers somewhere else might not be. Therefore my child's education depends
on when you decide you need this.

MS. GUDOSKI: Are they always given the choice, as we are in Roselle?
Are the teachers asked all the time what their needs are? I say, if given the opportunity
to reflect their needs in the classroom, I think teachers would be willing. In-
service education is a part of T&E. 1It's here. Professional development is here.

It is not something that we can shy away from. I think the problem exists when
teachers are not incorporated into developing it, along with the administration.

We are very fortunate in Roselle that we do work well together. We have no problems.
However, this has been something that we have built up over the years because the
administration has seen the need to include the teachers.

MR. JOHNSON: Again, it seems to me that the external degree program
could well speak to that. Maybe we need more clarity about that, which gives that
kind of freedom. Any other questions or concerns? (no response) We thank you
very much for your testimony. I will now call on Dr. Arnold Fletcher, Vice-President

of Academic Affairs, Thomas Edison College.

ARNOLD FLETCHER: I must apologize on behalf of the President. She
indicated that she was indisposed and suggested that 1 represent her here today.
It is nothing serious, but I am pleased to do it.

In preparing this report, I am fully conscious of the fact that there
may be some repetition of certain parts of the Commission report, its views as a
point of reference to serve as a foundation for the few comments that i have built
into this particular testimony.

We are very grateful to the Commission for providing this opportunity
to testify in support of certain Commission recommendations concerning equivalency
routes to initial and professional certification for New Jersey teachers, with particular
emphasis on the potential role of Edison State College in this certification process.
But, first, permit me to provide some background on the unique role of the Edison
model in higher education. This may be old hat to some of you, but I feel that
some repetition, stressing the things that we're unique--

DR. MCDONALD: I would like to hear it.

DR. FLETCHER: Fine. Edison State College was founded in 1972 by
the State Board of Higher Education as an external degree institution with the basic
objective of providing adult learners the opportunity to earn college degrees through
means other than the traditional, instructional approach to learning. Students
enrolled at Edison may satisfy degree requirements through two fundamental methods:
one, by taking college proficiency examinations; and the other by submitting to

an individual assessment of prior learning acquired through experience. 1In addition,
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credits may be earned through transfer and the ¢valuation of special credentials.

The College is also very active in developing cooperative programs with industry,
government, and non-profit corporations for the purpose of recognizing potential
college-level learning acquired through on-the-job training. The College awards

credit for such educational experiences either through the evaluation of these training
programs or through special examinations developed for such programs.

I should also like to point out that Edison State College operates
a Statewide Counseling Newwork and Information Network supported by an education
hotline. These are designed to inform New Jersey citizens about available post-
secondary learning opportunities and advise them of appropriate options for continuing
their education.

From this description of the basic educational philosophy underlying
the Edison model, one can readily understand why we would vigorously support the
establishment of equivalency routes for enabling individuals to obtain both initial
and professional certification. The College's testing assessment programs have
been developed with the assistance of teaching faculty from both public and private
colleges throughout the state and specialists in testing and psychometrics. And,
as you know, these programs have all been approved and accredited by the state and
the Middle States Association of Colleges and Schools. The College is thus uniquely
prepared to assess the background of individuals who have completed their undergraduate
education in a field other than teacher education and have acquired teaching competence
through non-traditional means.

In addition to having achieved a general competence in the evaluation
process, I might point to specific examples wherein the College has gained experience
in evaluating student learning outcomes and competency in teacher education and
related fields. The College, in cooperation with the Department of Higher Education
and the Department of Education, has assessed college-level learning in specific
subjects within the professional component of the current certification requirements
and has developed examinations for the certification program in bilingual-bicultural
education. In addition, the College offers a B.S. program in Human Services, which
requires an evaluation of student competence to perform on the job in a field practicum
situation.

Given this proven track record and expertise in testing and assessment
of college~level knowledge and competency, Edison State College is fully prepared
t work closely with the Department of Education and the Department of Higher Education
in setting up expanded equivalency programs for individuals seeking either the initial
certificate and/or the professional certificate.

We are proposing that an Edison equivalency program for achieving
the initial certificate would concentrate on two areas of teacher education: (1) the
testing and assessment of learning achieved in the subject fields within the professional
education component, and (2) the evaluation of the performance of teachers in on-
the-job settings, a process eguivalent to student teaching evaluation. Credits
earned in these two areas would usually be classified at the post-baccalaureate
but not graduate level.

We also applaud the Commission's proposal to establish an external
degree program as an alternate route to earn a Master's degree, which would be required
to achieve the professional certificate. Since graduate certification programs
will emphasize the acquisition of a common body of knowledge, we would propose that

a cooperative or joint degree approach be considered. Under this arrangement,
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faculty committees made up of representatives from institutions across the state
would determine the common body of knowledge and competency required in the program.
Traditional institutions would provide the instructional component, whereas Edison
State College would provide the examination and the testing component, where needed,
utilizing the faculty of the cooperating institutions. This technique has been
fully developed by the College and is currently utilized in the services of some 450
faculty assessors from most of the New Jersey colleges and universities. Our experience
and expertise in developing cooperative programs is also growing, as witnessed by
the recent funding by the Fund for the Improvement of Post-secondary Education of
an Edison State College Statewide Testing and Assessment Center designed to serve
students enrolled in the institutions participating in the project. I might add
that there will be three state colleges, two community colleges, two private institutions
and Rutgers University in Newark involved in that statewide testing and assessment
center.

There are other aspects of this that I do not have the time to go
into that we could serve in helping to carry out these programs that are equivalent
to traditional programs as alternate routes. One might be considered as a diagnostic
approach to testing the backgrounds of teachers with a baccalaureate degree already
teaching in some areas within the state. This could be used for program planning
to determine what is needed to complete the Master's degree at institutions around
the state. We have the counseling network in place to do this kind of thing and
this diagnostic approach is often used in our own program planning at the undergraduate
level.

In conclusion, we again state that we are in complete agreement with
the Commission's recognition of the need to set up alternative or equivalency routes
for individuals striving to attain teacher education certification. Thomas A. Edison
State College is ready to offer its programs, services and general expertise in
the evaluation process to the Departments of Education and Higher Education in the
future development of these programs. Thank you.

MR. JOHNSON: Thank you, Mr. Fletcher. Any questions? Dr. Hollander?

DR. HOLLANDER: You've heard the previous testimony by one of the
teachers who argued that the continuing education programs that are offered in the
individual school :districts may be more pertinent to the students' needs. 1Is it
possible for Thomas Edison College to identify the extent to which college credit
could be given such programs and hence, incorporate those programs within the framework
of the equivalency degree?

DR. FLETCHER: I think that could be done in two or three ways. We
might use--

DR. HOLLANDER: How would that work? How much would it cost?

DR. FLETCHER: Well, that would depend on the extent of the program
and how long it takes to evaluate them.

DR. HOLLANDER: No, I mean, generally, how would you work such a system?

DR. FLETCHER: Well, we could use a type of approach, where--you know,
currently we are representing through the Department of Education the Mayor's Council
on Education and we are evaluating training programs in industry. We could use
the same type of approach in evaluating these types of programs around the state.
Right now, we would do a program in industry, something in the neighborhood of
six to eight courses in one day and evaluation may be 15 courses or so in two days
and it would cost the industry $750 for one day and $1500 for two days of this.
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We could also look at the evidence that is produced by the student in a portfolio
that would include all kinds of evidence of learning and this would be part of it.
Faculty evaluating such a portfolio would make judgements about the value of that
and equate it to college-level learning at that level, at the graduate level in
this instance. We have, richt now, revised our whole approach to portfolio, wherein
we have at least two faculty members looking at every portfolio in a discipline
to make certain that there is agreement on the outcome. The portfolio approach
could be used. I think those are the two fundamental ways. We could develop, if
there are extensive ongoing programs that are in place, that are repeated over a
period of time, we could develop a discreet examinations with the cooperation of
the faculty offering those programs. That is another way, but that would have to
have certain conditions there that are condusive to the continuity of development
in that area. But, those three ways, I think, have the most potential.

DR. HOLMES: I guess my question is probably more rhetorical than
anything else. We have a statute in the Division of Education and we had a gentleman
in here earlier that talked about being PIPed to death---~that is the Professional
Improvement Plans that are called for under T&E--which are supposed to be evaluated
and monitored by monitoring teams that go into the county offices. In-service training
of course, how a person can achieve some of those needs that have been outlined
for that individual, but then, that person would then be recommended, perhaps, for
in~service training or some special project or what have you. I guess what I'm
trying to do, Chancellor, is balance the two. We have the Department of Education,
and once again, this great cooperative arrangement that is going to take place between
the two departments--especially since we just had 40 some people laid off in the
county office. Maybe Edison College could pick up what they were supposed to do.

We have a role, by statute, the Department of Education, in terms of T&E and then
we have Edison College evaluating what comes out of a process that has been outlined
in elementary education, through the Department of Education. How do you balance
the two?

DR. FLETCHER: I don't know whether that is a question that should
be directed to me.

DR. HOLMES: No, I'm just wondering, how do you balance--~it is more
to the Chancellor. It is a question that we have to look at: How do you balance
the two, although, I am not saying that in-service education and other projects
that teachers are working and with to improve themselves should not be viable alternative
to just taking college courses.

DR. FLETCHER: I think the mechanism so incorporates any assessment
of their background. I think that's an fundamental thing to keep in mind. The
key thing we try to do is operate within the context of the traditional educational
setting that and utilize the faculty who are the experts in their field to make
these evaluations. We would be using teacher education specialists on teams to
do this kind of thing.

DR. MCDONALD: Suppose I was the President of a teacher education
association in some district--an unlikely possibility (laughter)--and I come to
you and say, "We've got a program here, in-service education. Can you work out
an evaluation system so that we can get credits towards a master's degree?" 1In
other words, the approach is from them to you and then you would have to not only,
if you can, evaluate it but also broker it for them, I suppose.

DR. FLETCHER: You know, this is very similar to the first method
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that I refered to in answer to the Chancellor's question. We do this now, going
into industry, with a team of professionals. It is a mini-accredidation is what
it is. We take a team of professionals in a particular subject field. We did this
at AT&T with the American Council of Education and we would take a look at the content
of those programs, see if there is any evaluation of learning in it and we would
review this for the teachers of the program and the team would make judgements and
make recommendations concerning what level of subject matter is being covered, how
extensive it is, how much in depth, whether there is any evaluation of learning
and then would make recommendations of credit. To us, we would pass that on into
whatever source is necessary for making a determination about how that should be
handied.

DR. MCDONALD: Do you turn some of those down?

DR. FLETCHER: Oh, sure. That happens and then we get the--the American
Council, I know, has received several appeals on that from industry education directors
and it is like any other kind of appeal tool in evaluation. It has to be handled,
again, through some objective means, getting other people in to take a look at it,
if necessary.

MR. JOHNSON: Any other questions? (no response) Dr. Fletcher, I
do believe you had copies of the report. They need to be turned over to the staff
and also to the members. I remind you, as you do come forward, if you have copies,
it would be helpful for the stenographer to have a copy of your statement and secondly,
the staff in the front row and finally, for members of the Commission.

DR. MCDONALD: I would like to thank the member or members of this
Commission who suggested this role for Edison College. I really think that is the
solution to so many of our problems.

MR. JOHNSON: Thank you, Dr. Fletcher. You might tell the President
that we missed her here today. I would now call on Arline Lederman, Director of

Art Education at Montclair State College.

67



ARLTINE LEDERMAN: I'am Arline Lederman; I am here today
as head of the Higher Education Division for the Art Educators of New Jersey.
I am also Director of Art Education at Montclair State College. However,

I am speaking more in my other role. For your information, I have taught
at almost every level of the educational system.

We are taught and acknowledge the need for well trained educators
to help achieve quality education in the State of New Jersey. Our group
appreciates the intent of the Commission report, and concurs with its stated
goals. Our main areas of concern and the focus of this testimony is to assure
that the needs of specialized areas, specifically that of art education programs,
be considered.

We realize that by necessity a Commission cannot be fully aware
of all the implications of a proposal, and we assume these hearings are an
attempt to adjust and modify the proposed report to include adaptations towards
a more satisfactory fulfillment of the stated goals. We feel our concerns
are also relevant to other area specialized programs.

In response to the call for testimonvy, let us look at the proposed
standards, and let me express our particular concerns.

Standard 1 on page 26, the specific designation of requirements
prior to the junior yvear leaves no room for people to enter the program beyond
the second semester of the sophomore year. We suggest the standard state,
"Prior to formal admission to the program.”" Ideally in the beginning of
the junior year it can be done if you so wish. This will allow for the real
nature of the educational process today, which frequently means qualification
of career goals is possible at several stages of one's college career. It
also accommodates transfer students and community college graudates, which,
in the present standards are not accommodated.

Standard 4 on page 29, in area specialization, other qualities obtained
are frequently more significant than those stated. We suggest that the
requirement for the college faculty require some teaching experience in K through 12
and acknowledge, above all, the imporance of area specialization. Our ideal
is an artist educator.

Standard 6, page 30, the supervisor in fine arts education in our
opinion should be a full-time regular faculty member with area specialization
in fine arts education allowing for sufficient area specialization and focus.
Another concern in this standard is the physical impossibility of supervising
art teachers under such an intensive observation schedule as is suggested.

Student teachers in the fine arts are frequently one to a school
district. These districts are frequently at opposite ends of the State.

I have spent a day in Sparta in the morning and Red Bank in the evening.

We suggest that the specifics of observation be left to the particular college,
so that they can accommodate this within their resources and within their
wisdom.

Standard 7, page 30, the college faculty that supervises should
be full-time area specialized persons who can offer specialized directions
and guidance to the student teacher 1in their particular area of methods
and strengths.

Standard 8, page 31, the general education requirement should allow

for the inclusion of art history as a history, or there will not be enough
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credit hours available for proper studio training.

Standard 8, page 32, the multi-cultural education studies requirement
should be included within the category to allow, again, for sufficient studio
hours in art. This might be an appropriate place to integrate a qualification
of one of our major concerns. The recommendations as they now stand are
as follows to our interpretation:

50 semester hours of liberal arts, general education although
how that divides into three, I don't know - 32 field experience, 16 educational
theory for a total of 98. We in the area specialization require 32 credits
of fine arts specialization for undergraduates. That comes to 130. We now
are also mandated 6 hours of reading credits. We would like to include at
least one semester of gym and that comes to 139 credits. And, we also are
required to include 3 credits of multi-cultural studies. We now have an
undergraduate bachelor's for a teaching degree-where perhaps the average
income for the first year is approximately $11,000~of 142 credits for a bachelor's
degree in education without permanent certification.

It is our concern that this would be at least a five-year undergraduate
program, and that is not appropriate for a bachelor's degree. It could negatively
affect enrollments in entire northern New Jersey, since a comparable degree
in certification can be obtained in New York State for 120 credits. We suggest
a re-interpretation to create a degree with sufficient area specialization
in a fine arts studio and methods within 128 credits.

Standard 10, page 33, theoretical studies should include the reading
requirement now mandated. At Montclair it is interpreted as a 6 credit requirement
which means still fewer hours for area specialization. That is essential
for a qualified fine arts specialist in the view of the higher education
division for the art educators of New Jersey.

Standard 12, page 34, "A", the 2.5 grade point average minimum
should not be an absolute requirement but a minimum requirement. Colleges
should be permitted to establish their own higher standards. We specifically
prefer in our college a higher grade point area for the the major area that
is recommended. We are afraid if this report goes through as it is, we
will not be able to continue our high standards.

"B", the specification of sophomore year should be changed to prior
to full admissions to the program in order to accommodate the variations
in training, transfers, et cetera, that we mentioned before. And, that will
allow for late decisions to enter teacher training.

Standard 13, page 35, each college should set its own standards
for retention, which should not be lower than the college's own standards
for admission to its graduate school. We don't want to be in an embarrassing
position of being forced to accept into the teacher training programs those
of lower quality than the general graduate school programs are. So, again,
that is something we prefer to be left to the college itself.

Standard 14, page 36, minimum requirements for a terminal degree
should include, in our opinion, Master's of Fine Arts, which are considered
the terminal degree of studios for fine arts.

Standard 5, one semester needs to be defined either as 15 semester
hours or one 3 credit course. A clarification is necessary for us. Advanced

area specialization methods should be specifically stated as an appropriate
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graduate content in area specialized subjects. We feel these would be more
useful than general education courses would be on that level.

Standard 6, curriculum, specialization components specifically
in art education must include studio courses and art history along with advanced
methods in order to properly train fine arts specialized educators. Again,
we come to a problem of 15 credit hours, or one 3 semester hour which is
meant by the semester.

Other concerns we have are a broader definition of field experiences
to include museums, senior citizen centers, community centers, jails, and
private schools. Jobs are frequently to be downed in these areas. Society
will need trained teachers in those areas and often some of the exciting
programs are to be found in those institutions.

The field experience should be more flexibly defined, perhaps by
sequence and not by sophomore, junior and senior, but perhaps as primary,
secondary, and tertiary experiences.

We would also like to affirm that in our opinion NASDTEC provides
vital national coordination and has been a positive force in education. Perhaps
difficulties have resulted from failure of schools to comply to their standards,
but we do not feel that is the fault of NASDTEC professionalism in our estimation.

In summary, let me again assert the need frequently expressed today
for greater flexibility. The setting of minimum standards is fine, but not
of a full curriculum. Full curriculum cannot take into account all the area
needs, and allow for diversity, creativity and excellence. I will be happy
to respond to any questions.

MR. JOHNSON: Thank you, Mrs. Lederman. Are there any comments
or questions?

DR. MC DONALD: Are you asking us to prescribe the content of the
field experiences?

MRS. LEDERMAN: I would prefer that you suggest minimum content
rather than define total content. I think that total content is a type
of restriction that is hard to work with.

MR. JOHNSON: Are there any further questions? If not, we thank
you again.

I call at this time on Richard Frissell, Director of Arts in Public
Schools in West Orange. I am again reminding you if you have written testimony,

please give it to our staff and our stenographer.

RICHARD FRISSETLTL: My name is Richard Frissell, Director
of Art, West Orange Public Schools, and currently serving as President of
the Art Administrators of New Jersey.

I am really representing that second capacity more today. I have
taught in public schools for seven years, and I have supervised students
in art education departments for Syracuse University and have worked with
student teachers as a director of art in the public schools. As a person
who has participated in teacher training from the view points of higher education
and teacher and administrator in public education, I wish to express some
concerns.

This proposal calls for a total of approximately 140 credits to
complete an undergraduate degree for teacher certification in art education.

Special areas such as art call for at least 30 credits of studio work. With
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these requirements in general education, field experiences, educational theory
and areas of specialization, it will scon become a five-year undergraduate
program. This program is not in competition with four-year programs that
can be obtained in other disciplines. I feel that the number of credits
required to complete the program in any discipline should be more consistent.
This imbalance can penalize the art education programs in art education.
Another concern focuses on the requirement for supervisory loads
of the college students by the college supervisor and cooperative teachers
in the field. It is suggested that the supervisor of art education should
be a full-time faculty person to meet the needs of the students who are practicing
teachers, and it is also felt that the cooperating teacher should not be
responsible for students in field experience. I believe it calls currently
for four field experiences per year, and one student teacher. The number
of field experiences should be reduced to no more than two per year. I think
this can water down the quality of programs in the public schools.
Our third area of concern focuses on licensing procedures on page
69. According to this statement three units must be dealt with to receive
licensing. This could become a bit cumbersome. Does this mean that three
units would have to be contacted in order to complete the certification process.
Those are primarily my concerns.
MR. JOHNSON: Thank you. Are there any questions? If not,
we thank you.
I am calling on Dr. Tina Jacobowitz.

TINA JACOBOWITZ: I would like to thank you for allowing

me to speak at these hearings today. I would like to tell you a little bit
about myself. I am a Professor of reading at Montclair State College. I

was a reading teacher in the elementary school in Bedford-Stuyvestant, Brooklyn,
for five years, and I also taught minimum basic skills in reading at a community
college in New York City. I have done a great deal of teacher training,
including two .years of field work supervision at New York University, and

I currently teach a developmental reading course at Montclair, as well as
college reading improvement at Montclair.

I would like to express my concern over the ommission of the two
mandated reading courses from the teacher preparation program. As a professor
of college reading improvement at Montclair, I constantly find that students
are entering college without the reading and study skills so necessary for
textbook learning. The situation is a source of endless frustration for
students as well as professors. The developmental reading courses are one
way to help high school students acquire these important skills by placing
reading instruction in its rightful place, the secondary content area classrooms.
Ommission of these courses for the secondary level teacher training program
constitutes a regression to the concept that in the first three grades we
learn to read, and from thence we read to learn.

And, reading instruction cannot be and ignores the idea that
. f meaningful learning is to occur, reading instructions cannot be divorced
from content instruction. Because the written word is the primary medium
in which information is gathered in this society, it is the obligation of
all teachers to provide their students with process skills which will enable

them to learn independent of the task.
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If the reading courses are no longer required, future high school
teachers will be deprived of the opportunity to learn techniques and processes
which can foster independent learning in their students. I would like to
read to you some letters that I received from students who have taken the
developmental course. I contacted them, and asked them to respond to this
possible ommission of the course requirement.

This is from one student, "Dear Dr. Johnson, it has come to my
attention that the Developmental Reading courses required fOr teacher certification,
may be eliminated. It is my opinion that the elimination of this course
would be a great disservice to the students in the teacher preparation program.
I have completed the course, and I can say,without exaggeration, that it has
been the most helpful and worthwhile teacher preparation course I have taken
in my college career. The topics covered in the course are practical and
essential in preparing to become a teacher. I have found the assigned projects
given in the course to be a great aid during my teaching experiences. T
urge you to re-evaluate the situation and acknowledge the developmental reading
requirement as a worthwhile, practical and useful course. If this is overlooked,
we will surely be shortchanging our future teachers.”

"Dr. Johnson, I am concerned with the decision about dropping the
reading courses from the curriculum preparing future teachers. I am a prospective
teacher of distributive education, and the two courses, developmental reading
one, and two, were of great value to my subject matter, as well as to me.
Distributive education sometimes becomes a dumping ground for students with
poor basic skills, especially in the area of reading. I would have a hard
enough job in getting my content across. I can't imagine teaching reading
properly without the preparation I obtained through the developmental reading
courses. The knowledge, concepts and strategies learned in these courses
are of so much value to a perspective teacher of my subject. The idea of
knowing how to meet reading problems in the classroom head-on will make them
more well-prepared and a better equipped teacher. With all the talk of basic
skills, and our students are so below the reading levels, it makes me really
wonder how educators can consider dropping these courses from their curriculum.
I feel that higher education would really be doing an injustice by preparing
students to become teachers in today's classrooms without the developmental
reading courses."

"Dr. Johnson, I am now teaching in a public junior high school
in Newark. I instruct slow learners in the subject English. At least 75%
of my students are below reading level. It is difficult enough dealin with
these children, but without the knowledge I have with reading techniques,

I could make no progress at all. A teacher is responsible for the betterment
of his or her students. I am highly upset, because I feel that without the
reading knowlege I have behind me, I know I could not do as well as I am
doing now. Those not required to take this course will never know how truly
important it is. A terrible injustice will be done to students as well as
teachers if these courses are eliminated through the program. Frankly, Dr.
Johnson, I think it is ridiculous to even suggest such a thing."

T hope that these letters and my own will suggest that it is imperative
that the decision to omit the developmental reading courses from the teacher

preparation courses be reconsidered. Thank you.
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MR. JOHNSON: Thank you. Are there any questions, concerns, comments?

DR. MC DONALD: Just a general question. We heard this statement
about mandated reading earlier today, too. If reading is so important, which
I happen to personally believe it is, why is it that a Commission has to
mandate it? I mean, we are surrounded by evidence that there are poor reading
performances, and it gets worse in the elementary school years, et cetera,
why is it necessary to mandate it into a teacher education program?

MS. JACOBOWITZ: Well, I think that the way the education system
is set up, at this point, there is a great concern with the product the students
have to learn, the subject, and there is not enough concern with the processes
which involve the reading skills, and if the students are not required to
take these courses, I think they will be more concerned with learning more
about the content area they are going to teach, rather than the processes
they are going to have to give their students to learn the content independently.

DR. MC DONALD: Okay, there is no way to change that attitude,
short of us holding a gun to their head and saying---

MS. JACOBOWITZ: The only way at this point to change their attitude
is by exposing them to courses in reading, and the only way they will get
these courses is through the mandate at this point.

At Montclair I was involved with project THISTLE last semester
where we went into the Newark Public Schools and worked with the high school
teachers, and we are not mandated to take the course. They took it voluntarily
because they were drowning. The kids couldn't read. They were using books
that the kids couldn't read, and they were so thankful for the things we
gave them.

DR. MC DONALD: You don't have to convince me.

MS. JACOBOWITZ: Well, I am just telling you that in the colleges,
the students don't know about these things. They haven't taught yet, and
they are going to find out when they get there, and it may be too late for
them, so we have to, in a sense, mandate that they take the courses before.

SENATOR FELDMAN: Everybody likes to blame something on somebody
but on the TV and the media--- Usually they blame it on the Chancellor.

Do you blame it on the visual aids, they want to look at things on TV rather
than read?

MS. LEDERMAN: I don't blame it only on TV. I think TV contributes
to the lack of reading that is going on. I blame it on society, because
they don't put enough value on reading. That is what I blame it on. That
is creating a situation where people don't have to read to make money, and
they don't. But, I think that is a very wrong direction.

MR. JOHNSON: Thank you. We will now hear from a singer,

Mr. Wright from the Westminster cChoir College.

PETER WRIGHT: I am here to speak for Dr. Robinson, President
of the Westminster College. I have a couple documents which are being distributed.
In the interest of time, since my own document is rather long, I will read
only portions of it. I will skip some portions entirely, and summarize one
or two other elements.
I have great sympathy for the dilemma the Commission faces in hearing

the course of three sets of testimony that have come before you, representatives
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of various interest groups say, "We must have this, and we must have that,
and we must have the other thing in the teacher preparation program, and
in all teacher education programs." Where to draw the line is an extremely
difficult question about which to make up your mind. It is also an extremely
difficult question for each of the colleges offering teacher preparation
programs, because each of us has our own specializations, our own priorities
about what makes the quality program - whether we deal in teacher education
programs or not, and of course many of us do.

I will skip my introductory remarks thanking the Commission for
its good work and its wrestling alarm about what I feel are absolutely disasterous
results for Westminister Choir College if this document becomes a matter
of law. I will also skip the exposition about Westminster Choir College,
and hope that you may be able to guess some of the facts that were listed
there as I proceed.

I will begin at the bottom of page one, under credit hour mandates.
Among many problematic recommendations of the Commission, the most serious
of all are those mandating semester-hour allotments to designated curricular
components. Incorporation of these minimums into our curriculum would necessitate
the lengthening of the music education program to a period of 5 1/2 to 6
years, the only alternative being that of a disruption of the present professional
music component. In summary form this can be seen in our chart at the top
of page two. I won't go into that in detail, but if you look at the totals
in the right-hand column, we come to 185 credits that will be necessitated
in order to accommodate on the one hand, the minimum credit-hour allotments
mandated by the present commission report,and on the other hand retaining
those elements of the professional music training program and of presently
offered music education courses outside of field experience that are required
by Westminster Choir College.

If T may depart from my report, Sister Ann John spoke earlier about
her interpretation of the 180 hours in public schools, feeling that would
represent half-time student load for each of two semesters. Our interpretation
of this is that it would represent a full-time student load.in that under
field experience you mandate one-fourth of the credits for graduation. That
is, two full-time semesters. And, based on the fact that our degree program
requires 135 credits presently for a Bachelor's Degree in Music Education,
we get 33 credits simply in the area of field experience.

One of the problems represented here is that---

CHANCELLOR HOLLANDER: I really don't understand the chart.

MR. WRIGHT: We can go back to that at the end of my testimony,
sir. Dr. Robinson speaks to the problem created for us in terms of our
professional crediting association, the National Association of Schools of
Music which requires at least 50% of the credits offered in music to be professional
music course work. This would be impossible given the mandate of the Commission
for credit to be offered in areas other than music.

I turn to my document, paragraph one on page two, it requires far
greater preparation to train a competent musician than it does for vitually
any other major field in which future public school teachers are likely to
concentrate. The foremost cause for this is that, in addition to the accumulation

of specialized knowledge, many skills must be mastered and an art form must
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be cultivated. As the curriculum at any prestigious school or department

of music will illustrate, the requirements for musicians are heavier than

for undergraduates in any other field outside the laboratory sciences. Student-
faculty contact time is on the order of 25 hours per week in comparison to

15 or 16 hours at most other institutions.

An English major, biology major, or history major - among others -
has a Commission mandate of one-fourth of the total semester hours required
for graduation - Standard IX, page 33 - a substantial number of which credits
would logically be subsumed within the "general education" category. It
is doubtful whether more than a small number of a music major's credits could
be subsumed under general education if rigorous standards are applied, since
the coursework is largely technical, not liberal. We might with justification
categorize some music history credits as general education, but to classify
similarly coursework in music theory, applied music instruction, conducting,
and other indispensable elements of our music program would be contrary to
the spirit and inconsistent with the letter of the Commission report.

The music education student at a professional school, like the
typic¢al music conservatory, Westminster Choir College offers an uncompromisingly
strong program of professional music study. Unlike the typical conservatory,
however, the music education major at Westminster is not a "second-class
musician," representatives of the "those-who-can't-do, teach" syndrome. Our
education majors must meet the same standards as their counterparts in other
music specializations. The education requirements are in fact more stringent
than those for any other undergraduate major at Westminster because of the
array of required courses and the total semester hours that must be earned.

Requirements of accrediting and certifying agencies, apart from
the college commitment to professional music training, its thurst toward
the preapartion of graduates who will work effectively with others, and its
continued stress on field experience, Westminster encounters mandates for
inclusion of specific curricular components from a perplexing variety of
quarters. Some developments of the past four years will serve to illustrate
that statement:

Item: Our professional accrediting agency, the National Association
of Schools of Music, has mandated very high minimum standards
for music coursework elements in a Bachelor of Music program,
including at least 50% of total graduation credits for music
education majors.

Item: The New Jersey State Legislature passed a law requiring
that a course in urban sociology be included in every teacher

preparation program.

Item: The Department of Higher Education began requiring all education
graduates in all fields to have two courses in the teaching

of reading included in their curricula.

Item: The National Association of State Directors of Teacher Education
and Certification (NASDTEC) team mandated an increase of
the required experience for music education majors at Westminster

in instrumental methods and conducting.
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MR. JOHNSON: In reference to that comment, we have thirteen pages
of testimony here. I would suggest that we move to recommendations, and
maybe we could have a better dialogue in the area. That might be helpful
for the Commission if you would move right into your recommendations.

MR. WRIGHT: Well, you can go to the last page of my report, then.

I would like to recommend a number of items.

One, reduce or eliminate entirely the semester-hour specifications
for various components of teacher preparation degree programs. Failing this,
make provisions for specialized institutions to present alternative formats
for program approval.

Two, reduce field experience requirements for faculty-student supervision
time. Leave evaluation of the effectiveness of the supervisory process to
accrediting teams.

Three, reduce or eliminate requirements for faculty-student supervision
time. Leave evaluation of the effectiveness of the supervisory process to
accrediting teams.

Four, remove the specifications concerning admission to the teaching
education major. Let institutions determine this by means of appropriate
pre-requisites and screening processes.

Four, remove the specifications concerning admission to the teaching
education major. Let institutions determine this by means of appropriate
pre-requisites and screening processes.

Five, drop the specification of a 2.5 grade point average for admission
to teacher preparation programs. Let institutions determine the aptitude
of their students for teaching as opposed to mandating an arbitrary average.

Six, eliminate the requirement that a master's degree be required
for all future teachers. Give credence to the possibility that teaching
effectiveness can be promoted better through provisions for alternatives.

Seven, stress the importance of screening processes, built-in safeguards,
competencies, and institutional goals. Eliminate specifics which are either
unworkable or which tend to engender nominal and not substantive responses.

Eight, take into account the impact on disadvantaged students,
women, and young teachers which strict application of the Commission report
would have.

Nine, let accreditation teams evaluate all aspects of teacher preparation
programs on-site, rather than making assumptions about what must be appropriate
or necessary for every institution.

Ten, recognize that variety among institutions cannot be promoted
by application of arbitrary and inflexible standards.

Eleven, continue the participation of New Jersey in the Interstate
Certification Compact, but permit the same opportunity for variation among
institutions as exists in the other participating states.

Twelve, recognize that the teaching profession is not lucrative
or prestigious and that it is in need of your support and praise.

MR. JOHNSON: I think it is helpful to hear those recommendations,
and again assuming that those recommendations are also built on the record
as you have stated. I think we have some questions or concerns.

DR. MC DONALD: Mr. Wright, I am going to be blunt. Your recommendations---
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But I am going to be constructive for your sake, too, I hope, and ours. Your
recommendations really suggest that we arrange our report so it doesn't inconvenience
you, right?

MR. WRIGHT: I think you are putting words in my mouth. To answer
your question fairly I would demand more time than we have. I don't accept
it in quite those terms. I do agree that should you act hypothetically comprehensively
upon the recommendations that I made, a great deal of the work and purposes
that you have in mind might seem to be undermined. I support, however, my
recommendation on the basis of rejecting your fundamental premise, as have
a number of representatives who have testified before you, namely that the
present state of teacher preparation programs in New Jersey is in horrible
shambles and in need of major surgery. We can all improve. We hopefully
are all improving, but I suggest that we are better now than we have ever
been before, so the major surgery is not called for on the order that you
have suggested.

MR. JOHNSON: Could we be better?

MR. WRIGHT: Of course.

DR, MC DONALD: Let's go back to the last part where you commented
that we shouldn't be so critical. That isn't the issue. If we wanted to
do something to improve the quality of teacher education programs in the
State, it seems to me that this Commission after two years of debating at
the urging of the Legislature has come up with some proposals that might
start a process of improvement.

Now, the practical problem for you is, if that happens, you have
real difficulty.

MR. WRIGHT: We certainly do.

DR. MC DONALD: I am going to float a proposal to you, and you
can do with it as you wish. I will accept your practical premise. Your
program has special demands. I happen to believe that. I am not doing this
strictly for political reasons. When I was an associate dean for instruction
we had a large music division, and I am familiar with the kinds of requirements
you are talking about.

It seems to me there are a couple alternatives, but suggestions
as to which ones would be best for the Commission to apply to you ought to
come from you, rather than from us. One would be that you would ask for
some special status temporarily, because of the genuinely different nature
of your program, large demands on acquiring skills in music performance and
music teaching. So, that could be considered separately, and the Commission
can treat that in the area of other things they will have to treat in the
future.

The other would be on a temporary basis to propose ways to accommodate
what you are now doing to the requirements. There is so much practical experience
involved. For example, if you put somebody working in the music courses,
there may be some way to accommodate that to the present department as a
transitional stage. I personally think that you are atypical. What we are
proposing is meant for the generality of programs preparing people for the
elementary and secondary schools in its ordinary form. You have said that.

We have not talked about Vo-Tech, and there are a lot of things we have not

talked about.
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Maybe you ought to seriously consider you being shifted over to
those other categories. I don't know if the other members of the Commission
would agree to that or think it is a good idea. But, that at least---

MR. WATSON: No, we wouldn't. All of us wouldn't.

DR. MC DONALD: At least it would give us the opportunity to discuss
you as unique, rather than us saying that your uniqueness requires that we
junk the whole report.

MR. WATSON: Every program, every student, every campus has a
uniqueness about it, and I think unless we are going to recognize all the
uniquenesses around the State, private or public, whatever the discipline
is, I don't think we ought to extend it to one problem.

SENATOR FELDMAN: Dr. Hollander shares with you an immeasureable
pride for Westminster Choir College. Frankly and honestly I did not know
too much about your college other than your reputation befcre your coming
in here, and Dr. Hollander, our Chancellor has re-emphasized the fact to
me that your school is great in your particular field. But, I am hearing
things that have astounded me. I never heard them before. Such as, the
New Jersey State Legislature passed a law requiring that a course in Urban
Sociology be included in every teacher preparation program, and you stated,
Dr. Wright, this is being included in the requirements of the last four years.
Unless I slept through that Senate session, I never heard of this mandate,
so I want to arrest your fears. I want to know what this is all about. But,
I don't think we mandated Urban Sociology. I wish you would enlighten me.

MR. WRIGHT: The course is referred to under several different
terminologies. Persons here have referred to the same course by different
names, inter-cultural studies. Perhaps I have used the wrong term as far
as this Commission is concerned.

SENATOR FELDMAN: Perhaps it could be a regulation, not by legislation.

MR. WRIGHT: It is a matter of legislation.

DR. HOLMES: It is part of the Administrative Code passed by the
State Board of Education.

SENATOR FELDMAN: I believe that the buck stops at the Legislature
for the things that we do, and the buck should stop at the Department of
Education and the Commissioner for what he does. (Laughter)

If we were responsible for that, I would know about it. It was
done through regulation, I believe. So, the educators have to understand
what is administrative law through regulation and what is legislative law.

It is easy to erase a regulation law. It all depends upon who the next Commissioner
will be or the next Chancellor, but the Legislature demands a vote of the
legislators to repeal something which has been done. So, if this certainly

knaws away at your educational vitals, you should make it known to the Department

of Education.

MR. WRIGHT: I take your criticism that---

SENATOR FELDMAN: It is not criticism; it is just an observation.

MR. WRIGHT: I take your observation to mean that I have ascribed
the mandating of that particular course requirement to the legislature incorrectly.
It remains,and of course it has been mandated from a source outside the
college, as merely one of the many things mandated in responding to the very

kind comments of Dr. Mc Donald. I appreciate your suggestion that we see
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what we can do to accommodate ourselves to the recommendations of this report.
We will certainly do so, especially when it becomes necessary. We have been
accommodating, and accommodating, and accommodating, however, for quite a

few years, especially in the very recent past.

DR. MC DONALD: I wasn't suggesting being accommodating; I was
suggesting thinking of the principles we are trying to apply and suggesting
ways that might fit you, but would be different from what would be required.

We want more field experience for people who are going to teach, for example.

DR. HOLMES: Mr. Wright, with regard to those courses, we have
members of the teaching profession here and other individuals. When it appears—---
I want you to know that something is not proposed by the board and passed
by the board without necessary public comment and public hearing. I think
the few courses that have been mandated by the State Board of Education over
the past five, six, maybe seven years, if not longer, have been few. We
are talking about reading. We had members from the profession speaking earlier,
speaking to the fact that they were appreciative that the State Board mandated
courses for individuals, since our reading level was low. In terms of inter-
cultural relations, I will defend that one as well in the sense that there
are many teachers who do not reside in the urban areas who are not familiar
with certain problems that exist there as our economy has changed.

It was thought and obviously supported by many members of the community
that a course such as that be mandated, since it was not included in many
teacher programs around the State.

MR. WRIGHT: We do not attack that or most of the other recommendations
which this Commission would mandate, or which are already in effect, requirements
for teacher preparation programs. My main point is that these courses represent
simply some of the many, many requirements which we face. Every time even
one more course is added, it presents that much more of an insoluble problem for
schools such as our own in particular and, to varying extents, other institutions.
Looking at most any requirement individually, it is in most cases in this report
easy to justify and to agree with the point of view. When you put the whole
package together and look at our institution in particular, it makes little or no
sense.

MR. JOHNSON: 1In your specialized field of music ed, have course requirements
grown over the years in that area as you perceive it from the school's point
of view and is there a need for more specialized courses and required courses in
that particular field?

MR. WRIGHT: Was that a question you were asking?

MR. JOHNSON: Yes. In other words, has the requirement for graduation
from Westminster Choir College over the years increased in course hours in the
area of music programming?

MR. WRIGHT: They have and did so, as I mentioned elsewhere in this
report, to the point where the faculty realized that in all majors the requirements
were simply too heavy for an undergraduate. A reform was instituted with great
difficulty, reducing the requirements in all areas except that of music education
because we found in the process of those two years of the curriculum reform struggle
that as soon as we managed to get somebody who would be willing to give us something
in some area, then another course was mandated by our professional crediting
association, by the State Board of whichever terminology might be correct, and

from other sources both within and outside of the college. Thus, the music
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education program remains as difficult as it cver was and you seem to be suggesting
that it is going to become a great deal more difficult.

DR. MC DONALD: Where do most of your students teach?

MR. WRIGHT: The greatest majority of our students - the greatest plurality
of our students - come from New Jersey and teach in New Jersey.

DR. MC DONALD: 1In the public schools?

MR. WRIGHT: 1In public schools, private schools and across the country.

DR. MC DONALD: Are they entering teaching as a career or is it kind of
an insurance policy because their primary life is as musicians?

MR. WRIGHT: Ten years ago or twelve years ago, I would say that many
of them - perhaps I should say a significant number of them, more than we would
like to think of - were entering music education as a backup in case they didn't
make it as performers. Today that is not the case. First of all, our music
education enrollment as most education enrollments everywhere has been declining
in its total numbers. Secondly, the educational field, music or otherwise, is not
as attractive a field today as it was twelve years ago and twenty years ago and
the requirements for completing the teacher program are far heavier than they were
in these previous eras.

DR. MC DONALD: Incidentally, would you like us to modify your numbers
on page 2? I think our numbers don't agree with your numbers. For example,
for the 33, we have from one of our staff persons keeping track of this ---
instead of 33, we have 30. Fifty is the same in general education. We keep getting
15 instead of 16 in the behavioral sciences. We make no specification in non-practicum
education courses. So, I don't know how you got 21. In the non-education major,
we get 30 instead of 65. Our total of what we are asking for is 125 instead of
185. And most of the 125 are already in the curriculum in one form or another.

MR. WRIGHT: Then let me explain this. First of all, we require 135 hours
now for a music education graduate. Your standard under field experience is one-
fourth of the credits for graduation. One-fourth of 135 - 33 is as close as you
can get, not 30.

DR. MC DONALD: How do you get one-fourth, by the way?

MR. WRIGHT: Standard IX, page 34, sir. One-fourth of the credits for
graduation is the specific language of the Commission Report.

DR, MC DONALD: Okay - sorry.

MR. WRIGHT: Now, general education ---

DR. MC DONALD: I must read that report. (Laughter.)

MR. WRIGHT: General education - we agree - again one-eighth of the
credits for graduation; one-eighth of 135 comes out to 16 for us. Non-education
major field, again one-fourth the credits for graduation comes to 33 by the
Commission's definition. We already have 65. We are not about to chop off 30
credits from our professional non-education major field of music. We have to have
that minimum 65 credits there. You can't train a musician and you can't train a
musician who is going to teach effectively in the public schools without those
65 credits.

Does that answer some of your questions or am I s till misreading you?

DR. MC DONALD: Yes. I see where your problem is. You only have 33
general education credits.

MR. JOHNSON: Are there other guestions? (No questions.)

Thank you,Dean Wright.

Is there anyone else who wishes to speak?
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Again, I want to thank the Commission members for their participation.
We will adjourn at this time. I want to thank the staff and the
stenographers.

(Hearing Adjourned)
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Thank you very much for the opportunity to appear before you today.
I am speaking on behalf of the Teacher Education Council of State Colleges
and Universities. This is an organization comprised of education deans wvhose
schools and colleges are members of the American Association of State Colleges
and Universities. The state colleges of New Jersey are currently supplying
75 percent of all pre-service and education personnel. Consequently, their
involvement in planning reform in teacher education is critical. I wish to
point out to the Commission the necessity of recognizing that these colleges
are directly impacted by policies and budgets developed by the Department
of-Highef_Education. Consequently, the relationship of the Department of
Higher Education té the State Education department in regard to teacher training
is of paramount importance.

I wish to make the following recommendations to the Commission pursuant
to the circulation of the Preliminary Report of the Commission to Study Teacher
Preparation Programs in New Jersey issued in July 1980. These comments will
not include a line by line response to the recommendations of the Report.
Rathe: they hope to focus the attention of the Commission on some lmportant
issues not sufficiently addressed in the Report as well as to provide some

suggestions for actions which would facilitate wt*tainment of the goal of
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creating a thorough and efficient systen of education for the children of MNew
Jersey with qualified personnel.

My first recommendation focuses on the need for the Commission to reconcile
the intention of proposed legislation to improve teacher education with the

. . : “ . E . ;..
goals and purposes of T 0 50 Such legistatien eheid evniicatae vthe nenecaity
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of joint cemmitment of the State Education Department and the Department of
Higher Education to collaborate in developing and supporting a system for the
education of educators.

In recent years, New Jersey has anticipated progressive national education
movements particularly in relation to F.L. 1975 and laws concernirg the
rights of handiéapped children and those whose primary and dominant language
is not Luglish. 1In each case, the enabling legislation has been visionary
and provided state and local bureaucracies with guidance concerning the kinds
of administrative regulations and résources such purposes would require.

The document issued in July falls fér short of such legislative development.
As presented, the Report is little more than a iimited;redesign of teacher
credentialing focusing on the need for longer initial preparation time; more
traditional study in liberal arts; more practical experience in the public
échools; énd the need to shift responsibility for pre-service teacher prepara;
tion program evaluation from one office within the State Education Department
to another,.

There is no question that teacher credentialing in New Jersey needs to
be overhauled. So is teacher education in need of reform. The entire nation,
as is evident by popular discussion and the media, agree that teacher educa-

tion needs reform. The Ouztoher issua of Phi Telis Yeuonan points out that

colleges of education "will in all probability never overhaul their programs

v

if ezch colilege is to do it alone" and that "fewces broader and mwore powoerful
‘than those of a single college can. . .brcak through, . .to bring about a new
day. . . "

We are hopeful that the work of the Newman Commission will be impetus for
such needed reforms. However, it is distressing to note that the Commissien

~

sumnarvized its recommendations with o lis. of couiue by course requirenente
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and sketchy administrative rule making rather than presenting the policy
parameters by which all teacher preparation programs would be developed and
evaluated. It is agreed that the T & E education of the children of New
Jersey should be conducted by qualified teachers who have been appropriately
prepared. It is important to note that P.L. 1975, Ch. 212 specified
the responsibility of the State to provide a system which would insure the
T & E of all children. This legislation and its subsequent regulations don't
define what such education is with course by course specifications.

Rather, T & E is designed as an accountability system which focuses
on the State's‘responsibility to insure-that local districts identify their
goals; propose appropriate measurements; and de&elop with the State budgets
consistent with the projected programs. Further, it gives the State respon-
sibi;ity to develop a method of reporting subject to public review as weil as
éhe respoﬁsibility.to provide technical assistance to those areas identified
in ‘educational need. |

Similar policy parameters explicating the State'é responsibility to design
a system-of teacher preparation which provides for accountability, diversity,
appropriate resource support, developmental assistance, evéluation and a method
of reporting subject to public review needs to become a more central theme in
the Commission's recommendations.

" Absent from the report and important to correct immediately and legisla-
tively, if we are to ameliorate the training of teachers, is specific language

concerning the collaboraticn of the DHE and SEA and their respective roles.

Such collaboration must focus on joint responsibility in the planning,
budgeting, operating and reporting of integrated programs designed to meet the
pre-service and in-service needs of education personnel as indicated in T & E
legislation, federal initiatives, and the vererally acknowledged need for

education personnel to continue development throughout their professional
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There are extant examples of legislation in other states like Florida
and Ohio cdesigned to identify the collahorative role of higher educaticn and

=3

the public schiools. Unfortunately, the Commission's preliminary-Feport

e

focuses more on regulatory specifics of thekSE@‘and fhé’ﬁHE rather than those
of system responsibility. It is also hard to reconcile the concern of the
State with reform in teacher education with the absence of comprehensive
attention to teacher education in the New Jersey Master Plan for Higher Edu-
cation,

<. There are approximately 100,000 education personnel employed in New
Jersey, with an estimated S,OOQ replaccments nceded annually. This labor
maﬁpower requirement alcne specks to the urgency of such planning. Further,

tiatives at the federal level, both in Title V and VI of ESEA require com-

[

in
prehensive planning by the state for both pre-service and in-service personnel
needs. The state should demonstrate its capability for interagency planning
by adding appropriate sections for teacher education reform to the Newman
Report and to the State Master Plan for Higher Education.

Consistent with the need for planninz is the necessity to anticipate the
effzet of social, ecoaomic, anrd program changes on the potential pool of
perséns who are currently in the process of becoming teachers who can be
recruited to becoma fcachers. The secticon iIn tihe report on the expected
effeets of the proposed changes needs to include seme statement on the kind
of personnel the proposed changes are inteaded to efrect, Huch has been
written in recent months, particularly by Timothy Weaver, on the brain drain
in teacher education.

n oconcerne 1l peed foomoaoaacra aceveate apglvoio
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of the current teacher supply-demarnd picture in New Jersey and the need to
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anticipate the impact of the Commission's proposals. Appropriate actions and
programs should be devzaloped.

Last year, the state employed close to 4,500 new teachers; only 4,300
were produced by all the colleges in the State (see attachment B). It should
be noted that this number represents a 42 percent decline since the record
production year of 1974 when 7,448 were produced. It is important to note
that the state colleges and university produced 88 percent of all pre-service
teachers in 1974; and 85 percent in 1979. The state colleges alone produce
and have consistently produced approximately 75 percent of the total pre-service
population. Their capacity to deliver the kind of quality programs envisioned, -
given the cuts in peréonnel aﬁd resources experienced in the last six years,
must be assessed and an appropriate commitment to allocate resources must be
made. One state, Ohio, generally not identified as abounding in resources
for educafion, has committed $10 million to improve its teacher preparation
. programs. This amount, $10 million, represents the estimated cost of
providing the proposed extensive field experiences for 4,000 pre-service
teachers as proposed by the Commission.

Certainly, if such funding should be provided, it would be better spent
on the development of innovative programs and arrangements addressed to meet
the educational needs defincd in our State. Schools, colleges, and departments
.of education need program and staff development funding but they need to
become integrally linked to the education system of the State as well.

‘RPesources should he provided for both activities.

D

(

The assessment of public schools currently underway gives the Commissioner
of Education responsibility for providing technical assistance to those schocls
fourd in need. Agencies designed for that purpose are the county offices

and the Educaticral Tuprovenent Centers. The rolo of hisher cducation and
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schools, colleges, and departments of educatien has not been specified. Cne
possible solution can he patterned after the Teacher Center program sponsored
by Syracuse University. Here, college faculty conduct and couordinate pre-
service and in-service iraining activitics subject to a program built on
needs assessment and evaluvation. Rather than receiving honoraria, the district
receives credit vouchers to be used at the college for the district's staff
development needs;
The state of Florida budgets$5:00per pupil for in-service training;
$3.00 of which must be speat in an institution of higher education. Georgia
has developed a professional development plan for new teachers in which col-
leges play an active role.

The role and resources of our teacher education institutions have been

drastically reduced. They muut not be rceduced further,
: The budgetary implications of the Commission's proposals are exacerbated

by the academic profile of students selecting themselves into education.
There is universal agreement that the academic characteristics and performarce
of students in teacher education needs to be raised.

The current pool of students enrolled in undergraduate and graduate pro-
grams in education does not supsest that ve are attracting persons of outstanding
academic ability to the education profescion. However, given that the profes-
sion. is currently deprived of its traditional resource of personnel; that is,

irticulate weomen who now choose training in other fields, and
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iven tne economic or soclal disaavantages of education as a professicen, it
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is not difficult to project that left to market fortunes, Ffewer persons

looking to capitalize on their investment in higher education, will select

thenselves into cducatien as  a career. This would lead as it has
alvor iy In ibe ovess o ol wo Lhomal on, el . D
education to the employment of pers-.ns cn emer;ap.y covtitication and
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with lower academic qualities than those anticipated by the Commission Report.
And the resources of the colleges would decline even further. If the State
is concerned with attracting a sufficient number of superior or at least
above average persons into education the Commission should seek to broaden
the definition of educational preparaticn to provide training for the life-
long learning functions of education which has come to characterize our society.
Large numbers of persons are employed in educative roles in industry, health,
the military and human service agencies. The Commission's insistance that
students spend time exclusively in classrooms in public schools limits the
potential pool of persons who may be interested in education as a profession.
Further, it does not seriously recognize the scope of the education industry
or the needs for such preparation. Such a comprehensive definition would serve
to strengthen the commitment of higher education to collaborate with traditional
education departments in new inter-disciplinary arrangements. A national move-
ment in this direction among education leaders hopes to broaden the definition
of the education profession to strengthen not only the knowledge base of learning
but to stimulate cross-agency exchanges and strengthening of appropriate
training models. Title V of the recent amendments to the Higher Education Act
of 1965 includes language which authorizes the diversification and redirection
of education nrograms to nake maxinum use of human resources in the Fileld of
e&ucation and public service. Such an education future orientation would serve
New Jersey well. The Commissicn should propose the develcpment of such programs
across the state as well as consoria arrangements to devel&p workplace and
human service training programs as anticipated by the School of Ed. Assistance Ast,
My third recommendation concerns agreement that a period of induction is
needed before entry into the profession. One should not equate, however; this
induct o owiod with the atocrrent of a waster's Jeevee, T receommend that

e

the Commai+sion clarify the policy parameters that propose to characterize
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pre-service programs as well as policy parameters for the induction period.
These policy statemcnt: should provide fof local autoncmy, flexibility,
diversity, encourage excellence and reflect a definition of education as a
broadly defined profession. It must be assumed that colleges will be preparing
students dedicated to careers in the educition profession in addition to careers
as elementary or secondary school teachers. Such policy guidelines would be
consistent with the visionary design for education which is beginning to emerge
in the state in other arecas of education. It must also be applied to the
preparation of educators.

In regard to current programs prepéring teachers to work in public schools,
we must not be left with the impression tﬁat the colleges of our state
are not in the main characterized by &ke programs similar to those proposed.
Both HCATE and NASDTEC include the stancards identified in the report as well
As other étandards equally relevant. However,; they do not and should not
specify a course by course curriculum. New Jersey should resist such proposals
as they are narrow, provincial, lead to add-ons by interest groups and reduce
program planners to laundry list checkers.

It is ironic to note that in the approximate 130 semester hours of under-
graduate work proposed, several courses currently required for certification
in lLiew Jersey are omittcd. Curriculur ¢ nnet and chould not be built in
this additive or negotiated way. CLach college should be required to present a
rationale for the program it is sponsoring, hard evidence that the students

‘meet academie standards, evidence that the curriculum is supported by suf-
ficient academic and instructional resources, and that the program combines
theory and field practices and is subject to periodic self-examination by

students, colleagues, and the profession; as well as summative evaluation by

.
et Y e

an oppropriate acerediting apgency. The: o chogen torizo nest

programs as they are presently condicted in New Jersey. This is not to supgest
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that improvements should not be made; that closer links need to be built with

the education community in the public schouls for pre-service and in-service

training; or that each educatiocn program should include a period of incduction
which permits students to further refine their skills before they are awarded

a standard New Jersey certificate.

The State Education Departﬁent or the Department of Higher Education

should specify their concerns and immediately recfify the programs and areas

in need of correction. Vague references to problems of external accreditation

and the need for greater assurances of the academic profile.of teacher educa-

tion students will not change the education of ﬁeachers quickly if at all.

We can and‘should be much more precise in the identificatiog/gz;as in need of

cﬁange and immediately correct them. Here are three:

. 1. Teaching as a career option is not attracting intellectually superior
students. Creaté a "merit" scholarship program.

2. Schools, colleges, and departments of education cannot be held accountable
for the academic experiences of transfer students from the county col-
leges which comprise half their populations. County colleges should
be required to limit their involvement in teacher éducation programs
or create two tier programs with clear role delineaticns. (I have
presented evidence before this Commission in 1978 which demonstrated
that many county colleges offer what amounts to entire teacher prepara-
tion programs. This situation must be rectified.)

3. Ask each dean of education to review their programs in light of MNCATT
or NHASDTEC standards; identify strengihs and weaknesses with a con-
commitent plan of approval. Support such program improvement plans
with joint resources from the State Education Department and the Depart-

. - . o~
ment of Higher Dlucation.
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A planning, research and technical assistance agency for teacher educa-
tion is urgently needed, not more regulatiors.

My fourth recommendation concerns the need to clarify and supplement the
roles and responsibiiities of three governance groups referred to in the
Report: the Advisory Council on the Evaluation of Teacher Education, the Board
of Examiners, and a standing commission to monitor the implementation of the
recommendations of this Report. Although I applaud the proposed reconstitution
of the Board of Examiners to include deans of education, I cannot understand
why given the scarce resources available to education in the state that a council
be created to develop and recommend staﬂdards for education programs and to
implement a system of program evaluation when mbre than one such system exists.

There have been literally millions of dollars spent on the development
of program guidelines not only by NCATE, YASDTEC but a host of professional
éssociatians such as the National Council of Teacher; of FEnglish, Mathematics,
Social Studies, etc. We do not need a continuing commission to define what
is wrong or what has been wrong with the approval of programs in teacher edu-
cation. -Neither do we need a flurry of paper accumulation to indicate all
that is right. The State requires all programs to have NASDTEC approval. It
also requires all prosrams to have state approval which means that their pro-

a7

crams meet the requivements in the 'ew Jersey Pejulations and Standards for

‘Certification manual. It has been of long concern that individuals can be
granted initial or subzequent certification on the mere presentation of limited
“study in particular areas. The imeomststemeiec—in-the- Report's recommendations
for rigor and thoroughness need to be applied to a redesign of the administra-
tive ccde as it applies to New Jersey Regulations for Certification. The

areas of transcript evaluation, multiple endorsements, and study completed

at two vear community colleges need to be addressed cnd rectified immediately.
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Neither should all teacher education programs be summarily abolished as
proposed on page 70. Such a proposal, in addition to insulting the integrity
of the higher education community, their graduates and public, will continue
the precarious position of teacher education as it dangles as "negotiable"
territory in the ever present battle of local autonomy and central control
between the state colleges and the DHE., Where is the commitment of the
governing agencies proposed to encourage, develop, protect as well as monitor
teachef preparation programs?

If improvement of the quality of pre-service teachers is of universal
concern in our State such support must be given.

The Commission has made a good beginning, but it has not gone far enough
in developing progressive policy guidelines or proposing imaginative appro-
priate actions. Consequently, we in the state colleges cannot support the
entire recommendations of the Report until the issues raised above are
~ clarified.

Thank you.

12x



ATTACHMEKT B

Number of Persons FElizible for Initial Teacher Certification
in New Jersey, 1973-1979, as Rerorted ito AACTE, Washington,D.C.

Collesme 1973 197k 1975 1976 1977 1978 1979
Caldwell College an 64 52 25 55 30 15
Georgian Court 112 87 112 110 102 Th 82
Glasstoro State 902 1438 1239 1409 1409 81k 736
Jersey City State 1035 860 666 387 589 k31 320
Monmouth State - - - — - - 84
Montclair State 819 753 819 853 905 556 397
Kean College 1197 1055 NR 648 “696 643 Lo7
Ramapo College 25 37 NR 48 ko 8 20
Rider College 296 166 150 118 100 87 183
Rutgers¥ , 626 559 605 600 600 - k450 450
College of St. Elizabeth 54 57 36 53 37 Lo 42
St. Peters 151 135 131 80 88 87 80
Seton Hall 287 316 229 190 186 170 131
’Stockton State - - - - - 18 10
Trenton State 895 1017 836 95k 177 693 530
Upsala 59 5k bz 20 7 7 9
William Paterson 8h1 850 78% 674 1239 563 786
Total ' 7363 Thhe 5703 6169 6839 L6T1 k307

¥ Appears Fstimated

October 20, 1980
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INTRODUCT ION

As an academic representative of Westminster Choir College who has reviewed
the Preliminary Report of the Commission to Study Teacher Preparation Programs in
New Jersey, I commend the Commission on an admirably thorough and well-written
document., The results of your work must be acknowledged to stem from a sincere
desire to improve the quality of training programs for New Jersey teachers,

It is with regret that we find the document as a whole unacceptable in many
critical aspects, particularly in regard to scctions on undergraduate and post-graduate
progrems, Its fundamental premise is one which Westminster Choir College rejects
vigorously: that, as stated on page 3 of the rcport, there exists a pervasive
"dissatisfaction with the quality of teacners graduated from the institutions of
higher education in the State."

1f the report is accepted by the state legislature and becomes law without
major modifications in dctails as described hereafter, the results for Westminster
Choir College will be disastrous. Furthermore, it is my contention that the zeal of
the Commission in recommending mecasurcs as drastic as we view them is likely to be
counter-productive to the intention of improving teacher preparation programs in
New Jersey; that is, we foresee that many teacher candidates will decline to enroll
in New Jersey institutions., The report as it stands demeans the teaching profession
and the public and private colleges which are preparing students for that profession.

WESTMINSTER CHOIR COLLEGE - SALIENT FACTS

Westminster Choir College is an independent professional school of music with
a focus on choral music and an cenrollment of approximately 450 students. A music
education certification program has been offered at the undergraduate level since
1961; education majors currently constitute 53% (181 students in Fall 1980) of the
undergraduates, We are the only private professionalmusic institution in New Jersey,
and the education studenls rceceive the same Bachelor of Music degree as those in our
other major fields,

Westminster has had since its origin in 1926 a primary thrust toward training
musicians who will work effectively with other people, professional and amateur,
old and young. This thrusti has been maintained steadfastly since the advent of the
cducation major and gives us, we believe, a strong common bond with those state
colleges which began their existence as teacher training institutions. Our graduates
are seen by us as unexcelled and to have tew peers among music teachers and choral
conductors in the public and private schools, colleges, and communities of the
United States and of New Jersey in particular,

Westminster was one of the colleges in New Jersey which pioneered the inclusion
of field experience for its educs!ion majors (as well as for other students),

Becausce of these and other factoi:  we regard our teacher preparation as one of
excellence and integrity., No on: exempt from the need to continue improving
wherever possible, butl the major very called for by the report is neither

feasible nor nccessary,

CREDJ™ HOUR MANDATES

Among many problematic rccommendations of the Commission, the most serious of
all are those mandating semester-hour allotments to designated curricular components,
Incorporation of these minimums into our curriculum would necessitate the lengthening
of the music education program to a period of 53 to 6 years, the only alternative
being that of a disruptlon of the present professional music component. In summary
form this can be seen in the following chart:
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Commission semester Westminster present Necessitated WCC

Curriculum area hours mandates semester hours semester hour revision
Field experience 33 (Standard XI, p. 34) 10 33
(4 credits for graduation)
General education 50 (Standard VIII, p. 31) 33 50
Behavioral sciences 16 (Standard X, p. 33) 6 16

(1/8 credits for graduation)

Non-practicum (unspecified in report) 21 21
education courses

Non=-education 33 (Standard IX, p. 33) 65 65
“major field (3 credits for graduation)
TOTA LS 135 185

" There are several reasons why semester hour requirements would increase as
amatically as indicated above:

1. Music training requirements

It requires far greater preparation to train a competent musician than it does
for virtually any other major field in which future public school teachers are
likely to concentrate, The foremost cause for this is that, in addition to the
accumulation of specialized knowledge, many skills must be mastered and an art form
must be cultivated. As the curriculum at any prestigious school or department of
music will illustrate, the requirements for musicians are hecavier than for under=
graduates in any other field outside the laboratory sciences, Student-faculty contact
time is on the order of 25 hours per week in comparison to 15 or 16 hours at most
other institutions.

An English major, biology major, or history major (among others) has a Commission
mandate of one-fourth of the total semester hours required for graduation (Standard IX,
p. 33), a substantial number of which credits would logically be subsumed within the
"general education' category. It is doubtful whether more than a small number of a
music major's credits could be subsumed under general education if rigorous standards
are applied, since the coursework is largely technical, not liberal. We might with
justification categorize some music history credits-as general education, but to
classify similarly coursework in music theory, applied music instruction, conducting,
and other indispensable elements of our music program would be contrary to the
spirit and inconsistent with the letter of the Commission report,

i 2, The music education student al a professional school

Like the typical music conservatory, Westminster Choir College offers an
uncompromisingly strong program of professional music study. Unlike the typical
conservatory, however, the music education major at Westminster is not a "second-class
musician,"” representative of the ''those-who-can't-do, teach' syndrome. Our education
majors must meet the same standards as their counterparts in other music specializations.
The education requirements are in fact more stringent than those for any other
undergraduate major at Westminster because of the array of required courses and the
total semester hours that must be earned.

16 x
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ya
\3f/Requirements of accrediting and certifying agencies

//ﬂ Apart from the college commitment to professional music training, its thrust

toward the preparation of graduates who will work effectively with others, and its
continued stress on field experience, Westminster encounters mandates for inclusion
of specific curricular components from a perplexing variety of quarters. Some
developments of the past four years will serve to illustrate that statement:

Item: Our professional accrediting agency, the National Association of Schools
of Music, has mandated very high minimum standards for music coursework
elements in a Bachelor of Music program, including at least 50% of total
graduation credits for music education majors.

Item: The New Jersey State legislature passed a law requiring that a course in
urban sociology be included in every teacher preparation program.

Item: The Department of Higher Education'began requiring all education graduates
in all fields to have two courses in the teaching of reading included
in their curricula.

Itein: The National Association of State Directors of Teacher Education and
Certification (NASDTEC) team mandated an increase of the required
experience for nmusic education majors at Westminster in instrumental
methods and conducting.

Jri the mid-1970's, after an intensive two=~year struggle, the faculty curriculum
committee succecded in achieving what it felt to be a reform in the college music
curricula as a whole, The prevailing rationale was that our requirements had been
slowly increasing to the point where students were being subjected to unacceptably
heavy course loads, The change was viewed by many facully members as a degradation
of standards, not a recform, though they acknowlcedged the difficulties which
undergraduates were experiencing. It was simply not possible, in fact, to reduce
the total requirements effective for education majors, given pressures from within
and outside the institution. In contrast to other majors, reductions in some areas
for the education students were immediately negated by the addition of credits in
other components which "had" to receive more attention., The music education
curriculum continues to fairly burst at the seams,

4. A highly-structured curriculum

As can be gathered from the foregoing narrative, the curriculum for Westiminster
music education undergraduates is highly structured. The four-year program in this
field includes the element of choice in exactly four courses, all of them in the
general cducation category. Any course clected otherwise by a student constitutes
an addition to the 135 presently-required semester hours and does not contribute to
the meeting of graduation requirements,

We do not suggest that an effectlive music teacher cannot graduate from any
New Jersey institution other than Westminster. We do maintain that the Westminster
music education curriculum has demonstirably more rigorous minimum standards for the
range of knowledge and technical competence required for successful music teaching,
particularly in the choral music field. The curricular mix and the emphasis on
professional music training may be seen by different individuals with admiration,
disdain, or indifference, depending on their priorities and points of view., It is
our hope that the Commission will stand by its contention that it wishes to encourage
the existence of a variety of approaches to teacher education as opposed to a series
of indistinguishable programs at all institutions.
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IMPLICATIONS OF ADDITIONAL FIELD EXPERIENCE

As stated before, Westminster Choir College has been requiring field experience
prior to the traditional student teaching semester for education majors for two
decades and did so originally at a time when few other instituions, including the
public colleges, were doing so. Despite continucd grumbling from some members of
the faculty outside the music education department, we remain committed to the
concept,

As a college administrator responsible for preparing class schedules, I am
staggered by the thought of any substantial increases in the off-campus time required
for education students., Administrators from other colleges with whom I have talked
express similar dismay. Our education majors must take the same music courses as
our other students, all 65 semester hours being required specifically by name,.

There is no conceivable schedule that would allow a student to earn 33 semester hours
in off-campus field experience and to complete other degree requirements in a total
time span of four years.

At Westminster this could be - accomplished only by what I have called a disruption
of our professional music training. At other institutions it would no doubt be
accomplished largely at the expense of elective and gencral education requirements,
Indeed, the mandate for 50 semester bours is likely at many colleges to mean that
graductes are -involved in less general education than they are now, This is hardly
consistent with the Commission's strong stand in favor of that curricular component.

Furthermore, I think it is arguable that, notwithgtanding the value and necessity
of field experience, the primary place for a college education is at the college
with its faculty, not in the field. To argue otherwise suggests to me that one is

e o o e o

confusing vocatlion&l <{raining with liberal and professional education.

The Commission cites (p. 3 and elsewhere) comments from teachers indicative of
a widespread feeling that more field experience in their preparation programs would
have been useful., No doubt everyone would subscribe to this suggestion in and of
itself, but I submit that few if any would seriously campaign for a required program
of 5 or 6 years in order to make room for the additional field experience,

It seems likely that teachers were asked only about what areas seemed in
retrospect to have needed more attention and not about which aspects of their
curricular experience they viewed as expendable, If asked questions along the
latter lines, I suspect that teachers would respond that their general education
or professional training requirements should have been reduced in favor of more
field experience. Even more likely would be an overwhelming rejection of traditional
education courses in methods, materials, tests and measurements, and similar offerings.

Public school teachers are not cquipped, however, to design college curricula
for teacher education programs, Whilce they have unuassailable credentials for knowing
the day-to-day nceds of teaching in today's schools, Lhey do not have an understanding
of highcr education as a whole and of the nced to reconcile the curricular nceds
expressed by many competing educationsal idceologics and faculty groups, to say nothing
of the constraints imposed by accrediting bodies, state agencies, and legislatures,
To determine curricula requircs almost superhuman efforts on the parts of faculties
and a great deal of judicious compromise in order to arrive at a program which is
acceptable to a conscientious faculty and which will pass inspection by those outside
the college concerned with quality, accountability, and the marketability of degrees,
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ADMISSION STANDARDS

The recommendations regarding admission standards applicable to teacher
trainees constitute peculiar problems for Westminster Choir College. Standard X1I,
p. 34, mandates a formal admission process at the end of the sophomore year for those
interested in education., This standard presupposes that all institutions in New
Jersey have more or less generalized liberal arts programs and a wide variety of
disciplines from which a student, after two years of college exposure, is expected
to choose for career purposes,

Admission to the cducation major

As a one-discipline professional college, Westminster requires all students to
declare a major ficld of interest within nmusic at the time of application and
certainly at the time of initial enrollment. Students come to our institution
knowing beforehand what they wish to do with their lives and begin with a dedication
and clarity of purpose thal are perhaps unique in the state. It is essential that
they begin specialized major coursework in the first two college years if they are to
finish within a four-year time frame. It would be possible to create a dummy
clasgification for students who intend to pursue a certification program, but this
would be a mere device to conform with the letter of the law and would have no
materiel cffect upon the program of studies being followed.,

Terms like "sophomore" and "junior" have only limited meaning at Westminster,
The reguired courses arce not only very numerous but also involve many sequential
structures and muny pre-requisites. We have many trangfer students (about 25%)
who find it necessary to enroll for terms varying from four to eighl semesters

cyoud their previous college training. In the Spring 1980 semester some 3% of our

undergraduates actually possessed a baccalaurcate degree and were working on a
sccond degree at that level, Many students accelerate their programs or catch up
after falling behind by means of swumer and or January interim study. Some
Educational Opportunity Fund students require nine or more semesters to complete
graduation requirements. A four-year pattern continues to be a common one, but
there is a sizable number of students who would be seriously hampered if designations
such as "junior' had to be applied with rigor.

Our present pre-requisites for field werk are fully adequate for the purpose
envisioned by the Commission, In this instance as in many throughout the report,
it would be much more equitable, meaningful, and manageable if the report dealt in
terms of minimum competencies instead of specifics which may create more problems
than they solve and tend to engender nominal rather than substantive responses,

The minimum average for admission

A strong objection to the minimum 2,5 grade average for admission to a teacher
preparation program (Standard XI1, p. 31) is hereby registered. Teaching is to a
large extent un art, a profession demanding aptitude and motivation as well as
accumulation of knowledge. Every institution has experienced among its teacher
preparation candidates the brilliant student who demonstrates little or no flair
for teaching. Also well known is the type of student who earns minimum grades but
who excels as a classroom teacher, Such instances may not represent the majority
of cases, but it must be emphasized that the use of a grade average in evaluating
fitness for the teaching profession is suggestive of unenlightenment and probably
even of bias.
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The exclusion of students from admission to a teaching major program because
they do not possess a minimum average of 2.5 constitutes a crass negation of the
philosophy which led to the Educational Opportunity Fund Program, This program
presupposes that many students have experienced educational as well as financial
disadvantages and yet have potential for self-fulfillment and for vital contributions
to their communities and states, Students benefiting from this program may become
remarkably able and effcctive teachers, especially (though not only) upon returning
to the urban environments in which they grew up and which they are therefore uniquely
well prepared to serve, Yel these same BOF students may achicve only with difficalty
even the traditional 2.0 grade average by the end of wun entire undergraduate program,
let alone by the end of the second year of college.

Deficiency remediation

One of the most baffling conclusions reached by the Commission is that found cn
p. 23 of the report, where the subject of deficiencies on the part of disadvantaged
ethnic or racial groups is discussed. Regarding these deficiencies, the report states:
", . . it is pot the responsibility of the colleges of education to assume
this remedial function . . . They are not obligated to remedy situatlions
which are widespread and serious. This responsibility devolves on other
components of the institutions of higher education.' (emphasis added)

It is difficult to divine whal the Commission cowprehends by the term "colleges
of education." No collcge in New Jersey now devotes itself to the exclusive purpose
of training teachers, At the former state teaclhier colleges, the state has moved
quite properly in the dircction of making them multi-purpose institutions which serve
meny interestis of the citizenry. 7Teacher candidates have bepcefited greatly by the
expansion of teacher colleges to include other disciplines, other faculties, and
students with a wide variety of career outlooks,

The Commission cannot intend that disadvantaged students be directed to some
sort of special-purpose institution for remediation of deficiencies, only thereafter
to enter a "college of education.”" On the contrary, it falls to all those collegces
offering teacher education to provide the necessary remediation. It is precisely our
responsibility to provide the preparation for one's intended life work, including
the removal of deficiencies., Any other approach would rightly be viewed as -
discrimination and an attack, unintended as it may be, upon the foundations of the
Educational Opportunity Fund Program. The paragraph beginning at the bottom
of page 23 and continuing on to the top of page 24, dealing with obligations of
colleges toward disadvantaged students, disclaims any discriminatory intent or
likely results, but strikes the reader as uttcerly meaningless or at best misguided,
in light of what has gone before,

At the time of preparing this testimony (mid-October, 1980), neither Dr., Rupert
Jdemmott, Director of the New Jersey EOF Program, nor Ms., Joan Colcman, Assistant
Director, had received a copy of the Commission report or been informed of it,
Neither was aware of its implications for EOF students in all colleges throughout
the state, We would cxpecl many EOI' state personnel to react strongly against this
mandate and to the concept that "colleges of education” need not assume remedial
functions. It is disconcerting to perceive thatl one state agency has produced a
comprehensive report without cven informing another agency of its recommendations,
let alone soliciting its testimony on a subject affecting the other agency's program
and objectives so profoundly.
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Effect on grading practices

We contend that institution of the 2.5 grade average would have the inevitable
result of engendering ap immediate inflation of grading practices on the part of
faculties reacting to strong pressures brought to bear by students who are in
danger of failing to meet the minimum standard. Such grade inflation has already
becen experienced in a radical way at institutions which tend to attract pre-medical
or pre-Jaw candidates,

Jt is one thing for a professor to demand a minimun performance to pass a course;
it is quitc another thing to withstand a plea from a student that a term paper should
be given a grade of "A-minus' (for examplc) as opposed to "B-plus” when admission
to medical school -=- or a teacher preparation major -- may hang in the balance,

It is unrcalisiic to suppose that faculties will respond favorably to a mandate
imposed from outside the institution or to suppose that grading practices will not
be modified to accommodate tomorrow's prospeclive teacher candidates.,

Theire would he a varicly of means of adapling otherwise to the 2.5 standard if
it becomes Jaw, few of which would reflect any material improvement in a student's
academic perforunnce, One approuch, to pgive an illustration, may be projected.

A faculty might determine to award additional quality points for grades suffixed by
a "pFlos” but to meke no corresponding reduction for a "minus,'  whereas these
suliizcs wighl prosently have no efifect upon prade averages, No beneiits would
ccerpe in this scoenpario; we would expericence only a grceat inerease in grade-grubbing
ard dispule ovar fine distinctions in mony subject arceas where grading is
neocestari ly: somewhat subjective in naturc,

TEA CIER-STURENT PATIO

The recommendation to enforce one-to-ten teacher student ratios is based on
a premisce that can hardly be disputed. The fewer students a teacher has to supervise,
tire more atiention cach one reccives. Applyirg the same logic, a one-to-five ratio
would be bhetier yet, ond of course the ideal would be one-to-one., The Commission
has compromised botween the ideal and the possible by adopting an arbitrary figure
in the same way that colleges have done so. The colleges know what is financially
posaible, however, while the Commission has no such yardstick. It is much more
appropriate for sccerediting teams to cvaluatle on-site whether a college is adequate
or too thinly-provided for,

As was revealed by testimony at Glassboro State College on October 7, 1930,
the implication of a one-to-ten mandate would range from a twofold to threetold.
inerease in faculty to supervise Leacher candidates at the institutions from which
testimony was received. The same implication holds true for Westminster Choir
College,  'I'be report blithely recommends (p. 1) that "changes be made in the funding
formula for the faculties of departments and colleges of education,' so that
sufficient personncl can be made available,

There is no suggestion in the report concerning what should be sacrificed in
order to increase the faculty time for supervision of field experience, This seems
to be one of those areas in which institutions are expected to be variable rather than
carbon copics of each other. Apparently we are to vary in our sacrifices but not
in what we retain or add.

The Commission surely comprchends that any "fat" left over from the expansion of
higher c¢ducation in the 1960's has been stripped from sorely squeezed budgels today.
We can only assume that "changes in funding formula' translates as "increases in
spending." Such a rceccommendation comes at a time when all institutions are trying
to cope with increasingly closc scrutinization by governments and accrediting bodies,
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with the manifest need to continue strengthening both the quality of their programs
and their financial bases, and indeed with the basic need to survive at all,
Westmninster Choir College simply could not survive the necessity of doubling or
trebling its education faculty.

Yor the public colleges, an increase in spending can result only from additional
state appropriations or from raising student tuitions; either way, the funds come
out of the pockets of the state citizenry. The private colleges, of course, do not
enjoy even this dubious privilege. An increase in spending for us can result only
from chnrging our students a higher tuition. This would affect admission adversely,
thereby undermining the institutions ' financial bases —-- the process is a familiar
one ~- with the ultimate result that some or all private colleges would be forced
out of the teacher training business or even out of existence. This in turn would
place a much larger burden upon the state to provide for the preparation of teachers
now being trained in the private sector, & situation presumably not acceptable to
either the legislature or to the public. ‘

INITIAL CERTIFICATION - THE INPERSTATE CERTIFICATION COMPACT

Ot p. 54 of the report the Commission rccommends that the Interstate
Certificatvion Compact (ICC) be honored for purposces of groauting initial certificates
to teachers whose training was completed in an approved program in a reciprocal state,
This statement has a superficial logic and reasonableness: it sugpgests that New
Jersey bonor existing agrecmeats, respect the integrity of teacher cducation programs
at institutions outside of the state,; and welcome teachers who graduatced from
those programs., I do not bhelieve the recommendation boars scrutiny.

The report gives throughout the impression that new ground' is being brokea,
that fresh, tough standards are to be appliced in oxrder to remedy a situation which
besets New Jersey teacher training programs., It reads like a rallying call for the
rest of the nation. Commission member responses to verbal testimony at Glasshoro
State College on October 7, 1980, tend to reinforce this impression.

Either the Commission considers it urgent that teacher trainees undcrgo the
kind of training mandated for the undergraduate program or it does not consider it
urgent. There is little virtue in remolding programs at New Jersey égileges in the
name of quality control while at the same time paying no attention to the experiences
of lecacher trainees in other states which happen to subscribe to the ICC. The
Conmission does not appear to view its report as one designed to bring New Jersey
into step with everyone else; does it foresce a rush on the part of other states to
follow the lead of New Jersey? Such a latter development is hardly likely; at the
very least, the recommendation cannot bc bascd upon a wager as to the future actions
of other states, Whatl is so onerons about teacher preparation programs in New
Jersey that would make initial certiflicates readily available to gradusates of out-
ol-state programs butl would apply far stricter criteria to in-state progroas?

The actual result of the recommendation will be to drive prospective teachers
who can afford it out of New Jerscy to other states, Students will quickly discern
that they can transfer certificates reciprocally back to New Jersey, have more
flexible curricula, and choosce among a wider variety ol programs than would obtain
if they attended New Jersey colleges., The entire process would be much easier and
more palatable for them.
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We do not advocate that New Jersey cancel its participation in the ICC. We do
maintain that it is not in fact logical to develop a set of standards at wide variance
with prevailing practice to be applied exclusively to students who complete teacher
preparation programs in New Jersey. We advocate a substantial modification of the
Commission's extreme stand that will make sense within New Jersey and that will
give credence to the accomplishments of NASDTEC process as it is now carried out
both in- and out-of-state,

THE POST-GRADUATE DEGREE

There are many programs leading to the master's degree in New Jersey, including
one at Westminster Choir College, All stand to benefit financially by the influx of
large numbers of teachers who may find it necessary in the future to matriculate in
post-graduate programs in order to achieve the coveted professional certificate
envisioned by the Commission. Yet we are confident that most colleges and most
members of their faculties and administrations would share our own sense of
revulsion at the concept.

Rationale for post-graduate education

Post-graduate education for teachers has always had two main categories of
attraction for teachers: a desire to further intellectual pursuits and/or a desire
to qualify for increased remuneration on school board salary schedules., A degree
beyond the baccalaureate level has never been regarded -- nor is it likely ever
to be vicwed ~- as attractive for purposes of improving's one's teaching effectiveness,

To fill the void (if the term is even applicable) for the many teachers who have
felt or been conditioned to feel the need for self-improvement, various developments
‘may be cited. One of these is the personal improvement program (PIP) concept or similar
approach in effect in many local school districts, Another is the Educational
Improvement Center concept, extensively lauded by those who have participated. A third
is the cnormous array of workshops offered all over the country, primary features of
which have been the engagement of master teachers and the presentation of innovative
techniques, philosophies, and materials for use in the classroom. All of these
provide refreshment, stimulation, choice, and motivation for practicing teachers,

It was argued at one point during the Glassboro testimony of October 7, 1980,
that the vehicles just described are so multifarious that they cannot be monitored
by the state; dismay was expressed concerning the discrepancies that might arise in
the experience of teachers of one school district in comparison to another district.
Apart from perceiving a kind of paranoia in such reasoning, I submit that the Commission
report already countenances such discrepancies by virtue of recommending continued
participation of New Jersey in the Interstate Certification Compact (as pointed out
previously) and promoting variation in approaches to teacher education.

Likely view by tcachers of a master's degree

One recason for our abhorrence of a universal master's degree for teachers of

our state is that we recoil at the thought of receiving applications from candidates
for a degree which is not seen as desirable or necessary by those forced to acquire it,
We would not be dealing with a body of individuals who are preparing for a life's work;
they will be individuals who consider themselves already engaged in it, who will doubt
seriously the efficacy of the degree, and who will become grudging students at best.

We already have a similar but less virulent phenomenon in the form of individuals who
come for a master's degree for the purely monetary purpose of moving up on a salary
scale, The motivation is entirely wrong. Many teachers will prove to be successful
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immediately or shortly after receiving the initial certificate and will take exception
to the notion that they are not prepared for full-fledged careers prior to achievement
of a graduate degree.

Consider the case of a young woman who earns an initial certificate, marries,
and teaches successfully for perhaps three years before becoming pregnant., She
discontinues her teaching career for two years, deciding then to re-enter the
profession. Now she is faced with the necessity of earning a master's degree,

She cannot attend night school extensively while teaching full-time, leaving her

no time for her husband and child. Her attendance of graduate school full-time would
place an intolerable strain on the budget of a young family. In a very real sense,
requiring a graduate degree for this woman may be viewed as discrimination against
the female who chooses to have children.

The case of a young male teacher may be just as problematical, If his wife is
at home taking care of a child, he must work full-time, for the family must derive
an income from at least one partner of a marriage. Even assuming that some limited
evening study is available to the young man (or to the young woman), it is probable
that there will be but a single choice among institutions offering the requisite degree
program; namely, the one closcst to the person's home or to the school employing the
individual, The young teacher may be lucky to find an institution within 30 miles
of home for commuting purposes, and the possibility of attending a program of greateér
attraction than another may well be precluded by considerations of travel time and cost,

Professional licensing

Everyone subscribes to the concept that teaching is aptly referred to as a
"profession." There is a clear implication in the report that a post-graduate
degree is only a natural extension of that concept. The idea seems to be that,
if an advanced degree is required in the professions of medicine and law, among
others, thc same should be true for teaching. The Commission says as much on
page 49: "All other licensed professions in New Jersey require some combination of
experience, education, or examination for permanent professional license,"

The philosophy that ''what's-good-for-the-goose-is good-for-the-gander" must be
disputed, It is the Commission which has emphasized the term "license' as opposed
to the term "certificate,’ which latter has been the prevailing nomenclature in the
teaching profession. Moreover, the Commission neglects to note that one is not
allowed to practice law or medicine at all until a license is achieved,

One can study history or political science at an undergraduate level, but very
little law as such., A similar statement may be made regarding pre-medical education.
For teachers, however, it is indispensable to study a great deal about one's
discipline at the undergraduate level, along with the methods for purveying that
discipline to public school children. There is a clear line of demarcation in this
and other respects between processional training for teachers and that for doctors
and lawyers. There is in fact no ineluctable equivalence among professions in terms
of minimum requirements for licensure, The analogy is not supportable.

As further evidence of that contention, it should be noted that the teaching
profession involves much greater numbers than those of medicine and law but is much
less lucrative, It is a profession not regarded very highly nationally, which may
account for the low salaries (among professionals) and indeed for the advent of the
Commission's report, which starts with the premise that our teachers are for the
most part poorly prepared and are at best only minimally competent.
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Sources of professional practitioners

Physicians and attorneys frequently derive from upper-class society, their
parents able and willing to help them complete post-graduate study. Even those
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